Public Document Pack

James Ellis
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

MEETING : HARLOW AND GILSTON GARDEN TOWN JOINT
COMMITTEE
VENUE : MAIN COUNCIL CHAMBER IN THE CIVIC CENTRE,

THE WATER GARDENS, COLLEGE SQUARE,
HARLOW CM20 1WG

DATE : MONDAY 22 JULY 2024
TIME : 6.30 PM

PLEASE NOTE TIME AND VENUE

MEMBERS OF THE COMMITTEE

Councillors B Crystall, N Bedford, L Wagland, D Swords and S Boulton

CONTACT OFFICER:
T Larsen, Democratic Services EFDC. Tel:
(01992) 564243

This agenda has been printed using 100% recycled paper

www.eastherts.gov.uk



Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

A Member, present at a meeting of the Authority, or any committee, sub-
committee, joint committee or joint sub-committee of the Authority, with a
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) in any matter to be considered or
being considered at a meeting:

e must not participate in any discussion of the matter at the meeting;

e must not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the meeting;

e must disclose the interest to the meeting, whether registered or
not, subject to the provisions of section 32 of the Localism Act
2011;

e if the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a pending
notification, must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest within
28 days;

¢ must leave the room while any discussion or voting takes place.

Public Attendance

East Herts Council welcomes public attendance at its meetings and
meetings will continue to be live streamed and

webcasted. For further information, please email
democraticservices@eastherts.gov.uk or call the Council on 01279
655261 and ask to speak to Democratic Services.

The Council operates a paperless policy in respect of agendas at
committee meetings and the Council will no longer be providing spare
copies of Agendas for the Public at Committee Meetings. The mod.gov
app is available to download for free from app stores for electronic
devices. You can use the mod.gov app to access, annotate and keep all
committee paperwork on your mobile device.

Visit https://www.eastherts.gov.uk/article/35542/Political-

Structure for details.




Audio/Visual Recording of meetings

Everyone is welcome to record meetings of the Council and its Committees
using whatever, non-disruptive, methods you think are suitable, which may
include social media of any kind, such as tweeting, blogging or Facebook.
However, oral reporting or commentary is prohibited. If you have any
questions about this please contact Democratic Services (members of the
press should contact the Press Office). Please note that the Chairman of
the meeting has the discretion to halt any recording for a number of
reasons, including disruption caused by the filming or the nature of the
business being conducted. Anyone filming a meeting should focus only on
those actively participating and be sensitive to the rights of minors,
vulnerable adults and those members of the public who have not
consented to being filmed.

AGENDA



Webcasting Introduction

This meeting is to be webcast and the Chairman will read the following
announcement:

“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be
broadcast live to the internet (or filmed) and will be capable of
repeated viewing (or other such use by third parties).

Therefore, by participating in this meeting, you are consenting to being
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings
for webcasting and/or training purposes.

Please also be aware that if technical difficulties interrupt the meeting
that cannot be overcome, | may need to adjourn the meeting.

Members are reminded to activate their microphones before
speaking.”

Apologies for Absence

To be announced at the meeting.

To report non-attendance before the meeting, please contact the EFDC
Democratic Services to ensure your absence is properly logged.

Substitute Members

To report on the appointment of any substitute members for the meeting.

Declarations of Interest

Members of the Joint Committee to declare any Disclosable Pecuniary
Interests or Personal Interest in any item on this agenda.

Minutes (Pages 8 - 10)

To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the HGGT Joint Committee
held on 11 June 2024.



10.

11.

12.

Matters Arising and Outstanding Actions

To consider any matters arising and outstanding actions from previous
meetings.

Requests to Address the Joint Committee

Any member of the public or elected member may address the Joint
Committee on any agenda item (except those dealt with in private
session as exempt or confidential business) due to be considered at
the meeting, in accordance with the provisions contained within Parts
21 and 22 of the Inter-Authority Agreement.

HGGT Annual Review (Pages 11 - 14)

To review and propose any recommendations to the HGGT Annual
Review for 2023/24.

HGGT Quality Review Report (Pages 15 - 21)

To review and propose any recommendations on the HGGT Quality
Review Panel Annual Report 2023/24.

HGGT Stewardship Charter (Pages 22 - 136)

To review and propose any recommendations to the HGGT
Stewardship Charter.

"Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently" - A HGGT Framework
(HGGT Modal Transition Delivery Framework) (Pages 137 - 257)

To review and propose any recommendations to the ‘Re-Imagining
How We Can Travel Differently’ Framework to achieve HGGT modal
transition objectives as agreed in the HGGT Transport Strategy.

HGGT Programme Management Report (Pages 258 - 265)

To note the progress updates with the HGGT Work Programme for
2024/25.



13.

14.

15.

Any Other Business

Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972 requires that the
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the
Proper Officer, before urgent business not specified in the agenda may
be transacted.

Date of Next Meeting

The next meeting of the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Joint
Committee will be held on 22 October 2024.

Exclusion of Press and Public

Exclusion

To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act
1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the
items of business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely
disclosure of exempt information as defined in the following paragraph(s)
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act (as amended) or are confidential
under Section 100(A)(2):

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Infoi
Number
16 HGGT Programme Management
Report (Exempt)

The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006,
which came into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider
whether maintaining the exemption listed above outweighs the potential
public interest in disclosing the information. Any member who considers
that this test should be applied to any currently exempted matter on this
agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 hours prior to the
meeting.

Background Papers
Background papers are defined as being documents relating to the subject
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion:

(@) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part
of the report is based; and

(b) bhave been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and



16.

does not include published works or those which disclose exempt or
confidential information and in respect of executive reports, the
advice of any political advisor.

The Council will make available for public inspection one copy of each of
the documents on the list of background papers for four years after the
date of the meeting. Inspection of background papers can be arranged by
contacting either the Responsible Officer or the Democratic Services
Officer for the particular item.

HGGT Programme Management Report (Exempt)

To review and propose any recommendations on the progress updates
with the HGGT Work Programme for 2024/25.



Agenda Item 5

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL
HGGT JOINT COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES

Tuesday 11 June 2024, 6.30 pm — 6.50pm
Council Chamber in the Civic Centre, The Water Gardens, College Square,
Harlow CM20 1WG

Members Councillors D Swords (Chairman) S Boulton (Deputy Chair), B Crystall,
Present: N Bedford and L Scott

Apologies: Councillor(s) L Wagland

Officers In Richard Cassidy (EHDC Chief Executive), Jennifer Gould (Strategic
Attendance: Director and Chief Operating Officer), Jonathan Schifferes (ECC Head

of Housing), Yvonne Rees (HDC Chief Executive), Colin Haigh (HCC
Director of Growth),

Naisha Polaine (Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Director),
Amanda Apcar (Principal Planning Lawyer), Therese Larsen
(Democratic Services Officer) and Gary Woodhall (Team Manager -
Democratic & Electoral Services)

A RECORDING OF THIS MEETING IS AVAILABLE FOR REPEATED VIEWING

1 WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION
The Director of HGGT Naisha Polaine made a short address to remind everyone present that
the meeting would be broadcast to the internet, and would be capable of repeated viewing,
which could infringe their human and data protection rights.

2 SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS
It was noted that Clir Lee Scott was substituting for Clir Lesley Wagland.

3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
No declarations of interest were declared.

4 MINUTES

This was the first meeting of the HGGT Joint Committee and therefore there were no minutes
of previous meeting.

5 MATTERS ARISING AND OUTSTANDING ACTIONS

This was the first meeting of the HGGT Joint Committee and therefore there were no matters
arising or outstanding actions.

6 REQUESTS TO ADDRESS THE JOINT COMMITTEE

No requests to address the Joint Committee had been received.

(Easts @ Epping Forest — Harl .
HE{I@) District Council —= nariow m
P ag e 8 U wevw.eppingforestde. gov.uk W ulu(:l-::;.’.\ rc.l-u fl’.:.':ll.

Essex County Council
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk d Hertfordshire|


https://harlow.public-i.tv/core/portal/webcast_interactive/881618

10

HGGT Joint Committee Tuesday 11 June 2024

ELECTION OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE JOINT COMMITTEE

Resolved:

That Clir D Swords be elected as Chairman of the HGGT Joint Committee for the 2024/25
municipal year.

ELECTION OF THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN OF THE JOINT COMMITTEE

Resolved:

That Clir S Boulton be elected as Deputy Chairman of the HGGT Joint Committee for the
2024/25 municipal year.

INTRODUCTION TO THE HARLOW AND GILSTON GARDEN TOWN JOINT COMMITTEE

The Director introduced a report introducing Harlow Gilston Garden Town (HGGT) Joint
Committee, as established by East Hertfordshire District Council (EHDC), Epping Forest
District Council (EFDC) and Harlow District Council (HDC) and the County Council’s of Essex
(ECC) and Hertfordshire (HCC).

The purpose of the HGGT Joint Committee is to provide accountable and cross boundary
leadership to deliver the ambitious spatial growth proposals set out in the Local Plans of
EFDC, EHDC and HDC and supported by ECC and HCC, and to coordinate and maximise
opportunities for new and existing residents and communities. The HGGT Joint Committee will
hold the responsibility to deliver the agreed HGGT Vision to promote healthy, sustainable
communities and co-ordinate and facilitate the delivery of 16,000 new homes in the HGGT by
2033, and 7,000 new homes in the years after that along with associated transport, community
and environmental infrastructure.

Resolved:

(1) It was noted that, as set out in appendix A & B of the report, the processes,
procedures, and functions of the HGGT Joint Committee;

(2) It was noted that the role and the requirement for the independent Facilitator be
reviewed at the meeting of the HGGT Joint Committee scheduled for October 2024;
and

(3) It was agreed that, as set out in appendix C of the report, the formal protocol for
members of the public to engage with the HGGT Joint Committee.

HGGT 2024/25 BUDGET AND PROGRAMME

The Director introduced a report to establish 2024/25 HGGT budget and programme of work.
The five Council HGGT Joint Committee’s primary objective is to co-ordinate and enable the
delivery of 16,000 new homes by 2033, along with the associated community and transport

2
@ Epping Forest = HOHOW ']
“"‘-{f‘/ District Council = e "

Essix County Councll

www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk Workder oowther v T fer Hertfordshire| Page 9



11

12

HGGT Joint Committee Tuesday 11 June 2024

related infrastructure, that will deliver sustainable development in and around Harlow in line
with the agreed Garden Town Vision and the Local Plans adopted by EHDC, EFDC and HDC.
Members of the HGGT Board agreed at the 12 March 2024 meeting, approved the 2024/25
Budget and Programme of co-ordinating and enabling work for officers to implement from 1
April 2024 and to allow contractual commitments to be met.

The report presents this agreed HGGT Budget and Programme of Work for 2024/25 for
approval by the HGGT Joint Committee.

Resolved:

(1) The HGGT 2024/25 budget and programme of work was approved, as set out in
appendix A & B of the report;

(2) It was agreed that in consultation with the Chairman of the Joint Committee, authority
be delegated to the Director of HGGT to make minor changes within established
thresholds to the budget profile and allocation if required;

(3) It was agreed that any such changes made under (2) above would be reported to the
next meeting of the HGGT Joint Committee; and

(4) It was noted that a scheduling of a presentation of the HGGT 3-year business plan for
the period 2025-28 to the Joint Committee during 2024/25 will take place.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS
It was noted that there was no other business for consideration by the Joint Committee.
DATE OF THE NEXT MEETING

The Joint Committee noted that their next meeting would be on Monday 22 July 2024 at
6.30pm.

(East Epping Forest = ']
Her@ @ District Council — ,@i |8X¥. i

"""""" —_— Essex County Councl
P ag e 1 0 U www.eppingforestde.gov.uk ! Working topether for Harfon Hertfordshire|



H GA&ndf_ltem 8

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Agenda Item 8
Report to: HARLOW AND GILSTON GARDEN TOWN JOINT COMMITTEE
Title: HGGT Annual Review 2023-24

Report Reference: JC-003-2024/25

Date: 22 July 2024
Report Author: Matt Phillips - Principal Communications & Engagement Officer
Enclosures: Appendix A — HGGT Annual Review 2023-24

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

The HGGT Joint Committee is asked to:
A. Agree the draft HGGT 2023-24 Annual Review as set out in Appendix A.

B. Delegate authority to the Director of HGGT, in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair
of the Joint Committee, to make minor changes and publish the final version of the
HGGT 2023-24 HGGT Annual Review on the HGGT website.

Executive Summary:

This report presents the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Annual Review for 2023-24. This is
our sixth Annual Review, and it records a number of significant steps taken in the delivery of the
adopted HGGT Vision during the last year. It also sets out our ambitions for the year to come.

Reasons for proposed Decision:

The HGGT initiative publishes an Annual Review each year which sets out the achievements
and progress of the 5-council partnership towards its vision to promote healthy, sustainable
communities and co-ordinate and facilitate the delivery of 16,000 new homes by 2033, and
7,000 new homes in the years after that along with associated transport, community and
environmental infrastructure.

@ Epping Forest —
& District Council ~ [E=SN ~ OrOW ,
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk seiisiniiiceris Workime sowerher for THariow P ag e 1 1



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Other Options for Action:

To not produce or publish an Annual Review. This option is not recommended as a clear and
publicly available record of activity would not be in circulation as has been the practice since the
inception of the HGGT initiative.

I. Introduction

It is important that the progress of the 5-council partnership led HGGT initiative is reported
through the Annual Review in an accessible public facing record. The Annual Review will
also be used to support future funding bids, inform project communications, and increase the
visibility and prominence of the initiative across the wider community.

2. Background

The HGGT Annual Review 2023-24 highlights the progress that the 5 Council Partners are
making in the planning and delivery of the Harlow & Gilston Garden Town initiative. Delivery
highlights include the start of the Garden Town’s North to Centre Sustainable Transport
Corridor; the Latton Priory Design Code and the Masterplan Guidance for East of Harlow. At
the heart of any sustainable and lasting town-led regeneration is a thriving town centre and
Harlow has now begun significant town centre regeneration. Lastly, the Discover Harlow
Engagement Hub has opened this year providing a place that local people and visitors can
find out more about the work detailed above and talk to the HGGT and Harlow Regeneration
Teams.

3. Proposals

3.1 The HGGT Joint Committee is asked to agree the draft Annual Review attached at Appendix
A.

3.2 The Joint Committee is asked to delegate authority to the Director of HGGT, in consultation
with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Joint Committee, to make minor changes and publish
the final version of the HGGT 2023-24 HGGT Annual Review.

Implications:
Resource Implications
Central Government Funding has been made available to date to support the work of the HGGT

partnership. This is the result of annual bidding rounds and while welcome, creates uncertainty
in planning for enabling and delivery work. Officers of HGGT will continue dialogue with

(East Epping Forest = ']
Herf? @ District Council - Ha rlQXZ’. At

&&&&&&& - Essex County Councl pm——
P ag e 1 2 \—/ www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk : Workder oowther v T fer [Hertfordshire]



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Government for future arrangements. Each council partner also considers contribution to the
HGGT partnership as part of annual budget setting.

Equalities and Diversity

Equality Impact Assessment

Is this a new policy (or decision) or a change to an | Yes
existing policy, practice or project?
Describe the main aims, objectives and purpose of | Provide a public facing record

the policy or decision highlighting the last 12 months of the
HGGT project.
What outcome(s) are you hoping to achieve (ie Agreement to publication

decommissioning or commissioning a service)?

Does or will the policy or decision affect: No
e service users
e employees
¢ the wider community or groups of
people, particularly where there are
areas of known inequalities?
Will the policy or decision influence how No
organisations operate?

Will the policy or decision involve substantial No
changes in resources?

Is this policy or decision associated with any of No
the Council’s other policies and how, if applicable,
does the proposed policy support corporate
outcomes?

What does the information tell you about those N/A
groups identified?

Have you consulted or involved those groups that | N/A
are likely to be affected by the policy or decision
you want to implement? If so, what were their
views and how have their views influenced your
decision?

@ Epping Forest — 'l
He’!\j? (E District Council = _H_Q['gﬁ, ”
= rrmrrrri -~ R — Page 13

srkine towerher for Harlow



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

If you have not consulted or engaged with

intend to carry out consultation or provide

communities that are likely to be affected by the
policy or decision, give details about when you

reasons for why you feel this is not necessary:

N/A

now know.

Use this section to assess any potential impact on equality groups based on what you

reassignment, Pregnancy/maternity,
Marriage/civil partnership, Race,
Religion/belief, Sexual orientation

Age, Disability, Gender, Gender N/A

Does the EqIA indicate that the policy
or decision would have a medium or
high adverse impact on one or more
equality groups?

No See comment above

HGGT Vision Assurance

1. What principles of the HGGT Vision does this seek to achieve?

The 2023-24 Annual Review encompasses updates across Economy and Regeneration,
Placemaking and Homes, Sustainable Movement and Landscape and Green Infrastructure.

2. What steps have been taken to ensure the HGGT Vision is embedded into the project?

The 2023-24 Annual Review showcases the HGGT vision in action, from planning policy and
strategy to delivery and spades in the ground.

@ Epping Forest
Herts District Council
Page 14 \—/ www.eppingforestde.gov.uk

=3 Hoiow FR

Essex County Counci T
: Workine wpesher for Harfow Hertfordshire|




Agenda Item 9

Report to:

Title:

Report reference:

Date:

Report Author:

Enclosures:

Agenda Item 9

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

HARLOW AND GILSTON GARDEN TOWN JOINT COMMITTEE
HGGT Quality Review Panel Annual Report

JC-004-2024/25
22 July 2024

Deborah Denner - Frame Projects and Kevin Steptoe - HGGT

Placeshaping and Engagement Lead

Appendix A : HGGT Quality Review Panel Annual Report 2023/24

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

That the HGGT Joint Committee is asked to:

A. Agree the HGGT QRP Annual Report 2023/24 as set out in Appendix A, particularly the
emerging issues and next steps to address these in Section 6.

B. Delegate authority to the Director of HGGT, in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair
of the Joint Committee, to make any minor changes and publish the final version of the
HGGT QRP Annual Report 2023/24 HGGT.

Executive Summary:

This report describes the role of the Quality Review Panel (QRP) in helping deliver growth and
regeneration across the Harlow & Gilston Garden Town. Example schemes and emerging
issues are noted, as well as next steps and recommendations made to Local Authorities and

Developers.

p

as

Epping Forest —

- . - Ap— W

District Council S _H_q[lgunc;. i
werw.eppingforestde.gov.uk S Workine iorether for TTaTon Hertfordshire|

Page 15



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Reasons for Proposed Decision:

To provide an update to the Joint Committee with regard to the work of the QRP over the last
year and to highlight issues that are considered to require further attention in either policy
development or through the delivery of development proposals.

Other Options for Action:

An alternative course of action would be for an Annual Report not to be provided and
considered. This is not recommended as it would not enable the work of the QRP to be
recognised by the Joint Committee and not enable the issues it has identified as requiring further
attention to be highlighted.

1. Planning policy background

1.1. The NPPF states that ‘local planning authorities should ensure that they have access to,
and make appropriate use of, tools and processes for assessing and improving the design
of development. These include workshops to engage the local community, design advice
and review arrangements, and assessment frameworks... In assessing applications, local
planning authorities should have regard to the outcome from these processes, including
any recommendations made by design review panels.” (NPPF Paragraph 133, Section 12
- Achieving well-designed places).

1.2. Harlow and Gilston Garden Town is a pioneering project, which provides one of the most
exciting and ambitious growth and regeneration opportunities in the UK, setting an
exemplary benchmark for sustainable living. The Garden Town’s Vision builds on the
area’s key strengths and has established a set of core principles that will ensure the
transition from New Town to Garden Town will create an adaptable, healthy, sustainable
and innovative place to live, work and visit.

2. The panel’s role in the planning process

2.1. The Harlow and Gilston Quality Review Panel was set up in 2017 by Frame Projects, on
behalf of the collaborative HGGT partnership between East Hertfordshire District Council
(EHDC), Epping Forest District Council (EFDC), Essex County Council (ECC), Harlow
District Council (HDC), and Hertfordshire County Council (HCC). The Panel is chaired by
Peter Maxwell, an architect and town planner who is Director of Design at the London
Legacy Development Corporation. The panel includes 25 professional experts, selected
through an open recruitment process in collaboration with officers from the Councils. The
panel makeup is reviewed through progress meetings between Frame and officers, to
ensure that the relevant expertise and diversity is maintained. The panel also reviews
proposals in the EFDC area, outside of the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town, as the
Epping Forest District Council’s QRP.

@ Epping Forest P ']
“@ @ District Council = fH_Ujgj{y, -

—eeeeme Essix County Councll
werw.eppingforestde.gov.uk : Plrker Keadhes v oo Hertfordshire|



2.2.

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

The HGGT Quality Review Panel covers the full geographical area of the Garden Town
initiative. The panel’s input on strategic infrastructure such as sustainable transport
corridors, which connect the garden neighbourhood sites with Harlow town centre, as well
as strategic guidance documents across the Garden Town make up the key elements of
the Quality Review process.

2.3. Terms of reference can be accessed on the HGGT website and are updated annually,

24,

they set out the role and remit of the panel, and the way in which it supports the Planning
process. Schemes requiring design advice are identified by Planning officers and referred
to the panel for review. Officers provide a briefing on planning or strategic context and flag
key issues, both in writing for the meeting agendas, and in person at the panel meeting.

Advice given by the panel is recorded in a report, to assist with continuing pre-application
negotiations, design and/or policy development, or to advise the relevant Planning
Committee on submitted schemes. Where relevant, the panel’'s comments refer to HGGT
guidance, and applicants are asked to demonstrate how they have embedded this within
their schemes.

3. Schemes reviewed

3.1.

3.2.

The Quality Review Panel advised on 20 schemes, from 01 April 2023 to 31 March 2024.
11 of these were returning projects, that have been reviewed on more than one occasion.
First reviews usually take place at a stage when an applicant and design team have decided
their preferred option for development of a site, and have sufficient drawings, models, etc.
for a comprehensive discussion. There will often be further pre-application reviews following
this, to provide advice on more detailed design matters, before planning submission. For
non-development proposals, such as strategic guidance, masterplans or policy documents,
it is recommended that these come to the panel at an initial draft stage, primarily for a
workshop review, with follow-up reviews as appropriate.

Frame Projects has developed and applied a standardised annual reporting process that
monitors and evaluates the impact of the quality review panels which Frame run nationally.
The annual report allows Frame Projects to obtain insight into the effectiveness and
performance of each of the panels, as well as valuable information on the significant
emerging issues from panel reviews. It also provides public transparency and allows for
continual improvement of the services provided. The QRP Annual Report for the period
from 1 April 2023 to 31 March 2024 and covers both the HGGT and EFDC quality review
panels, is appended in Appendix 1.

4. Emerging issues

4.1,

Strategic masterplans and design codes

@ Epping Forest P ']
“@ @ District Council = Harlow -

Essix County Councll
werw.eppingforestde.gov.uk : Plrker Keadhes v oo Hertfordshire|



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

There has been an increase in the number of strategic sites coming to the panel over the
last year. This has been for a number of reasons, including the outline planning approval for
the Gilston Area of the Garden Town, receiving resolution to grant in Spring 2023, subject
to the completion of a S106 agreement.

A recurring issue has been how to structure review meetings to ensure sufficient time given
the scale and complexity of these strategic sites. Bespoke formats and extended sessions
have been used to split the complex masterplans into thematic sections, to allow for
independent advice on each aspect of the designs. This has worked well, and Frame
Projects will continue to engage with applicants and case officers to agree bespoke formats
for large and complex projects.

In January 2024, it was agreed to appoint additional panel members with masterplanning
expertise, with a particular focus on design code experience. Two new panel members have
now joined the panel. With these appointments, 42 per cent of the Quality Review Panel are
women and 19 per cent are from a BAME background.

4.2. Character and identity

Character and identity are a recurring theme at almost every review meeting. Given the
challenge of placemaking within a semi-rural setting and for urban extensions, stronger
design guidance should be provided. Both East Herts and Epping Forest District Councils
are in the early stages of developing district wide design codes, which will include character
area guidance. Existing guidance, including the Essex Design Guide and Garden Town
Design Guide, could also be reviewed to ensure that these documents are up to date,
providing helpful references for design teams as well as the panel members. The Garden
Town team are formulating the work programme for the next year and beyond. An update
to the Garden Town Design Guide and the associated Vision could be put forward to form
part of that work programme.

4.3. Sustainability

While awareness of issues around climate resilience, biodiversity and sustainable drainage
is generally positive, applicant responses to low carbon design and passive design is more
variable. An update of the Garden Town Design Sustainability Guidance could be
considered to provide clarity on expectations for design teams, as well as the panel
members. Further sustainability training with the panel and officers could be considered, to
refresh their understanding of industry guidance as well as local policy, to ensure that the
council’s ambitions for sustainable placemaking are reinforced.

(Easty Epping Forest — ']
@ @ District Council ~ ESI 1910w, e
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk = T Workime soeerher for y HBI‘thrdshire



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

4.4. Car parking

The panel accepts the current situation that not all development sites are well connected by
public transport and appreciates that trying to achieve car free approach is inappropriate in
this context. However, parking can have a significant impact on placemaking and public
realm opportunities. Providing design guidance to inform how cars are dealt with could help
create stronger places. This could include ideas about alternative future uses for parking
areas to assist understanding of short term and long-term potential.

To support the ambition for modal shift and promotion of active travel, the Report advises
that the Essex car parking standards should be reviewed. The panel feels that the Essex
car parking standards are outdated and contradict the forward-looking aspirations of the
Garden Town partners. They suggest that, to support the ambition for modal shift and
promotion of active travel, the standards should be reviewed. That work is already
underway, being led by the Essex Planning Officers Association with Chief Officers currently
expected to sign them off in July. It will then be necessary for Epping Forest and Harlow
District Councils to determine whether to adopt those revised standards. On the
Hertfordshire side, parking standards are formulated at district level. East Herts District
Council is also in the process of revising and updating parking standards.

5. Next steps

5.1. As the Harlow & Gilston Quality Review Panel enters its seventh year, the role of the panel
is well-established, and the working relationships with both Council officers, applicants and
design teams continues to strengthen.

5.2. As detailed applications for the strategic sites within the Garden Town start to come
forwards, tackling compliance of the design codes and masterplan frameworks could be
challenging for both the panel and officers.

5.3. An annual meeting is also planned for the panel in Summer 2024. A field trip to see
completed or emerging schemes may be beneficial to share lessons learnt and recognise
benchmark developments in the area and beyond that can be referred to.

Implications

This report is primarily for the Joint Committee to agree the activity of the Panel over the last
year as set out in the Annual Reivew at Appendix A. There are no specific implications arising
as a result. The emerging issues identified in section 4 can be the subject of further
consideration by the Garden Town officer team and any actions required can be determined
through the normal course of the consideration of the programme of work of the Garden Town
team.

@ Epping Forest P ']
“@ @ District Council = Harlow -

Essix County Councll
werw.eppingforestde.gov.uk : Plrker Keadhes v oo Hertfordshire|

Page 19



HGGT

Rescorce Implications:

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

There are no new of additional resource implications. The costs of Frame and the operation of
the Panel are met from charges levied to applicants who submit schemes to the Panel. The
Garden Town team has a budget to cover the costs of schemes or policy documents that it

wishes itself to refer to the Panel for advice.

Equalities and Diversity:

Equality Impact Assessment

Is this a new policy (or decision) or a change to an
existing policy, practice or project?

No

Describe the main aims, objectives and purpose of
the policy or decision

To update in relation to the provision of
independent scrutiny of emerging
development and policy proposals
relating to the Harlow and Gilston
Garden Town.

What outcome(s) are you hoping to achieve (ie
decommissioning or commissioning a service)?

To report on the outcome of the service
during the previous year.

Does or will the policy or decision affect:
e service users
e employees
e the wider community or groups of
people, particularly where there are
areas of known inequalities?

Service users and the wider
community. Landowners and others
preparing development proposals will
be expected to seek advice and
feedback from the QRP in the
formulation of their development
proposals. Employees will be
expected advice in relation to policy
proposals. The wider community and
community stakeholders will be
impacted by development and policy
proposals that have been subject to

changes in resources?

QRP scrutiny.
Will the policy or decision influence how No
organisations operate?
Will the policy or decision involve substantial No

Is this policy or decision associated with any of
the Council’s other policies and how, if applicable,
does the proposed policy support corporate
outcomes?

Relevant in relation to development
management and planning policies
seeking the delivery of high-quality
development proposals. It supports
corporate aims seeking the delivery of
high-quality new developments.

(Easty Epping Forest —
& District Council ~ ESI 1910w, "
www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk i o il Hertfordshire




HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

What does the information tell you about those
groups identified?

N/A

Have you consulted or involved those groups that
are likely to be affected by the policy or decision
you want to implement? If so, what were their
views and how have their views influenced your
decision?

No specific engagement in relation to the
ongoing operation of a QRP. However,
there has been general awareness raising
with the community in the HGGT area that
a Panel operates within.

If you have not consulted or engaged with
communities that are likely to be affected by the
policy or decision, give details about when you
intend to carry out consultation or provide
reasons for why you feel this is not necessary:

N/A

Use this section to assess any potential impact on equality groups based on what you

now know.

Age, Disability, Gender, Gender reassignment,
Pregnancy/maternity, Marriage/civil partnership,
Race, Religion/belief, Sexual orientation

There is not considered to be any impact
in relation to protected groups.

Does the EqlA indicate that the policy or decision
would have a medium or high adverse impact on
one or more equality groups?

No

HGGT Vision Assurance

1. What principles of the HGGT Vision does this seek to achieve?

Supporting the Councils to deliver against the Garden Town Vision and core principles, to

achieve high-quality places to live, work and visit.

2. What steps have been taken to ensure the HGGT Vision is embedded into the project?

Progress and annual meetings held with the chair, panel members and Council representatives
to regularly update on HGGT Vision, emerging strategic guidance and policy context.

(Easty Epping Forest —
& District Council ~ ESI 1910w, "
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk e Iii»hu\(.’-:u.-r;.-. v for y Herﬂordshim

Page 21



Agenda Item 10

Agenda Item 10
Report to:

Title:

Report Reference:

Date:
Report Author:

Enclosures:

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

HARLOW AND GILSTON GARDEN TOWN JOINT COMMITTEE
HGGT STEWARDSHIP CHARTER

JC-005-2024/25

22 July 2024

Kevin Steptoe - HGGT Placeshaping and Engagement Lead

Appendix A — Summary of consultation responses and draft Charter
amendments

Appendix B — Report of the QRP

Appendix C — Summary of points raised by the QRP and draft
Charter amendments

Appendix D — Young Persons engagement report

Appendix E — Further amendments to the draft Charter

Appendix F — Draft Charter Scenario Testing

Appendix G — Stewardship Charter — final draft for adoption

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

The HGGT Joint Committee is asked to:

A. Consider the result of the consultation exercise and consequential amendments to the
draft Stewardship Charter as set out in paras 3.1 to 3.11 of this report.

B. Agree the final Stewardship Charter as set out at Appendix G.

C. Delegate authority to the HGGT Director to make further minor amendments to the final
Stewardship Charter as may be required and to update the Charter Foreword in the
version of the Charter for final publication in consultation with the Chair and Vice Chair
of the Joint Commiittee.

Executive Summary:

The 5 Council partners have considered the approach to be taken to ensure effective stewardship
of the new communities created for the Garden Town. In this respect stewardship comprises the

p

as

14
Page 22 @

Epping Forest S W y
District Council e ,@i |8uncil i
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk it i Wowiiee sopether for Hlarfew Hertfordshire



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

inclusive, proactive, and responsive planning, placemaking and care of new places. It was
decided that Stewardship Guidance should be produced, providing direction to landowners,
developers, community representatives and other stakeholders. This Guidance took the form of
the Stewardship Charter, of six high level principles that set the expectations to achieve
stewardship outcomes.

The draft Charter was subject to public consultation in the latter half of 2023. Feedback received
during that consultation has been fully considered along with other inputs impacting on the
Charter as set out in this report. Following that consideration a range of amendments have been
made to the draft Charter bringing it into a final draft. The Charter can now be agreed by the Joint
Committee.

Reasons for proposed Decision:

To finalise and agree the HGGT Stewardship Charter to enable it to comprise a material
consideration in planning and related decisions.

Other Options for Action:

It could be determined not to agree the draft Stewardship Charter and to take no further action in
relation to it. This option as a course of action is not recommended. It would not support and
enable the development of the 5 Council partners of HGGTs approach to stewardship and would
leave landowners, developers, community reps and other stakeholders without further guidance
from the 5 Council partners of HGGT with respect to stewardship. Ultimately this could affect the
way future places are looked after. There are few risks with the agreement of the Charter and
the benefits of proceeding with agreeing the Charter are considered to far outweigh any risks
associated with proceeding.

I. Introduction

1.1 The care and management of the new places created as a result of the Garden Town
development has been one of the primary considerations of the 5 Council partners of HGGT
since its designation as a Garden Town in 2017.

1.2 The Garden Town Vision, produced in 2018, set out four Key Principles for Healthy Growth:
Economy and Regeneration, Placemaking and Homes, Landscape and Green Infrastructure
and Sustainable Movement. These four Key Principles are seen as being woven together by
the common theme of stewardship. A definition for stewardship is set out in the Charter which,
in summary, is the inclusive, proactive, and responsive planning, placemaking and care of new
places.

@ Epping Forest — Harlow

H{"_“/ District Council =

Essex County Councl ]

/11
www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk Working together for Harfons Hertfordshire| P ag e 2 3



1.3

2.1

2.2

2.3

24

2.5

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Since the definition of the Vision, there has been extensive exploration of the stewardship
theme and how good stewardship can best be delivered as part of the development of the
Garden Town. The emerging Charter represents a significant element of this.

Background

During 2020, and following the delivery of the Vision, the 5 Council partners of HGGT
commissioned ARUP to explore the stewardship theme and possible implementation
arrangements. ARUP’s report made recommendations about the type of organisations that
could deliver stewardship outcomes. These recommendations were agreed by the Garden
Town partners following consideration of the ARUP report in July 2020.

The 5 Council partners of HGGT considered the matter of stewardship again during 2022 and
it was agreed that Stewardship guidance should be prepared to guide the content of
development proposals that were coming forward at Gilston as part of the planning application
process, but also for other sites across the Garden Town.

The scope, content and focus of any emerging guidance in relation to stewardship outcomes
was agreed by the 5 Council partners of HGGT and this has shaped the Stewardship guidance
presented here.

The 5 Council partners of HGGT also asked that the potential for more direct involvement in
the implementation of stewardship structures be explored. This work remains in progress and
it is anticipated that the outcomes of that consideration will be reported to the Joint Committee
at its meeting in October 2024.

The Stewardship Charter presented here for agreement, will enable the 5 Council partners to
formally set out their expectations of what they require of developers with respect to
stewardship. It should inform any arrangements that are proposed by developers for the future
maintenance and care of the new communities. It focusses on a range of core stewardship
themes and issues. It will be a material consideration to which regard should be had in the
determination of subsequent planning applications.

2.6 The Charter will help existing and emerging communities understand agreed expectations by

the five Council partners as to the stewardship principles and outcomes for the new places
that are to be developed. The Charter sets those principles and outcomes that will support
the delivery of good growth across the Garden Town.

2.7 As it will apply across the entire HGGT area, and to sites and developments with individual

characteristics, it is generic in nature setting out six high level Principles for stewardship that

(East Epping Forest = ']
Herf? @ District Council - Ha rlQXZ’. At

‘‘‘‘‘‘‘ e Essex County Councl —_—
Page 24 U www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk : Workder oowther v T fer Hertfordshire|



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

the 5 Council partners of HGGT expect to see implemented as part of developments coming
forward.

2.8 The Charter represents a significant step with the 5 Council partners jointly establishing the
expectations for stewardship requirements to be delivered across the new HGGT
neighbourhoods.

3. Consultation

3.1 The draft Stewardship Charter was reported to the HGGT Board meeting of 13 June 2023 who
recommended it for consultation. The 5 Council partners of HGGT then individually endorsed
the draft document for consultation and an eight-week consultation process commenced on 7
August 2023. The longer consultation period, rather than a conventional six-week period, was
due to the commencement of the consultation during the August holiday period.

3.2 Consultation took place through the HGGT partners on-line consultation platform, Citizen Lab.
The platform enables respondents to comment through a pre-defined questionnaire, or to
comment freely on any part of the document. Prior to the commencement of the consultation
awareness was raised at the HGGT Celebration Event Day of 15 July 2023 and through
contact with all stakeholders identified on the HGGT contact database. Pre-consultation
engagement had been undertaken with landowners/ developers through the Developer Forum
event of 7 February 2023. Social media coverage was also undertaken at the time of the
commencement of the consultation.

3.3 All Parish Councils (PC) within and adjacent to the HGGT area were informed of the
consultation exercise and an offer made to attend any PC meeting at the request of the PC.
In the event, only one request was received, and a presentation was made to a meeting of
Roydon PC at its meeting of 2 November 2023.

3.4 Members will note that the date of the Roydon PC meeting was well beyond the initial eight-
week consultation period. There were difficulties in attending an earlier meeting of the PC and
as a result, the consultation period was allowed to run for a longer period, concluding after 14
weeks in mid Nov 2023.

3.5 It is considered that a wide audience was reached during the consultation period. There were
over 20,000 views of the Facebook posts advising of the consultation. Over 4,000 of those
views were pursued through to the weblink or by sharing the Facebook information. Given the
strategic and high-level nature of the Charter, it was not anticipated that a substantive volume
of responses would be received to the consultation. There were eight responses from
community representatives, landowners/ developers, and other professional interests. There
were three responses from individual members of the public.

@ Epping Forest = Harlow

H{":S/ District Council =

Essac Courty Courcl — Council

ull
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk Workine fogether for Harfow Hertfordshire| P ag e 2 5



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

3.6 All points raised by respondents through the consultation have been subject to consideration.
The first table, in Appendix A, summarises the points raised in response to the consultation
and the proposed amendments to the draft Charter, where considered appropriate, in relation
to them.

3.7 The draft Charter was also subject to consideration by the Quality Review Panel (QRP) in April
2023. The Panel was supportive of the approach and was pleased to see the document
coming forward. It considered that ‘Charter’ is the right terminology for the document, setting
the right expectations, the principles included seem appropriate and that the draft Charter
strikes the right balance between detail and brevity.

3.8 The feedback from the QRP has also been considered in detail, Appendix B comprises the
report from the Panel. Appendix C sets out the detailed consideration of the points raised by
the Panel and where amendment has been made to the draft Charter as a result.

3.9 The consultation exercise sought to draw from the outcomes of the Your Quality-of-Life
consultation undertaken in late 2022. Following that consultation, the Quality-of-Life
Foundation, one of the partners in the consultation, jointly drew up an Action Plan with the
HGGT officer team. This was endorsed at the HGGT Board meeting of 7 February 2023. One
of the identified actions was to seek the engagement of under-represented groups in
subsequent consultation exercises. In that respect, engagement with a younger person
audience was undertaken through the Harlow and Epping Forest Youth Council meetings in
August and September 2023.

3.10 This consultation was led on behalf of the HGGT partners by consultancy 2-3 degrees. The
post engagement report of 2-3 degrees is attached as Appendix D.

3.11 Appendix E comprises a further schedule of amendments to the draft Charter including:

o An amendment to the Charter as a result of the young persons engagement referred to
above.

¢ Amendments that have been considered appropriate as a result of further internal officer
review of the document.

¢ Amendments that are considered appropriate as a result of scenario testing of the draft
Charter as recommended by the QRP.

The full details of the scenario testing exercise (following the review of the Charter by the
QRP) are set out in Appendix F. Finally, Appendix G comprises the final version of the
Charter for agreement. The only subsequent further amendment required will be to update
the Foreword in the document. Delegated authority is sought to enable this to be undertaken
by the Director in consultation with the Joint Committee Chair.

@ Epping Forest Ty "
(5% (Eomcons MM Hoow R
P ag e 2 6 www.eppinglorestde.gov.uk ki Wisrking topether for Harfow



41

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Implications:

Once adopted, the Stewardship Charter will be a material consideration in the determination
of planning applications. It will also be considered in pre-application discussions and
negotiations and other relevant development management and planning policy decisions. It
will be necessary and appropriate for landowners and developers to take account of the
Charter in the formulation of development proposals. It will also be a reasonable expectation
of community representatives and other stakeholders that the 5 Council partners of HGGT
seek to secure the outcomes set out in the Charter.

Resource Implications

Securing appropriate stewardship outcomes at the Garden Town does have resource
implications. One of the six principles set out in the Charter relates to the need for
transparent and appropriate financial resilience, management and governance. Whilst there
are financial implications for the delivery of good quality stewardship outcomes, it is not
considered that the adoption of this Charter has significance in relation to those financial
implications. They would need to be addressed regardless of the adoption of the Charter.

Equalities and Diversity
Equality Impact Assessment

Is this a new policy (or decision) or a change to | Yes
an existing policy, practice or project?

Describe the main aims, objectives and purpose | To set out the expectations of the 5
of the policy or decision Council partners of HGGT in relation
to appropriate stewardship outcomes
for Garden Town developments.

What outcome(s) are you hoping to achieve (ie Implementation of acceptable and
decommissioning or commissioning a service)? | appropriate stewardship outcomes
across Garden Town developments.

Does or will the policy or decision affect: Service users and the wider
e service users community. Landowners and
e employees developers will be expected to have
e the wider community or groups of regard to the Charter in the
people, particularly where there are preparation of proposals for the
areas of known inequalities? development of sites and land.

The wider community and

community stakeholders will expect

(Easty Epping Forest — ']
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk e

- Page 27



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

to see the outcomes set out in the
Charter delivered within
developments coming forward.

Will the policy or decision influence how No
organisations operate?

Will the policy or decision involve substantial No
changes in resources?

Is this policy or decision associated with any of The Charter is related to the policies in

the Council’s other policies and how, if place across the 5 Council partners of
applicable, does the proposed policy support HGGT which seek to achieve
corporate outcomes? appropriate stewardship outcomes for

the development of sites. It supports
the delivery of corporate policies in this
respect.

What does the information tell you about those N/A
groups identified?

Have you consulted or involved those groups Yes — a range of views were set out as
that are likely to be affected by the policy or summarized in the appendices to this
decision you want to implement? If so, what report. The appendices also set out
were their views and how have their views where those views have resulted in
influenced your decision? amendment to the draft Charter.

If you have not consulted or engaged with N/A

communities that are likely to be affected by the
policy or decision, give details about when you
intend to carry out consultation or provide
reasons for why you feel this is not necessary:

Use this section to assess any potential impact on equality groups based on what
you now know.

Age, Disability, Gender, Gender reassignment, [There is not considered to be any
Pregnancy/maternity, Marriage/civil partnership, |impact in relation to protected groups.
Race, Religion/belief, Sexual orientation

Does the EqlA indicate that the policy or
decision would have a medium or high adverse No
impact on one or more equality groups?

@ Epping Forest — HC]HOW

srkine towerher for Harlow

T
He’!\j? District Council = Qv ”
Page 238 & e R ——t e orich



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

HGGT Vision Assurance

1. What principles of the HGGT Vision does this seek to achieve?

The delivery of appropriate and high quality stewardship outcomes as a result of new
developments coming forward as part of the Garden Town.

2. What steps have been taken to ensure the HGGT Vision is embedded into the project?

The Stewardship Charter represents an element of delivery of the HGGT Vision. It is based
on the concept set out in the Vision that stewardship is a thread that binds together all of the
Key Principles for Healthy Growth set out in the Vision.

@ Epping Forest — ']
”{"_j} @ District Council ~ [E=S 1Mo "
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk Sty Plrker Keadhes v oo Page 29




0€ abed

Appendix A - Summary of consultation

Generalised, procedural or Issue based comments

Key to Respondents

CEG and HLM Commercial Estates Group and Hallam Land Management
HCS Harlow Civic Society
HEG NPG Hunsdon, Eastwick and Gilston Neighbourhood Plan Group
PfP Places for People
Issue Comment Respondent Response Amendment proposed to draft Charter
making comment
General EHDC should not adopt the Charter, it is not HEG NPG The Charter sets out No amendment proposed.
comment in needed for the Gilston Area and not in the strategic and high level
objection interests of the residents of East Herts. principles for the

delivery of
stewardship
arrangements across
the Garden Town. Itis
acknowledged, of
course, that detailed
arrangements for the
Gilston Area are
emerging through the
strategy submitted by
the applicants (Gilston
Area Stewardship and
Governance Strategy)




T¢ obed

and the arrangements
to be set out in the
Gilston Area s106
Planning Obligation
Agreement. The
Charter does not seek
to cut across emerging
arrangements. Given
the strategic nature of
the principles it is
considered that these
will support ongoing
development of
stewardship
arrangements at
Gilston and therefore
the Charter remains
relevant to the
interests of existing
and new residents in
the Gilston Area and
across the Garden
Town.

Flexibility

Sufficiently flexible to be applied to a range of | HCS Acknowledged No amendment proposed.
developments with differing circumstances.
The draft Charter sets out various activities, CEG and HLM Acknowledged — the Amended wording to the fifth bullet on

actions and outputs at various stages. Itis
acknowledged that these have been
introduced to secure early thinking and the
Charter is to be material to the determination
of planning applications. However, there
should be flexibility associated with the scale

aim of the Charteris to
establish high level
principles and steps
that should be
undertaken to ensure
stewardship

page 11 under Successful new places as
part of Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
as follows:

This Charter is required to be
considered in the determination of




2€ abed

and delivery arrangements of individual
schemes allowing stewardship arrangements
to evolve and be finalised appropriately. It
should be pragmatic and flexible. This would
not dilute overall delivery and would
recognise different delivery models. There
are differences between Gilston and Latton
Priory. Latton Priory sets out one possible
approach to stewardship. North Weald
Bassett Parish Council has expressed an
interest in involvement in this. The TCPA
acknowledges that local circumstances are
different so flexibility is to be retained and the
Charter applied pragmatically.

arrangements of an
appropriate quality
and robustness are
implemented. Itis
also intended to be
flexible in its
application — but
ensuring that
acceptable quality
outputs are achieved.
Noted that the current
checklist and timeline
arrangements may
appear inflexible.

planning applications relating to the
Garden Town. and;-as-such;

The requirements of the Charter can be
interpreted and applied flexibly,
provided all proposals for stewardship
arrangements can must demonstrate
that they have had regard to its
Principles and deliver outcomes that
are aligned with them. Local site and
delivery circumstances will be taken
into account when the Principals of the
Charter are applied. Where
stewardship arrangements are
secured....... (no further change to para)

It is important to note that there is a need for
flexibility in how the Charter is applied in the
planning process. A different range of

Pegasus Group on
behalf of Martin
Grant Homes,

Noted and response as
above

Amendment as above.

measures may be required for different sites Persimmon
and proposals, and it is important that the Homes and TW,
Charter has flexibility to adapt to those Water Lane
different characteristics. The stewardship
arrangements need also to be attuned to
development feasibility, development viability
and long-term revenue viability.
Democracy and | The Charter fails to give any recognition to HEG NPG The Charter does not Amendment to para 4.3 to add:

Governance

local democracy in the form of the Parish
Councils (Hunsdon and Eastwick and Gilston).
The Gilston Area Stewardship and
Governance Strategy accepted that Parish
Councils will have an important role to play,
but the Charter does not mention this. The

seek to define
governance
arrangements. It only
seeks to set out
principles in relation
to transparency and

Governance arrangements can build on
and/or involve existing structures in
place, eg Parish Councils.




ec abed

NPG question whether this is a policy position
that EHDC are willing to support

accountability.
Governance
arrangements for the
Gilston Area will
continue to emerge
through the
requirements of the
s106 Planning
Obligation Agreement.
The Charter does not
preclude the
involvement in this of
the existing Parish
Councils.
Acknowledged that a
lack of wording to this
effect may appear to
give no recognition to
this possibility.

Community Meaningful participation of local people in the | HCS Acknowledged No amendment proposed.
involvement complete stewardship process will be one of

the keys to its success.
Funding The draft Charter fails to address the need for | HEG NPG Para 5.5 refersto a Amendment of para 5.5 as follows:

an equitable balance to the funding of a
stewardship body between service charges
and capital endowment. The Charter has to
recognise that such endowments will be
required particularly as forthcoming
legislation may limit the level of service or
estate charges.

diversity of income
sources including
endowment of the
stewardship body with
income generating
assets. Acknowledged
that this does not

..... This diversity of income sources will
include capital endowment and the
endowment of the Stewardship Body
with physical assets........




7€ obed

specify capital

Endorsement
and adoption

endowments.
The Charter must be adopted by all planning HCS Acknowledged. Itis No amendment proposed.
authorities so that it becomes a material anticipated that the
consideration in planning application Charter will be
determination. adopted by all the
Garden Town
partners.
Consideration to be given to how the Charter | HCS The introduction to No amendment proposed.

can be applied to all developments in the GT
area

the Charter indicates
that it is primarily
expected to apply to
the four new Garden
Town communities but
that it is also to be
taken into account in
relation to other
development
proposals coming
forward in the Garden
Town.

Anticipated that its
applicability to sites
outside of the four
new Garden Town
communities will be
considered in relation
to proposals as the
come forward.




G¢ abed

The Principles in the Charter should be carried | HCS Acknowledged. Itis No amendment proposed.
through into development plans and delivery. proposed that the
Charter is material to
the consideration of
development
proposals and the
delivery of them.
Implementation | Appropriate conditions would need to be HCS Acknowledged — it is No amendment proposed.
applied in relation to planning permissions, anticipated that
which are then monitored and enforced. appropriate
arrangements will be
secured through either
or both of s106
Planning Obligation
Agreements and
conditions.
Stewardship processes should start from the HCS Acknowledged and Foreword will be updated generally to
earliest stages in the development process, agreed. Thisis set out | reflect the draft final status of the
through to first occupation and beyond. in the Foreword of the | Charter, retaining this point.
Charter.
Early proactive and ongoing engagement with | HCS Acknowledged and No amendment proposed.
landowners and developers is essential to get agreed. Landowners
them to adopt the Charter principles, ensure and developers to be
awareness of the requirements and for reminded of
developments to be successful. requirements of the
Charter once finalised.
Monitoring Lack of clarity in relation to whether PfP Qol Monitoring No amendment proposed as this will

consultation will take place regarding the
Quality Monitoring Framework.

Strategy is to be
subject to appropriate
stakeholder
consultation.

become an historical procedural matter.




9¢ abed

QRP review of

Neither the public nor the EHDC Executive

HEG NPG

The draft Charter was

See separate details of amendment the

the draft have seen the outcome of the review of the permitted to proceed | Charter as a result of the advice of the
Charter draft Charter by the QRP. It appears strange to consultation in QRP.
that the draft has proceeded to consultation advance of the
in advance of the incorporation of the advice publication of the QRP
from the QRP. That advice should be advice as a result of
published respective timing. The
QRP advice will be
published alongside
this draft Charter
consultation feedback
and amendments
made to the draft
Charter as a result of
the QRP advice.
Status Clarity is required as to the status of this Pegasus Group on | The Charter currently No amendment proposed.

document and how it relates to the Adopted
Epping Forest Local Plan. It is assumed that
this is a guidance document to set out the
aspirations of the Council. The Inspector
examining the Local Plan referred to the
status of Garden Town Documents and stated
that it is not sound to require applications to
be 'in general conformity' with these
unexamined non-statutory documents.
Therefore, proposals should 'have regard to'
the Stewardship Charter only rather than
general compliance.

behalf of Martin
Grant Homes,
Persimmon
Homes and TW,
Water Lane

sets out in the
Introduction that it is
intended to be
guidance to support
landowners,
developers and site
promoters. It will be
taken into account
when assessing the
acceptability of
development
proposals coming
forward as part of the
Garden Town; as such
it is intended to be a




)€ abed

material planning
consideration in the
determination of
planning applications.
In the section
regarding Successful
New Places the
Charter sets out that
all proposals for
stewardship
arrangements must
demonstrate that they
have had regard to its
Principles. The
Charter does not
require proposals to
be in general
conformity with its
requirements.

General
comments in
support

Need for development around Harlow is
recognised and the overall Vision, guidance
and policies of HGGT are supported.

HCS

Acknowledged

No amendment proposed.

Stewardship is at the heart of the Garden City
model, creating healthy, thriving new
communities, empowering people to have a
say and providing opportunities for active
citizenship. Charter is welcomed.

HCS

Acknowledged

No amendment proposed.

Support the process and comprehensive
principles covering key areas.

HCS

Acknowledged

No amendment proposed.




g¢ abed

Implementation of the charter will provide
the opportunity to contribute to the creation
of sustainable high quality communities.

HCS

Acknowledged

No amendment proposed.

Developers will benefit from the
implementation of the Charter as their
developments will be places where people
want to live and be active in the community.

HCS

Acknowledged

No amendment proposed.

To be hoped that the process set out in the
Charter will become a natural part of the
planning and delivery of developments in the
Garden Town so that places are created
where people and the environment can
flourish.

HCS

Acknowledged

No amendment proposed.

Supportive of long term stewardship and the
creation of high quality environments at
Latton Priory and integration with the existing
communities in HGGT.

CEG and HLM

Acknowledged

No amendment proposed.

Recognised that long term stewardship
requirements are embedded in policies SP2
and SP3 of the Epping Forest Local Plan.

CEG and HLM

Acknowledged

No amendment proposed.

These principles refine the emerging
Stewardship Principles and Objectives which
were published in 2022 and which HLM and
CEG have confirmed their commitment to
following in the Latton Priory Strategic
Masterplan Framework, and which will be
included in any Section 106 agreement
secured as part of an outline application.

CEG and HLM

Acknowledged

No amendment proposed.




6E abed

Welcome proposals to help ensure quality of | PfP Acknowledged and No amendment proposed.

stewardship across the Garden Town and noted that PfP indicate

they reflect the ambitions that PfP have set at alignment and synergy

Gilston in the Gilston Area Stewardship and between the Charter

Governance Strategy. and the Gilston Area

Stewardship and
Governance Strategy.

Welcomed and sets out a direction of travel PfP Acknowledged No amendment proposed.

that is supported.

Support the arrangements for high quality, Pegasus Group on | Acknowledged No amendment proposed.

long -term stewardship of the new garden behalf of Martin

communities. We support the six principles Grant Homes,

as set out in the Charter as non-statutory Persimmon

guidance. Homes and TW,

Water Lane
Location specific comments
Location/ Issue | Comment Respondent Response Amendment proposed to draft Charter
making comment

Relationship The NPG is concerned and puzzled that HEG NPG The Charter is high level | The amendments set out above in relation
between the HGGTB seems to be usurping the and strategic in nature. | to the fifth bullet of page 11 (Successful
Charter and the | legal powers and functions of EHDC in Is seeks to set out new places) are considered to further
emerging publishing its own Charter, with the Principles that will guide | clarify this point. As above, amendment
arrangements intention that it applies to the Gilston the stewardship proposed is as follows:
for stewardship | Area. arrangements that are
in the Gilston developed for sites This Charter is required to be considered

Area, including
as set out in the

coming forward. The
Charter is not

in the determination of planning




oY abed

Gilston Area
Stewardship and
Governance
Strategy
(submitted by
the Gilston Area
applicants,
Places for
People and
Taylor Wimpey)

prescriptive and seeks
to be suitably adaptable
and flexible so that the
most appropriate
detailed arrangements
for each site can come
forward.

The Charter will not
result any individual
partner legal powers
being overridden. In
relation to Gilston, the
arrangements that East
Herts DC, as the Local
Planning Authority for
the Gilston Area, has set
out in the proposed
conditions to be applied
to the planning
permissions and the
proposed s106 Planning
Obligation Agreement
will not be altered by
the Charter.

applications relating to the Garden Town.
andas-such;

The requirements of the Charter can be
interpreted and applied flexibly,
provided all proposals for stewardship
arrangements can must-demonstrate that
they have had regard to its Principles and
deliver outcomes that are aligned with
them. Local site and delivery
circumstances will be taken into account
when the Principals of the Charter are
applied. Where stewardship
arrangements are secured....... (no further
change to para)

How will the Charter fit with the
granting of planning permissions in the
Gilston Area and the associated
conditions and s106 Agreement?

HEG NPG

The Charter will not
amend the
arrangements proposed
for the Gilston Area, by
virtue of the conditions
to be applied to the
Gilston Area planning

No amendment proposed.




T obed

permissions and the
s106 Planning
Obligation Agreement.
It is anticipated that the
outline planning
decisions will be
released in advance of
the finalisation of the
Charter. There will be
no requirement to
retrospectively consider
the materiality of the
Charter in relation to
the Gilston Area
stewardship planning
application proposals.

How will decision makers be expected to
reconcile the two sets of rules?

HEG NPG

The Charter is not
considered to be
inconsistent with the
emerging arrangements
proposed for the Gilston
Area, or emerging in
relation to any other
Garden Town site. The
Charter establishes a set
of high level principles.
More detail will come
forward through the
proposed conditions to
be applied to planning
permissions and s106
Planning Obligation

No amendment proposed.




2t obed

Agreements. Itis not
anticipated that there
will not be a
requirement for two
sets of rules to be
reconciled. Itis not
uncommon for detailed
development and
implementation
arrangements to be
formulated within the
context of wider policy
and guidance
documents.

By endorsing the Charter, EHDC will
potentially place itself into a conflict of
interest and legal difficulty not to
mention planning uncertainties which
will be open to exploitation in the
future?

HEG NPG

The draft Charter, the
Gilston Area
Stewardship and
Governance Strategy
and the emerging
stewardship
arrangements for the
Gilston area are not
seen as being in conflict
and presenting any legal
difficulties in that
respect.

The Charter seeks to
establish high level
principles. More detail
is provided in the
Gilston Area

No amendment proposed.




oy obed

Stewardship and
Governance Strategy,
proposed planning
conditions and through
the s106 Planning
Obligation Agreement.

Detailed stewardship
arrangements for the
Gilston Area will be
established in the s106
Planning Obligation
Agreement and the
conditions applied to
the planning
permissions. These
arrangements will be
definitive once settled
and there would not be
any planning
uncertainties as a result.

Assets which
potentially serve
a broad area
and function

The Gilston Area Stewardship and
Governance strategy does refer to some
assets which serve a broader public and
function than the Gilston Area.
However, the Charter does not refer to
that and covers the Gilston Area in its
entirety.

HEG NPG

The Charter is proposed
to be applied to the
entirety of the Garden
Town. Otherwise, its
principles will only
applicable to parts of
the area, which would
not be appropriate. The
Charter does not seek to
establish the role and
function of assets, but is

No amendment proposed.




vt abed

focussed on delivery,
guality and community
involvement. There is
not considered to be
any inconsistency
between the Charter
and the Gilston Area
Stewardship and
Governance Strategy in
this respect.

No attempt has been made to limit the HEG NPG Noted. It is anticipated No amendment proposed.
Charter to shared community assets that the Charter should
and, in any event, this would not be the apply to all asset types.
place where such assets should be It sets out high level
identified. principles only, so does
not seek to define the
type, scope and
operation of any of the
assets.
Any shared assets with Harlow can be HEG NPG This is noted and No amendment proposed.
dealt with by the (Gilston Area) agreed. The Charter
stewardship body, whose main priority does not seek to define
will be to look after the interests of the type, scope and
residents of the Gilston Area. This operation of assets.
(Gilston Area stewardship arrangement)
would not preclude collaboration, where
appropriate.
Gilston Area The draft Charter fails to recognise the HEG NPG The draft Charter does No amendment proposed.

characteristics

particular characteristic of the Gilston
Area in that many hundreds of hectares

not seek to differentiate
between the types and




Gy abed

of land are to be retained undeveloped
and held for the community in trust.
This is far from the green wedge policies
of Harlow which are mentioned in the
draft

scales of assets. It seeks
to apply a set of high
level principles to all of
them. Individual
characteristics of assets
are recognised and it is
not anticipated that the
Charter treats them any
more or less favourably
as a result.

Princess
Alexandra
Hospital

PAH is progressing a Business Case for the
delivery of its preferred development option
comprising a new and modern state-of-the-
art acute Hospital, in the form of a Health
and Well-Being Campus on approximately
19 hectares of land located north of the
adjacent M11 Motorway Junction 7a and
south of Pincey Brook.

Given the specific function and nature of an
acute hospital, it is intended that PAH would
retain ownership, management and
maintenance responsibility for the public
open space areas within the development,
and that these would not be transferred to
an external Stewardship Body.

With the above background position in
relation to PAH in mind, although we are
broadly supportive of the Stewardship
Charter’s intentions with regard to ensuring
community assets are planned, provided

PAH

It is anticipated that the
Charter will be sufficiently
flexible to accommodate
and respond to the different
characteristics of the sites
coming forward for
development in the Garden
Town.

The Charter does not seek
to determine responsibility
of stewardship
arrangements, only to
establish a set of high level
principles which will ensure
that stewardship
arrangements of an
acceptable quality will be
implemented. The
particular characteristics of
the proposed acute hospital
development are

No amendment proposed.




o abed

and maintained to a high standard, it should
be acknowledged that parts of the
requirements set out in the draft Charter
are not applicable or appropriate to the
operation and function of the proposed
acute hospital development.

acknowledged. ltis
anticipated that proposals
for the development of the
acute hospital site should
continue to have regard to
the Principles set out in the
Charter.

Comments on specific points in the draft Charter

setting out ‘principles for stewardship in
relation to the proposed site’.

reference to early setting out of
principles for stewardship is
appropriate.

Charter Reference | Comment Respondent | Response Amendment proposed to draft
making Charter
comment

Timeline (page 12) | Add box to pre-application column PfP Acknowledged and agreed that Amendment to the first box on

the timeline under pre-
application stage as below:

Action: Initiate engagement and
ensure continuation through all
stewardship stages. Set out
principles for stewardship for
the site and engagement
processes in strategy

Output: Engagement Strategy
and Principles for Stewardship.

Amendment to para 1.4 as
follows:

Principles for Stewardship, Aan
Engagement Strategy and
Stewardship Delivery Programme




/v abed

will be produced early in the
consideration of development
proposals.

Outline pp — request for clarification in PfP This part of the timeline is No amendment proposed.
relation to what is to be monitored under indicating that consideration
‘outcome monitoring and quality should be given to that point,
assurance’ that is, what indicators should be
monitored. The Charter is not
establishing the indicators but
seeking that site developers etc,
give consideration to the matter.
Full or RM column — financial planning PfP Acknowledged. The Timeline is No amendment proposed.
will depend on what assets are coming anticipated to be applied in a
forward. Some financial planning flexible way in relation to the
matters would be dealt with through details for delivery at individual
Asset Management Plans. sites.
Suggest the word business be added PfP Acknowledged and agreed. Amendment to include the word
before financial planning. Business in the Financial Planning
boxes on the timeline.
Would not anticipate need for PfP Acknowledged. Flexible No amendment proposed.

community development and social value
strategy for each application. These
would be site wide with a programme for
the Trust to deliver each year.

application of the requirements
of the Timeline will be associated
with the way in which proposals
come forward. Community
Development and Social Value
Strategies would not be expected
in association with numerous
reserved matter applications, if
they were provided as part of




gy abed

outline planning application
proposals.

No definition for Terms of Reference and
suggest adding ‘or equivalent’ depending
on the legal entity.

Pfp

Noted, however considered that
reference to Terms of Reference
is sufficiently generic to be
understood as the definition of
the scope and remit of any group
or project.

No amendment proposed.

Construction/ implementation -
Clarification would be helpful with
regards when a business plan would be
required versus an asset management
plan.

PfP

Considered that both would be
required in the significant
majority of cases, unless
proposals are only providing a
limited number of assets.
Further details are included in
the detail relating to Principle 5 —
Financial Sustainability. Business
planning would deal with the
entirety of financial and business
sustainability for stewardship
proposals. Asset Management
Plans would be focussed around
the sustainability of specific
assets.

No amendment proposed.

Occupation column — suggest that
reference is amended to be that
stewardship body is operational rather
than in place. In place could be satisfied
by a company being registered — but it
may not be operational.

pfp

Agreed.

Amendment to Governance and
Representation box under
Occupation section of the
Timeline as follows:

Stewardship Body operational in

place




61 abed

Para 1.3 Refers to four areas — believe that there PfP Noted and Agreed. This is the Amendment to the fourth bullet
should be a fifth — developing community main focus of Principle 3 of the under para 1.3 as follows:
wellbeing and capacity building. This is Charter — community
equally important. development. Agreed that ¢ Ongoing Care and

reference can be made to this Management: Caring for social

important element of activity in and physical assets, including

this early section of the Charter their enhancement and / or

in relation to collaboration. replacement, community
development, wellbeing and
capacity building and providing
stewardship services in
perpetuity.

Para 1.4 As stewardship responsibility for the PAH Position noted. Appropriate time | No amendment proposed.
publicly accessible areas to be provided for consideration to be given to
within the proposed health and wellbeing the matter will be through the
campus would be retained by PAH, the assessment of the planning
requirement for community engagement application for the hospital
in the development of PAH’s proposals and any stewardship
management plan is not considered to be arrangements emerging through
applicable in this instance. As such, PAH those proposals.
would not propose to prepare an
Engagement Strategy in relation to its
management plan, as set out at
paragraph 1.4.

Para 1.6 A Stewardship Delivery Programme could | PAH As above No amendment proposed.

be prepared, in accordance with the
requirements set out at paragraph 1.6, to
identify when PAH would provide
detailed proposals for the long-term
management and maintenance of the




0G abed

publicly accessible parts of the new
hospital site.

Para 1.7

PAH will also be undertaking a
community engagement exercise prior to
submitting an outline planning
application for the proposed hospital
development, which will seek views on
the design and development on the
overall scheme, including the publicly
accessible areas, which meets the
requirements set out at paragraph 1.7.
Details of this engagement would be
included in a Community Consultation
Statement to be submitted as part of the
planning application.

PAH

As above

No amendment proposed.

With regard to the reference to strategies
and plans for ecology and Biodiversity net
gain (BNG), there should be an
awareness that BNG is not readily
compatible with any recreational uses as
its focus is habitats. It is suggested
changing this to 'ecology and green
infrastructure' and then reference Gl
Framework.

Homes
England

Acknowledged and agreed. The
draft Charter sought to capture
this point by referring (in para
1.7) to exploring the relationship
between ecology and biodiversity
net gain and recreational uses.
Wording can be amended to
better capture this point.

Amend wording of third bullet
under para 1.7 as follows:

¢ Ecology, and Biodiversity net
gain and green infrastructure —
which should explore the
opportunities potentially
available to ensure ecological
outcomes, the relationship with
recreational uses, guidance in
the Green Infrastructure
Framework, future dynamic
approaches to land managed by a
Stewardship Body and positive
financial outcomes this may
enable;




TG obed

Para 1.8 Should also include a review PfP Para 1.8 sets out the proposed No amendment proposed
of any Governance and Stewardship approach to monitoring
Strategy. stewardship outcomes. The
point regarding reviewing
Governance and Stewardship
strategies is noted and that may
be a result of outcome
monitoring. However, it is not
considered it is necessary to be
explicit in relation to that in the
Charter.
Para 2.3 Could be clearer that collaboration with PfP Acknowledged. Planning policies | No amendment proposed
the community is set within the will set a context for much of the
context of applicable current planning guidance set out in the Charter
policies. and it is considered that this
addressed in the Introduction
and Context sections of the
Charter.
As discussed above, PAH’s community PAH Acknowledged No amendment proposed
consultation exercise will seek views on
the planning, design and delivery of the
publicly accessible parts of the overall
health and wellbeing campus, which will
be taken into account in the
development of the scheme’s design, as
required by paragraph 2.3 of the draft
Charter.
Para 2.6 Incomplete HEG NPG Acknowledged that the first Include at the beginning of para

sentence of para 2.6 is missing.

2.6:




2S abed

Alongside planning and design,
Asset Management Plans will
also be required to......

Para 2.7

The proposed Management Plan for the
publicly accessible parts of the
development would meet the
requirements set out at paragraph 2.7, as
it would set out the standards to which
these areas would be delivered.

PAH

Acknowledged

No amendment proposed

Para 2.9

A good management company is careful
to audit the condition of the landscape
before taking it on; and this extends to
undertaking soil surveys to check
compatibility of planting to soil type and
its health.

Homes
England

Acknowledged and agreed

No amendment proposed

Para 2.10

Contrary to the requirements of
paragraph 2.10, it is not proposed to
transfer ownership of the publicly
accessible areas within the health and
wellbeing campus, which would remain
in PAH’s ownership as custodian of the
acute hospital and its environs.

PAH

Noted

No amendment proposed

Principle 3

The requirements of Principle 3 are not
considered to be relevant to PAH’s
proposals, as they do not represent a
community project. Therefore, the details
of Principle 3 are not considered further
in this response.

PAH

Noted

No amendment proposed




G abed

The definition of 'development of the Vinci Dev’ts | Point acknowledged. The section | No amendment proposed
community' is questioned. This would be of the draft Charter referred to
expected to have included the community development
opportunity for personal development, projects, which can include
upskilling, re-skilling, of individual and people focussed projects. Given
collective members of the existing and the strategic nature of the
new community, as much as being about Charter it is not considered
being involved in asset management. necessary to be specific in
relation to the aims and
The focus seems to be on asset outcomes for any projects
management covering the animation and coming forward. The Charter
management of the spaces and assets. references Social Value strategies
but what about personal growth and within which more specific
opportunity? outcomes can be identified.
Much can be done during the
development process of these places and
create economic legacy for community
members. The language regarding social
value in this principle is too loose and
ambiguous.
Para 3.8 Point 3: we recommend broadening the PfP The para refers to examples of No amendment proposed
list as the stewardship body will communication tools and is not
utilise a range of communication tools intended to be exhaustive. The
including website, newsletter, use of additional communication
noticeboards, and channels is welcomed.
social media to share information.
Principle 4 As the publicly accessible parts of the PAH Noted No amendment proposed

proposed health and wellbeing campus
are not proposed to be transferred to a
Stewardship Body, the majority of




G abed

requirements set out for this principle
would not be applicable.

Similarly, setting up a Shadow/ Advisory
Stewardship Body would not be
applicable in this instance. A Planning
Performance Agreement (PPA) is in place
between PAH, Epping Forest District
Council (EFDC), Harlow District Council
(HDC) and Essex County Council (ECC) to
progress the planning elements of the
Hospital development at the pre-
planning application stage in advance of a
related planning application(s) on the
identified site. As part of this process,
workshops will be held with
representatives from the above local
authorities to discuss various aspects of
the proposals, including the publicly
accessible areas and their long-term
maintenance and management.

A lot of text through the document can
apply to governance structures of both
community stewardship bodies and
management companies while seeming
perhaps to be about community
stewardship organisations without
explicitly saying so. Can this be made
more explicit?

Homes
England

The guidance in the Charter is
intended to apply to all elements
of stewardship arrangements as
would be appropriate.

Amendment by addition of a
further bullet in the Introduction
and Context section under Who
and What is this Charter for as
follows:

e The guidance in the
Charter is intended to
apply to all elements of
stewardship




GG abed

arrangements as would

be appropriate.
Can indicative model structures with Vinci Dev’ts | This is considered to be too No amendment proposed
typical representative examples be definitive for this Charter.
included to help the community Appropriate representative
challenge developer proposals for such models would be explored in the
approaches? delivery of stewardship
arrangements.
Para4.1 Point 5: Clarification requested as to the PfP This point seeks to set out that No amendment proposed
aims and objectives behind this point Stewardship Bodies should be
and, in particular, we question what is sufficiently flexible to consider
meant by ‘integrate’? We would like to adapting their arrangements in
emphasise that Places for People will relation to future circumstances.
prioritise the setting up of a Trust that Position of PfP to support Gilston
works well at Gilston Park, (an enormous stewardship arrangements to
task in itself) and whilst we support the work alongside and other
Trust in any work undertaken alongside stewardship body noted. The
other stewardship bodies we do not Charter does not seek to impose
support the suggestion that integration any integrated arrangement.
will be imposed upon the Gilston Park
Trust.
Para 4.4 Point 2: Community development activity | PfP Acknowledged and noted. The Amendment to text as follows:

can also be delivered independently of
assets through festivals or similar events,
we suggest adding further text to confirm
this.

point being conveyed in this
bullet is that community
development should not be given
a lower priority that asset
development. Acknowledged
that it can take place
independent of assets.

e Community development and
asset development should both

be are progressed together to
optimise value




9G abed

Para 4.7 For clarity it is not possible to pay a salary | PfP Acknowledged. The text refers to | No amendment proposed
for charitable trustees conducting the potential for remuneration
their role on the board, whereas for community representatives.
reasonable expenses are accepted by the Noted that appropriate
Charity Commission. regulations will be adhered to
where any remuneration is
considered.
Para 4.8 It is rare for a community asset to be in PfP Noted that it may be rare for No amendment proposed
place before first occupation as the community assets to be delivered
body who is to own/manage it needs to prior to residential occupations.
be in place first, we recommend deleting However, there would appear to
‘or completion of the first community be potential for it to occur, for
asset’. example through early delivery of
green space.
Para 5.1 The draft Charter requires the publication | PAH Noted No amendment proposed
and circulation of a Business Plan relating
to the stewardship arrangements for
publicly accessible land (paragraphs 5.1-
5.3). However, as stewardship
responsibilities would remain with PAH
for the Hospital development, it is not
considered necessary for PAH’s business
plan to be published or circulated.
Para5.4 Please note that this paragraph states PfP Earlier text has been checked for | No amendment proposed

that asset management plans must

be agreed before the transfer of assets to
the stewardship body, which appears to
be at odds with earlier statements in the
draft charter.

inconsistency and none
identified. Earlier references are
to the development of asset
management plans during
construction and delivery of the
asset. It is expected they would




)G abed

be completed by the time of
transfer of the asset.

The requirement to provide an Asset
Management Plan (paragraph 5.4) would
be met by the Management Plan to be
prepared and secured as part of the
planning application for the hospital
development. The Management Plan
could include allowance for independent
monitoring of the condition of the
publicly accessible parts of the Hospital
development, and this would be
discussed as part of the pre-application
and application stage liaison with the
LPA.

PAH

Noted

No amendment proposed

Para 5.6

It is important that a definition of
‘reasonable’ is provided to avoid
ambiguity.

pfp

This refers to the level of service
or estate charges. For the
Charter a reference to
reasonable is considered
sufficiently definitive in relation
to other costs that householders
and businesses would be
expected to bear. More
precision in relation to the level
of charges and a consideration of
their reasonableness will emerge
as stewardship arrangements
crystallise.

No amendment proposed




gG abed

Para 5.10

Please clarify the process i.e. would
concerns be raised to the Stewardship
Body first and then the Local Authority?

Pfp

The Charter does not seek to
establish the arrangements,
noting that different
arrangements may be
appropriate in the case of
different sites. It seeks to
establish that such arrangements
should be devised, as
appropriate, and be
implemented.

No amendment proposed

Checklist box after
para 5.10

Outline Business Plan — please clarify if
this refers to submission or approval
Asset Management Plan — please see
earlier comment about timing.

pfp

As indicated in relation to earlier
comments, It is anticipated that
the Charter is to be applied
flexibly in relation to the
particular circumstances of
individual sites. In general,
earlier actions are encouraged,
so this would include both the
submission and the approval of
the Outline Business Plan by
outline planning application
stage. However, it is expected
that Outline Business Plans will
subsequently evolve into detailed
plans.

In relation to Asset Management
Plans see earlier response above.

No amendment proposed

Para 6.5

It would be unrealistic to expect the
Stewardship Body to achieve these alone,
a combination of partners will need to

PfP

Acknowledged. It is expected
that stewardship arrangements
implemented would strive to

No amendment proposed




6G abed

participate. Please be mindful these
could become an overburden for the
Trust.

secure high environmental and
social outcomes aligned with the
Garden City principles on which
design and development is to be
based. Itis acknowledged that
Stewardship Bodies would seek
to collaborate with other
partners and stakeholders to
achieve outcomes. The Charter
seeks to quote monitoring
examples and other outcomes
can be identified and secured as
appropriate when stewardship
arrangements and the assets for
which they are responsible are
crystallised.

Principle 6

Targets for the achievement of positive
outcomes from the publicly accessible
areas within the proposed health and
wellbeing campus, as envisaged by
Principle 6, could be incorporated within
the Management Plan to be prepared as
part of the associated planning
application. As such, the requirements of
this Principle would be met.

PAH

Noted

No amendment proposed

Suggest that climate mitigation and
resilience is moved out from the indicator
list into a quality target list; then some
more explicit expression of what could be
achieved be set out in the indicator list eg

Homes
England

The text seeks to set out a range
of areas from which indicators
could be drawn. It would be
expected that more definitive
indicators would be identified
through emerging stewardship

No amendment proposed




09 abed

well placed trees along active travel
routes.

arrangements and it would be
inappropriate to be specific in
the Charter.

Glossary There is a definition in the main body of PfP Acknowledged —amendment of | Amendment of text in the
the charter for ‘community assets’. This is the reference in the Glossary Glossary as follows:
different to the definition of ‘assets’ in
the glossary. Community Assets or Assets
The definition of community Acknowledged Amendment to the text of the
development is limited in the Glossary. Glossary as follows:
We believe it is much more than this;
building the community, building Actions undertaken to enhance
capacity, resilience, community the community being created as
engagement and consultation. We a result of the development, its
recommend a more rounded definition is awareness of and sense of
included to reflect the jointly held ownership and control over the
ambitions. new places being created.
Community building, building
capacity, resilience, community
engagement and consultation.
Comments not directly related to content of the draft Charter
Issue Comment Respondent | Response Amendment proposed to draft
making Charter
comment
Planning Ensure all local residents are notified of Resident Each of the Garden Town No amendment proposed
application all planning applications and their dates (assumed) partners will have adopted a
notification so local residents can object in time Statement of Community

Involvement (SCI) setting out




T9 abed

arrangements for consultation
in relation to planning
applications. These
arrangements will usually
include for the notification of
local residents where they are
close/adjacent to the site of a
planning application. This zone
of notification will frequently be
expanded where proposals of a
significant nature are under
consideration.

Consultation No one has been informed of this website | Resident Notification of the consultation | No amendment proposed
website or how to make comments (assumed) was provided to all identified

HGGT stakeholders. Usual

social media channels were also

utilised to ensure that residents

could feedback to the

consultation.
Document Your documents above are impossible to | Resident Acknowledged. Final version of the Charter to be
accessibility read due to the size of the print (assumed) subject to accessibility check and

font size amended accordingly.




CONFIDENTIAL

FRAME PROJECTS

Harlow and Gilston Quality Review Panel

Report of Workshop Review Meeting: Draft Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
Stewardship Charter

Friday 28 April 2023
Via video conference

Panel
Peter Maxwell (chair)

Hanna Afolabi
Roland Karthaus

Attendees

lone Braddick Epping Forest District Council /
Harlow and Gilston Garden Town

Naisha Polaine Harlow and Gilston Garden Town

Rosalind Peebles Epping Forest District Council

Lucy Block Frame Projects

Roxanne Salburg Frame Projects
Apologies / report copied to

Deborah Denner Frame Projects

Confidentiality

This is a pre-application review, and therefore confidential. As public organisations
Harlow Council, East Hertfordshire District Council and Epping Forest District Council
are subject to the Freedom of Information Act (FOI) and Environmental Information
Regulations (EIR), and in the case of an FOI/EIR request may be obliged to release
project information submitted for review.

Report of Workshop Review Meeting

28 April 2023
Page 62 HG32_HGGT Stewardship Charter



CONFIDENTIAL

1. Project name and site address

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Stewardship Charter

2. Presenting team

Christopher Downes Essex County Council
Kevin Steptoe East Herts District Council
Molly Stroyman East Herts District Council
3. Planning authority briefing

The HGGT Stewardship Charter is being prepared by the five Partner Authorities to
ensure that a consistent, well considered, and effective approach to stewardship is
established for each of the Garden Town sites. The Charter has been informed by a
variety of discussion and engagement held over the past 12-months and builds upon
the principles and objectives prepared by the Partner Authorities as part of the Gilston
Area applications.

The intention is for the Charter to be endorsed by the three local planning authorities
(Epping Forest District Council, Harlow District Council, and East Herts District
Council). While the document is not intended to be a formal Supplementary Planning
Document, the Charter will be a material consideration in the determination of
planning applications related to the Garden Town’s strategic sites.

The Charter sets out six principles that the HGGT Partners will be expected to
achieve in relation to each of the new communities coming forward. The team have
engaged with Members in July 2022 and the Developers’ Forum in February 2023.
Further targeted engagement with neighbourhood groups will be carried out after
local elections in May 2023.

Officers would welcome feedback on the general content and form of the draft
Charter. The panel is also invited to advise on whether it feels that the document
fulfils the role expected of it in relation to the principles and objectives prepared by the
Partner Authorities. General comments regarding the readability of the Charter are
also sought, alongside responses to the key questions set out below:

o Whether the rationale and purpose of the Charter is sufficiently described?

e Are the proposed principles comprehensive enough in their scope?

e Does the Charter strike the right balance between detail and brevity?

¢ Would additional information on stewardship requirements and expectations
be useful for interested stakeholders?

Report of Workshop Review Meeting
28 April 2023
HG32_HGGT Stewardship Charter

Page 63



CONFIDENTIAL

5. Quality Review Panel’s views
Summary

The panel welcomes the presentation and is pleased to see this piece of work coming
forward. It notes that it would have been useful to have the Charter in place prior to
approval of the Gilston Village outline planning applications. However, the panel
recognises that the document will address retrospective issues, as well as be forward
thinking for areas of the Garden Town which are less developed.

The panel agrees that the ‘charter’ terminology is the right choice for this document
and that it sets the right expectations; giving sufficient weight as something that all
parties are expected to sign up to. The principles included seem appropriate, and the
panel feels that the Charter strikes the right balance between detail and brevity.
However, it suggests that further clarification of the requirements and expectations for
different stakeholder groups would be beneficial. Testing different scenarios would
help inform the guidance and ensure that worst case situations are anticipated.

The formation of an umbrella body overseeing the whole of the Garden Town seems
sensible, and will offer support to individual stewardship bodies, as well as providing a
common thread and level of ambition. However, the panel feels that expectations and
responsibility for differing parties need to be clarified. As costs will be passed onto
local residents and businesses, the panel suggests that clear communication will be
crucial to ensure that the community have a sense of control over spending decisions,
as well as avoiding duplication with Council tax and business rates for example. The
panel feels that a clear fallback position or strategy for negotiations should also be in
place, should stewardship measures fail.

Rationale and purpose

e The panel welcomes the development of the Stewardship Charter and feels
that it provides a fantastic opportunity to embed community ownership
measures within the newly planned Garden Town neighbourhoods.

e The rationale and purpose are well-developed, and the panel feels that the
proposed vision for how the Stewardship Charter will be implemented is clear.
Setting defined expectations of what needs to be demonstrated through the
design, planning and delivery stages will be important and should be included
in the document.

¢ The length of the document feels appropriate, and the panel suggests that
there is sufficient detail and content. It cautions making this any longer as it
could be off-putting to users.

e The use of the term ‘charter’ is appropriate and sets the right expectations.
However, stronger wording should be used when establishing the principles to
follow. For instance, using ‘consider’ could allow for interpretation and not be
direct enough.

Report of Workshop Review Meeting
28 April 2023
HG32_HGGT Stewardship Charter —

Page 64



CONFIDENTIAL

e Building on other strategies, as well as referencing the Quality of Life
monitoring, helps place the Charter within the wider vision for the Garden
Town

e Given that this document is coming forward midway through the planning
process for key areas of the Garden Town, the Charter should reflect on
lessons learnt. The Gilston Villages will provide a perfect opportunity to test
stewardship at scale and inform the development of the document.

e Scenario testing the Charter and its principles will help manage risks and
support the Garden Town in getting the right outcomes. Working back from
these potential scenarios will also help establish stewardship priorities and
understand the scope for negotiations with developers.

Masterplanning

o The panel feels that there needs to be a proactive approach to stewardship
embedded in the masterplanning process for the Garden Town. The Charter
could do more to allow and enable these kinds of opportunities.

e A potential outcome of stewardship could be joining up elements of the built
environment. For example, opportunities for community-operated power or
different models for utility provision could be considered. However, focussing
too closely on current standards, technologies and design approaches which
could quickly become out of date.

Governance

e The panel would like to see further consideration of how the Charter will be
enforced, along with the mechanisms for this, such as planning conditions or
Section 106 agreements. The document could be clearer about these
gateways.

e The panel agrees that a strategic view should be taken across the Garden
Town, to address what assets are best to be controlled at this level and how to
provide economies of scale for their operation and maintenance.

e Establishing an umbrella organisation seems crucial to achieving some
uniformity of service, control and governance of the various stewardship
bodies across the Garden Town. The panel feels that this will ensure high
standards, compatibility, and consistency of approach to stewardship.

e However, there could be tension between stewardship bodies and the
umbrella group, as the latter could be seen as less representative than the
individual groups in each area. The terms of reference will need to be
managed carefully to clarify roles and responsibilities.

Report of Workshop Review Meeting
28 April 2023
HG32_HGGT Stewardship Charter

Page 65



Page 66

CONFIDENTIAL

The panel feels that it is currently difficult to assess viability of stewardship at
scale. For example, it questions whether Latton Priory could perform as a
single stewardship model, given that community assets in this location may
not be sufficient to support the extent of upkeep expected.

As the key threshold for establishing a stewardship body may be linked to the
guantum and tenure of homes, as well as key assets, the panel feels that
governance measures will need to be adaptive to changing scenarios.

Financial sustainability

Report of Workshop Review Meeting
28 April 2023
HG32_HGGT Stewardship Charter —

The financial sustainability of the Charter will likely depend on business
planning arrangements. Further thought should be given to how relationships
with development partners will develop over time, particularly in terms of
responsibility and risk management.

The panel recognises that there is a need to focus on ensuring income to
service stewardship, but it would like to see further information on how this
works alongside partnerships with developers. For example, if stewardship-
owned assets are given priority locations, this could affect the viability of
operator-owned commercial units and have an impact on investment returns.

The type and number of assets that will be controlled by the stewardship
bodies should also be considered. This will affect potential costs and risks,
which could be significant if only the principal infrastructure and highways are
retained by the Council. The panel suggests that sensitivity analysis should be
done to determine the optimum mix.

As the stewardship model may be reliant on all homes being built to gain
financial returns, the team should consider how financial support will be
provided during the delivery and build out of the Garden Town. Reference was
given to the Queen Elizabeth Olympic Park and its Fixed Estate Charge as an
example, where the Greater London Authority underwrites part of the
maintenance and management of the park, this until critical mass is reached.

Arrangements for how and what services are billed should be presented with
clarity. The panel feels that there is a risk that a stewardship levy could be
seen as duplication, particularly if there are also ground rents, council tax, and
other fees to consider. Clear communication will be vital to manage
expectations, demonstrate decision-making, and address accountability.

There will also be a need for ongoing clear communication, as people leave
and new people arrive into the area. Particularly, to make sure stewardship
duties and the associated costs are well understood prior to new people
becoming residents.


https://www.queenelizabetholympicpark.co.uk/the-park/homes-and-living/residents-information/fixed-estate-charge#:~:text=The%20Fixed%20Estate%20Charge%20is%20the%20levy%20charged%20by%20the,of%20people%20living%20in%20it.

CONFIDENTIAL

Stakeholders and users

e The panel would like to see a clearer breakdown of stakeholders and user
groups that will be affected by stewardship arrangements across the Garden
Town. It suggests that the Charter should clarify responsibilities and risks for
each group, to understand how stewardship principles will affect the new
communities that live and work here.

e The term ‘community’ should also be clarified, to understand how this might
look within different areas of the Garden Town and over time, as developers
step out of the frame during the course of the project.

o The panel appreciates that there is work to be done to improve the perception
of community influence and agency across the Garden Town. Understanding
how communities are embedded in the new places created, as well as how
they can be involved with cultural events, community assets and wider societal
benefits, should be clarified.

o The panel feels that the section of the Charter which relates to community
communication is currently too specific and risks becoming out of date quickly.
Rather than describing physical or digital engagement methods, the panel
suggests clarifying objectives for how the interests of local residents,
businesses, stakeholders and HGGT will be represented.

e The panel also suggests strengthening the wording used around inclusion. As
the approach to stewardship relies on good representation across the various
communities in the Garden Town, the team will need to be proactive and
identify likely barriers for inclusion.

Evaluation and monitoring

e The panel welcomes the attention given to monitoring, but would like to see
more emphasis on evaluation. It suggests considering the use of impact-
based modelling, to identify lessons from the process and to drive up
standards.

e The team could refer to the Human Learning Systems framework, developed
by Toby Lowe, which may be relevant to the Charter.

o A fallback position should be considered, in case stewardship arrangements
fail. Clarity about what organisation would act as the ombudsman or
negotiator in this circumstance would be helpful and worth addressing
considering in relation to the financial support that may be needed in the some
term. This body should provide a clear process for the residents and
businesses involved, should stewardship principles not be met or under-
perform. While this will likely sit outside the Charter, the panel feels that this
should be addressed alongside its development.

Report of Workshop Review Meeting
28 April 2023
HG32_HGGT Stewardship Charter

Page 67



CONFIDENTIAL

Next steps

e The panel appreciates the tight deadline for the consultation and engagement
on this document, but it would welcome the opportunity to see the Charter
again at consultation stage, if helpful.

Report of Workshop Review Meeting
28 April 2023
HG32_HGGT Stewardship Charter —

Page 68



69 abed

Appendix C - HGGT Draft Stewardship Charter

Consideration of advice given by QRP and amendment to the draft Charter as a resulit.

QRP Feedback

Garden Town Charter Team Response

Amendments to the draft Charter

Terminology used in the Charter is considered
to be correct.

Noted

No amendment proposed

The Principles included in the Charter are
appropriate, however, stronger wording should
be used when establishing the principles to
follow. For instance, using ‘consider’ could
allow for interpretation and not be direct
enough.

On review it is considered that many of the
requirements set out in relation to the
Principles are set out in a definitive way.
However, the amendments set out in the next
column are proposed.

Amendments as follows:

Page 7 in the section: Who and What is this
Charter for, first bullet:

This Charter is for to be used by landowners,
developers,

fourth bullet:

as such it is intended-te-be a material planning
consideration in the determination of planning
applications.

Page 9 in the section: New Garden
Communities, fifth bullet:

All of these elements sheuld are to be delivered
in a way that ensures they are accessible to
existing residents in the area. Similarly, the
residents of the new community developments




0/ abed

should are to be able to easily access and
support the ongoing services

Page 10 in the section: Successful New Places
as part of the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town,
fourth bullet:

In other words, stewardship at Harlow and
Gilston Garden Town sheuld-and-will is to be
more than just the management and
maintenance of public areas and green spaces

fifth bullet:

This Charter is required to be eensidered-taken
into account in the determination of planning
applications relating to the Garden Town
(Note — this further amends this bullet, but is
consistent with amendments proposed in
relation to consultation feedback)

Page 12, Timeline, under the Outline Planning
heading amend Action details in the first and
third boxes as follows:

Consideration Identification of actions to be
undertaken

Consideration Identification of indicators to be
used...

Page 15, para 1.4:




T/ obed

An Engagement Strategy and Stewardship
Delivery Programme will be produced early in
the eonsideration formulation of development
proposals.

(Note — this further amends this para, but is
consistent with amendments proposed in
relation to consultation feedback)

Page 23, para 3.4:

Developers, and subsequently the stewardship
bodies who will inherit the responsibility,
shewld—must collaboratively plan and deliver....

Page 32, para 5.10:

Appropriate arrangements sheuld are to be
identified and established that allow for.....

The right balance has been achieved between
detail and brevity. The Panel cautions against
making the Charter any longer as it could be
off-putting to users.

Noted and acknowledged

No amendment proposed

The Panel feels that the Charter provides a
fantastic opportunity to embed community
ownership measures within the newly planned
Garden Town neighbourhoods.

Noted and acknowledged

No amendment proposed

Further clarification of the requirements and
expectations for different stakeholder groups
would be beneficial.

Agreed and amendment proposed to the
Charter as set out in the column to the right.

Page 7, Who and What is this Charter for, add
at the end of the second bullet:




¢/ abed

The Panel feels that expectations and
responsibility for differing parties need to be
clarified.

The panel would like to see a clearer
breakdown of stakeholders and user groups
that will be affected by stewardship
arrangements across the Garden Town. It
suggests that the Charter should clarify
responsibilities and risks for each group, to
understand how stewardship principles will
affect the new communities that live and work
here.

It is expected that landowners/ developers/
applicants will be responsible for initiating the
actions set out in this Charter. They must
engage with existing new and emerging
communities in all processes. It is anticipated
that communities will take a more proactive
role once a Shadow/ Advisory Stewardship
Body is formed and thereafter.

Testing different scenarios would help inform
the guidance and ensure that worst case
situations are anticipated.

Scenario testing the Charter and its principles
will help manage risks and support the Garden
Town in getting the right outcomes. Working
back from these potential scenarios will also
help establish stewardship priorities and
understand the scope for negotiations with
developers.

A separate exercise which could test scenarios
as follows:

- Asset rejected by stewardship
organisation

- Assets retained by applicant or handed
elsewhere without reference to
stewardship org

- No level of local representation

- Seek to charge excessing service
charges/ draconian collection measures

- No/ limited community collaboration/
co-design/ development

No amendment proposed prior to testing
exercise.

The formation of an umbrella body overseeing
the whole of the Garden Town seems sensible.
The panel agrees that a strategic view should
be taken across the Garden Town, to address
what assets are best to be controlled at this

Noted and the HGGT partners are continuing to
consider the potential for any strategic
stewardship arrangements across the Garden
Town. No decisions have been taken in relation
to that matter at this stage and it is considered

No amendment proposed




¢) abed

level and how to provide economies of scale for
their operation and maintenance.

Establishing an umbrella organisation seems
crucial to achieving some uniformity of service,
control and governance of the various
stewardship bodies across the Garden Town.

There could be tension between stewardship
bodies and the umbrella group, as the latter
could be seen as less representative than the
individual groups in each area. The terms of
reference will need to be managed carefully to
clarify roles and responsibilities.

that any reference to emerging thinking in the
Charter would become dated once any
strategic work is concluded.

Point noted and care will be taken to ensure
that roles and responsibilities are clearly
defined. Whilst acknowledged, this is a point to
be dealt with when and if any strategic
stewardship arrangements are concluded and it
is not considered that amendment to the
Charter is required.

Clear communication will be crucial to ensure
that the community have a sense of control
over spending decisions.

Clear and effective communication will be an
essential requirement of any Stewardship Body
that is put in place to ensure understanding of
the arrangements by the community and the
ability to provide resident input.

Addition to second bullet, page 27, para 4.1 as
follows:

e Be transparent in the way they are run
and governed and communicate clearly and
effectively;

The panel feels that a clear fallback position or
strategy for negotiations should also be in
place, should stewardship measures fail.

A fallback position should be considered, in
case stewardship arrangements fail. Clarity
about what organisation would act as the
ombudsman or negotiator in this circumstance
would be helpful and worth addressing
considering in relation to the financial support

Agreed

Amendment to page 32, para 5.10 as follows:

considered-The process to be followed, should
a Stewardship Body; experience financial
difficulties, or become insolvent should be
identified.

(Note — this further amends this para, but is
consistent with amendments proposed earlier in
the document in relation to QRP advice).




v/ abed

that may be needed in the some term. This
body should provide a clear process for the
residents and businesses involved, should
stewardship principles not be met or under-
perform. While this will likely sit outside the
Charter, the panel feels that this should be
addressed alongside its development.

Setting defined expectations of what needs to
be demonstrated through the design, planning
and delivery stages will be important and
should be included in the document.

This has been further considered. It is felt that
the details set out in relation to the individual
Principles and as summarised in the Timeline
give sufficient definition. Thereis a
requirement to also ensure a degree of
flexibility as the differing sites will have
individual characteristics and circumstances.

No amendment proposed.

The Gilston Villages will provide a perfect
opportunity to test stewardship at scale and
inform the development of the document.

Noted

No amendment proposed.

The panel feels that there needs to be a
proactive approach to stewardship embedded
in the masterplanning process for the Garden
Town. The Charter could do more to allow and
enable these kinds of opportunities.

Overall it is considered that the Charter seeks
and demonstrates how a proactive and
collaborative approach to stewardship should
be implemented and what it could achieve. In
relation to master planning, the requirements
for it are referred to in para 2.3 (Principle 2). It
is considered unnecessary to further identify
the potential of this element of the planning
process when it is important that stewardship is
considered at all stages.

No amendment proposed.




G, abed

Focussing too closely on current standards,
technologies and design approaches which
could quickly become out of date.

Agreed and not considered that the Charter
does this

No amendment proposed.

The panel would like to see further
consideration of how the Charter will be
enforced, along with the mechanisms for this,
such as planning conditions or Section 106
agreements. The document could be clearer
about these gateways.

Noted, the fifth bullet on page 10 in relation to
Successful New Places already refers to
securing arrangements in s106 Agreements.
There could be a further addition relating to
conditions.

Amendment to the second part of the fifth
bullet in the section Successful New Places,
page 10 as follows:

Stewardship arrangements will be secured and
enforced through planning conditions and
s106 Legal Obligation Agreements. Where
stewardship-arrangements they are secured
through s106 Legal-Obligation Agreements
related to planning permissions, these will be
binding on both initial and subsequent site
developers, should land be sold on whilst
development is taking place.

The panel feels that it is currently difficult to
assess viability of stewardship at scale. For
example, it questions whether Latton Priory
could perform as a single stewardship model,
given that community assets in this location
may not be sufficient to support the extent of
upkeep expected.

Noted and understood. It is not considered a
purpose of the Charter to explore and
determine arrangements for the individual
sites, taking into account their characteristics.
That will take place as arrangements for each
site are considered in detail.

No amendment proposed.

As the key threshold for establishing a
stewardship body may be linked to the
guantum and tenure of homes, as well as key
assets, the panel feels that governance
measures will need to be adaptive to changing
scenarios.

Noted and understood. The Charter does not
seek to apply definitive arrangements in
relation to each of the sites coming forward.
Instead arrangements, such as the timing of
implementation of Stewardship Bodies can be
flexible and responsive to matters such as
occupations and home tenures. The Charter

No amendment proposed.




9, abed

seeks a Shadow or Advisory Body in advance of
the formal Stewardship Body. This provides an
avenue through which timing for the
implementation of formal arrangements can be
considered.

Further thought should be given to how
relationships with development partners will
develop over time, particularly in terms of
responsibility and risk management.

This is considered to be a matter for detailed
consideration given the characteristics and
circumstances of each site. Itis not appropriate
for the Charter to give a definitive approach.

No amendment proposed.

The Panel would like to see further information
on how focussing on ensuring income works
alongside partnerships with developers. For
example, if stewardship-owned assets are given
priority locations, this could affect the viability
of operator-owned commercial units and have
an impact on investment returns.

This is considered to be a matter for detailed
consideration given the characteristics and
circumstances of each site. It is not appropriate
for the Charter to give a definitive approach.

No amendment proposed.

The type and number of assets that will be
controlled by the stewardship bodies should
also be considered. This will affect potential
costs and risks, which could be significant.

This is considered to be a matter for detailed
consideration given the characteristics and
circumstances of each site. It is not appropriate
for the Charter to give a definitive approach.

No amendment proposed.

The team should consider how financial
support will be provided during the delivery
and build out of the Garden Town.

Noted and understood. Whilst important, this
is not considered to be a matter to be
addressed in the Charter. It may be
appropriate for such consideration to be had
when determining if there is any role for
strategic stewardship arrangements across the
Garden Town.

No amendment proposed.




/] abed

Arrangements for how and what services are
billed should be presented with clarity. The
panel feels that there is a risk that a
stewardship levy could be seen as duplication,
particularly if there are also ground rents,
council tax, and other fees to consider. Clear
communication will be vital to manage
expectations, demonstrate decision-making,
and address accountability.

Noted, in addition to the amendment proposed
above in relation to clarity and transparency a
further addition is proposed as set out to the
right.

Addition to page 31, para 5.6 as follows:

5.6 Any service and estate charges (residential
and/or commercial) will be set at and
maintained at a reasonable level that is
commensurate with the level of cost that is
incurred in maintaining or servicing the
relevant assets. Charges must clearly identify
the purposes and services for which they are
levied to ensure clarity in relation to other
charges that occupiers may be responsible for.

There will also be a need for ongoing clear
communication, as people leave and new
people arrive into the area.

Noted and agreed. It is considered that the
earlier amendments proposed in relation to
transparency and clarity, and the current text
of para 5.7, ensure this matter is covered.

No amendment proposed.

The term ‘community’ should also be clarified,
to understand how this might look within
different areas of the Garden Town and over
time,

In the Charter the term community is intended
to encompass the current community of the
Garden Town area and what it will become as
the new development sites take place. That s,
an expanded community comprising of existing
and longer term residents and those who are
newly moved to the area.

Amendment of the third bullet on page 7
section Who and What is this Charter for, as
follows:

It is also for use by the community (which
means all existing residents and those who
come to live in the Garden Town) rew-and
existing-communities, so they can understand

how they can expect to be involved.

The panel appreciates that there is work to be
done to improve the perception of community
influence and agency across the Garden Town.

Noted and anticipated that this will continue to
be developed as the new sites come forward
for development.

No amendment proposed.

Understanding how communities are
embedded in the new places created, as well as

This is primarily the subject area of Principle 3,
Community Development. It is not considered

No amendment proposed.




g,/ abed

how they can be involved with cultural events,
community assets and wider societal benefits,
should be clarified.

necessary for the Charter to be further specific
in relation to this matter and for the
stewardship arrangements which emerge for
each site to address this in more detail.

The panel feels that the section of the Charter
which relates to community communication is
currently too specific and risks becoming out of
date quickly.

Noted and agreed.

Amendment to page 23, para 3.8 as follows:

3.8 The stewardship body will also be
responsible for delivering communication tools
and community events, including: welcome
packs and events, festivals, celebrations and
appropriate and responsive communication
channels.

The panel suggests strengthening the wording
used around inclusion. As the approach to
stewardship relies on good representation
across the various communities in the Garden
Town, the team will need to be proactive and
identify likely barriers for inclusion.

Noted and agreed. There is already
considerable reference to inclusivity in the
Charter. The section on Successful New Places
(page 10) refers to diversity and inclusivity.
Principle 2 relates to collaborative and inclusive
asset planning and Principle 3 to inclusion as
part of community development. Itis
recognised that there can be barriers to
inclusion and this is referred to in para 4.7
regarding representation. In addition to the
above, it is proposed that amendments can be

Amendment to page 15, para 1.5 and page 23,
para 3.4 as follows:

1.5 The Engagement Strategy will set out which
stakeholders will be engaged, how they will be
engaged and when in relation to the
programme. It should ensure inclusivity.

3.4 Developers, and subsequently the
stewardship bodies who will inherit the
responsibility, should collaboratively plan and
deliver community development initiatives with




6/ abed

made to the proposed Charter to further
strengthen references to inclusion.

existing, emerging and neighbouring
communities ensuring inclusivity.

(Note — this further amends this para, but is
consistent with amendments proposed earlier in
the document in relation to QRP advice).

The Panel would like to see more emphasis on
evaluation. It suggests considering the use of
impact-based modelling, to identify lessons
from the process and to drive up standards.

Noted. Principle 6 relates in part to the
requirements for monitoring. The approach of
the Garden Town to monitoring remains under
consideration and development, including
through the Quality Monitoring Strategy,
referred to in the Charter.

No amendment proposed.

The team could refer to the Human Learning
Systems framework, developed by Toby Lowe,
which may be relevant to the Charter.

The Human Learning Systems framework
approach acknowledges that outcomes result
from a complex and inter-related set of inputs
and pressures. As a result, an approach
focussed on a single outcome is unlikely to be
successful overall. The relationship of this to
potential stewardship arrangements and
outcomes is noted. This advice relates to the
work of the Garden Town Charter preparation
team, rather than to the content of the Charter
itself.

No amendment proposed.




H G G T © 2023 | 2-3 Degrees | All rights reserved

Pag e W B GILSTOM

AEKDEN TOWM



HARLOW AND GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

We were invited to deliver a Youth Voice workshop to
44 Harlow and Epping Forest Youth council with the aim

/ to:

At 2-3 Degrees we inspire and equip young people with the personal

development skills they need to become the best versions of themselves. We
do this by delivering fun, engaging, and dynamic workshops and
programmes for young people aged 14-25 that focus on themes of
confidence, self-esteem, and employability.

More specifically, we partner with land owners, Local Authorities, Property &
Developers and Architects to conduct, early, wide and meaningful youth :
consultation and engagement on large development projects (through our
Youth Voice Programmes).

o Collate young people’s insight on the draft HGGT
Stewardship Charter on the built environment and
effective youth engagement.

e Find out how to communicate stewardship to the
wider (youth) groups

« |dentify what resonates with the young people -
more to help influence the document and the order
of principles.

H G G T © 2023 | 2-3 Degrees | All rights reserved

HARLOW & GILSTOM Page 81

GARDEMN TOWM



OUTCOME

r
F
vl
F
A z
' !
|

N

SUMMARY

-3

DEGREES




EPPING FOREST YOUTH GOUNCIL




HARLOW AND GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Survey Results after the workshop
(Result from Agree or Strongly agree indications)

100 % | can contribute to shaping council/ district
level strategy

85% | have learned about the Garden Town project {

85% | have a better understand of how | can
contribute to the Garden Town Development

<&\ 1 438

88% | learnt about the Draft Stewardship Charter

88% | have improved my networking skills
e 100% | have learnt about new job roles

e 100% | have improved my communication skills

H G G T © 2023 | 2-3 Degrees | All rights reserved

Page &ﬂmw & GILSTOM

DEM TOWM



HARLOW AND GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

What words do you associate with stewardship?

Planning

Teamwork

Economy

Taking Responsibility

Sustainability {

<&\ 1 438

Do you consider yourself a steward in your community?

o Contributing to the environment
« Having important conversations about the community -
« Being part of the Harlow Youth Council
e Volunteering "
« Being able to have the opportunity to make change in

their community

H G G T © 2023 | 2-3 Degrees | All rights reserved

HARLOW & GILSTON Page 35

GARDEMN TOWM



(84

GENERAL FEEDBACK

.3

DEGREES




HARLOW AND GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

When we started the session many of the young people didn't know much
about the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town partnership and felt very
confused about the term Stewardship. Many of them seemed very

By the end of the session, they shared their opinions on 4 key areas with
confidence.

A few recommendations we had for
future workshops to flow effortlessly
were:

1. Get media consent form approval
ahead of time

2. Share attendee list with Youth
workers ahead of workshops

3. Arrange a follow-up session with
the Youth Councils to share what
their contribution has influenced

4. Arrange a workshop attracting a -
wider range of young people from o
the area

5. Create online videos to share
information about stewardship for
different audiences

H G G T © 2023 | 2-3 Degrees | All rights reserved

HARLOW & GILSTON Page 37

GARDEMN TOWM

L AN F S0



Stewardship Charter

Appendix E - Further Amendments Combined

Source

Location

Amendment

Internal review

Page 7, Who and What
is that Charter for,
second bullet

Addition to the first sentence by the words in
bold below:

It is primarily intended to apply to the four

new communities which will come forward

as part of the Harlow and Gilston Garden

Town (HGGT or the Garden Town) but

it may be appropriate to be applied to

existing assets and community development
initiatives too.

Internal review

Page 12, Timeline, third
box under outline

Amendment of the ACTION wording to the
following:

application
Identification of outcomes based
indicators, how they will be measured, and
how they link to the HGGT Quality
Monitoring Framework
Internal review Page 38 Replace photo with one from young persons

engagement

Internal review

Page 15, para 1.2

Addition of following words to end of para:

When considering the setting up of
stewardship arrangements and their
structure, issues that may be shared by
the community across existing
communities and the wider HGGT area
should be taken into account.

Internal review

Page 16, Para 1.8

Addition of words ‘of Life’ to Quality Monitoring
Strategy — appears twice in the para:

Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy

Internal review

Page 19, para 2.3

Amendment of second sentence as follows:

Decision-making on masterplanning and the
design of potential community assets should take
into account future lifetime maintenance and
management requirements, long-term
replacement in accordance with current
and future standards and the associated costs.

QRP Scenario
testing

Page 20, New para 2.1 1

Addition of new para 2.1 | as follows:

For the purposes of transparency and
clarity, it would not be expected that
there would be more than a single
Stewardship Body for each site and that,

Page 88




where assets are transferred, they are
transferred to that Body. Retention of
assets by the initial site owner/ developer
is not anticipated.

Internal review

Page 23, Para 3.5

Amendment of last sentence as follows:

It also has the added benefit
of enhancing community empowerment feeling

and-bettering
pereeptions-ofplaces (with subsequent

measurable social, socio-economic benéefits).

Young persons
engagement

Page 23/24 — New para

3.9

Add new para 3.9:

The Stewardship Bodies should consider
how they will engage with, include and
develop young people as part of their
work. This will likely require thoughtful
use of social media and the generation of
appropriate community development
projects.

Internal review

Page 27, Para 4.3

Addition to para 4.3 — addition of the following
words:

Where Parish Councils are in place,
evolving governance arrangements must
allow for their involvement

QRP Scenario
Testing

Page 28, para 4.7

Addition to the second sentence as follows:

In order to make the Shadow/ Advisory Body
and subsequent Stewardship Body accessible for
local community reps, consideration should be
given to remuneration for their time and other
arrangements that would make such roles
attractive.

Internal review

Page 31, para 5.3

Amendment of the para as follows:

An Outline Business Plan will be expected
early in the planning process with a detailed
Business Plan prepared no later than Full or
Reserved Matters Planning Applications
once-the-extent-of the
I iy dovel I

. I Nised. £ ol

it . A detailed
Business Plan can evolve further as more phases
of
development come forward.

Internal review

Page 31, Para 5.4

Replace the first two occurrences of the word
‘showld’” with ‘will’

Internal review

Page 35, para 6.2

Amendment of the opening line as follows:

Page 89




Local policies and guidance include:

Internal review

Page 35, para 6.2,
second bullet

Delete the word ‘future’

The HGGT Future-Quality of Life Monitoring
Strategy

Internal review

Page 35, para 6.3

Amendment of the para as follows:

Transparent, ambitious outcome based
quality targets will sheuld-be identified by the
Stewardship Body, aligned to the following six
key themes for healthy growth as set out in
the HGGT Vision and which also relate to
the HGGT Quality of Life Monitoring
Strategy, where these are within the
SCOpe........

Internal review

Page 35, para 6.4

Amendment of the para as follows:

TFransparent-and-outcome-focused-quality

I o .
required: These targets will be monitored
Stewardship-monitoring-willsit within a wider
monitoring framework with-targets-set-out-early

and reviewed periodically. Many of these will be
reviewed through the Garden Town partners
Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy, which will
includes performanee-indicators linked to the six
key themes listed above, and outcomes
identified throughout this Charter.

Page 90




Appendix F - HGGT Stewardship Charter: QRP Feedback and Scenario Testing

Introduction

In its consideration of the draft Stewardship Charter in 2023, the QRP advised that scenario testing
the Charter would help to manage risks. Its advice was:

e Scenario testing the Charter and its principles will help manage risks and support the Garden Town
in getting the right outcomes. Working back from these potential scenarios will also help establish
stewardship priorities and understand the scope for negotiations with developers.

This assessment sets out the outcome of the consideration of a number of scenarios against the
requirements set out in the draft Charter.

Scenario Selection

Scenarios have been identified which appear to have a reasonable prospect that circumstances of
this nature may occur. On that basis, those identified and tested in this summary are as follows:

- A physical asset is offered to, but rejected by the stewardship organisation;

- Assets are retained by landowner/applicant or handed to a third party managing
organisation;

- The level of local representation within the stewardship organisation is low or nil;

- The stewardship organisation seeks to charge excessive service charges or undertakes
robust non-payment enforcement action;

- Thereis no, or limited community collaboration and co-design in the delivery of assets.

In each case, the scenario has been tested against the content of the Charter and consideration has
also been given to other controls which may have an impact in relation to undesirable outcomes.
Any recommendations for change to the draft Charter are also set out.

Scenario Testing

Scenario 1

An asset is offered to, but rejected by the stewardship organisation
Commentary on content of Charter and other controlling mechanisms

The Charter sets out the initial requirement for asset identification at the outline application stage.
At full application stage asset planning and design is to take place, with further consideration given
to the financial implications of assets. Asset delivery and verification takes place as part of the
ongoing development of sites.

Principle 1 addresses the need for the collaborative identification of and planning for assets,
including the requirement for a Community Engagement Strategy. More detail is outlined in
Principle 2, which focusses on the requirements for collaborative identification and delivery of
assets.

Principle 4 relates to representative governance structures and sets out that a Shadow or Advisory
stewardship body should be set up as early as possible in the consideration of site delivery.

Page 91



Principle 5 deals with financial sustainability and sets out the stages of financial planning and the
requirement for Asset Management Plans, ensuring that the liabilities associated with assets are
identified as part of their design.

Given the collaborative planning and design requirements of the Charter, the need for early financial
planning and Asset Management Plans, it is unlikely that the implications of any asset will not be
identified and scoped early in their delivery. It is anticipated that unknown liabilities or a cautious
approach to the risk of asset management could still provide a basis on which an asset is not
accepted by the stewardship body.

In relation to liabilities it is not considered that further amendment or addition to the Charter is
necessary. There are references to need to plan for assets and to identify their ongoing implications.

With regard to the potential for risk adverse stewardship bodies, this is a possibility and would run
contrary to the ambition set out in the Charter that stewardship outcomes are entrepreneurial and
ambitious. As with the financial considerations, this is referenced throughout the Charter. However,
it is anticipated that there would be further benefit in a specific reference to the expectation that all
assets, unless they are in other forms of public control, are transferred in total to a single
stewardship body for each site for transparency and clarity with regard to responsibilities.

Recommended amendment to content of the Charter

New para 2.11: For the purposes of transparency and clarity, it would not be expected that there
would be more than a single Stewardship Body for each site and that, where assets are transferred,
they are transferred to that Body. Retention of assets by the initial site owner/ developer is not
anticipated.

Scenario 2
Assets are retained by landowner/applicant or handed to a third party managing organisation
Commentary of content of Charter and other controlling mechanisms

Principle 1 sets out the requirement for a collaborative approach to stewardship, indicating that a
Stewardship Body is to be set up to take control of assets. This would take the form of a Shadow or
Advisory Body at an initial stage. Principle 2 sets out further details in relation to the collaborative
approach expected. The additional para 2.11 (see response in relation to Scenario 1 above) further
sets out that assets, where they are transferred, are expected to be transferred to that Body.

Principle 4 relates to the expected governance arrangements. This sets out a detailed specification
for the anticipated Stewardship Bodies, taking into account what the body will be expected to be
transferred by way of assets.

The additional wording (in relation to scenario 1 above) sets out that retention of assets by the initial
site owner/ developer is not expected and, where transfer occurs, where assets are expected to be
transferred to. The nature of the Charter is that it does not incorporate enforcement powers, but
sets out the expectations of the partners in relation to stewardship outcomes. Whilst, despite the
clearly anticipated asset transfer arrangements set out in the Charter, owners/ developers may

Page 92



determine that retention or other transfer arrangements are appropriate, it is not considered that
further amendment of the Charter in respect of this is necessary.

Recommended amendment to content of the Charter

No amendment proposed.

Scenario 3
The level of local representation within the stewardship organisation is low or nil;
Commentary of content of Charter and other controlling mechanisms

Principle 4 of the Charter sets out the anticipated arrangements with regard to governance. Para 4.7
is specific with regard to the requirement for local community representatives. Following from the
Charter, it is anticipated that s106 Agreements relating to individual sites will also potentially
identify the representative structure of governance arrangements to be implemented.

It is acknowledged that ensuring the necessary willingness of local community reps to be involved
within governance arrangements is not necessarily within the control of the owners/ developers of
sites. Para 4.7 does make reference to the potential for financial remuneration in order to make
governance roles attractive to community representatives.

Other steps could also make roles of this nature attractive such as the timing and locations of
meetings, flexible meeting arrangements and possible assistance with other responsibilities that
potential community reps may have. It is recommended that further wording is inserted in this para
to reflect those possibilities.

Recommended amendment to content of the Charter

Additional wording to the second sentence in para 4.7 as follows: In order to make the Shadow/
Advisory Body and subsequent Stewardship Body accessible for local community reps, consideration
should be given to remuneration for their time and other arrangements that would make such roles
attractive.

Scenario 4

The stewardship organisation seeks to charge excessive service charges or undertakes robust non-
payment enforcement action;

Commentary of content of Charter and other controlling mechanisms

Financial matters are the subject of Principle 5 of the Charter. In particular, para 5.7 refers to the
need for service charges to be enforced equitably, without impacting occupancy, that charges should
be transparent and represent value for money.

Community and Local Authority representation within the governance arrangements will be acting
with those objectives in mind. In addition to controls of that nature the role, nature and extent of
service changes is subject to greater scrutiny nationally and may be subject to additional legislative
control in the future.

Page 93



Whilst it is understood that the content of the Charter cannot necessarily preclude service charging
arrangements that are not in conformity with it, no case could be made out that the Charter
supports arrangements that are not fair and reasonable. It is not considered that further
amendment to the Charter is necessary to clearly convey the position on this matter.

Recommended amendment to content of the Charter

No amendment proposed.

Scenario 5
There is no, or limited community collaboration and co-design in the delivery of assets.
Commentary of content of Charter and other controlling mechanisms

This issue is one of the main themes of the Charter, set out from the beginning and introduced in
Principle 1. More detail on the expected approach is set out in Principle 2. Principle 3 refers to the
arrangements for collaborative community development projects as well as asset design.
Governance arrangements are expected to support this collaborative approach and this should be
further enabled through the representative governance arrangements.

At various stages through the stewardship development and delivery process then there are actions
that should be undertaken demonstrating and commencing the collaborative approach to the design
and delivery of assets.

Given the strong thread of this issue through the Charter as it stands, it is not considered that
further amendment is required.

Recommended amendment to content of the Charter

No amendment proposed.

Summary and Conclusion

This scenario testing results in two further amendments to the draft Charter as set out above. This
first introduces new wording at para 2.11 of the document clarifying the expectation that assets
delivered as part of the development will be transferred to a single Stewardship Body. The second,
an addition to para 4.7 further addresses steps that could be taken to encourage the appointment of
local community members as Stewardship Body representatives.

No further amendments are proposed to the Charter as a result of this exercise. The Charter is not a
legally binding and enforceable document. It seeks to set out high level principles to be achieved as
part of the stewardship arrangements implemented for development sites coming forward.
Scenario testing needs to be applied in this context therefore and, appropriately, where the Charter
expressly seeks outcomes that this scenario testing exercise has explored, they should be seen as
sufficiently addressed in the Charter.

Page 94



STEWARDSHIP
CHARTER

Summer 2024

Interactive PDF: best viewed on a computer screen




The Garden Town Definition of
Stewardship

The Harlow and Gilston Garden Town defines
stewardship as, “The inclusive, proactive and responsive
planning, placemaking and care of public assets alongside
ambitious community development practices to ensure
that the environmental, social, and economic benefits of
the Garden Town can be enjoyed by present and future
generations, equally.”

Revision Date

0l June 2023
02 July 2024

WG FO A
S S Harlow
s A g, ol

{.:' . n
s Essex County COUNCH arking tagerher o Fariow  HETEO rdshire

www.hggt.co.uk

Definition adapted from Place-keeping, Open Space Management in
Practice, by Nicola Dempsey, Harry Smith, Mel Burton (2014).




Contents

CONTENTS

Foreword

Introduction and Context

Timeline

Principle |. Collaborative stewardship
Principle 2. Community assets: collaborative
planning, design, delivery and care of physical
infrastructure which is sustainable, responsive,
effective and established in perpetuity
Principle 3. Community development: collaborative
planning, delivery and running of place-based
community projects

Principle 4. A representative and accountable
governance structure to develop, deliver and

manage stewardship

Principle 5. Financial sustainability, resilience, and
entrepreneurship

Principle 6. Ambitious Environmental, social, and
socio-economic practice and monitoring

Glossary

12

18

22

26

30

34

38

38

Page 97



Foreword

Page 98



Foreword

FOREWORD

A significant part of creating a thriving Garden
Town and a great quality of life for residents
is ensuring that long-term community led
management is in place for the new buildings
and neighbourhoods.

Creating this long-term approach should begin
at the planning stages of a new development,
placing stewardship at the heart of place
making from the start not trying to introduce it
at some later date.

This draft Stewardship Charter identifies six
principles that are essential to enable effective
and enduring stewardship. The six principles
are currently in draft form and this consultation
is an opportunity for you to comment on how
they could be further enhanced.

The principles have been formed following
initial contributions made by stakeholders from
across all of the Garden Town proposed new
neighbourhoods.. Those stakeholders have
included elected Councillors, contributions
from the five Councils, local communities,
landowners and developers. .

As well as looking after the management of the
new garden neighbourhoods, the stewardship
arrangements are proposed to support both
new and current residents.

This will be achieved by putting in place a
lasting and meaningful neighbourhood-based
stewardship relationship between leaseholders,
tenants and freeholders and between residents
and developers.

The six principles are currently in draft form
and the Garden Town partners are keen to
hear your feedback on how they should be
further shaped.

Once the consultation phase has completed
and the responses processed and responded
to, the five Councils that make up the Garden
Town initiative will sign up to the Charter and
adopt the principles.

As development proposals come forward,
existing communities and each new garden
neighbourhood community can then work

to form the leadership group for that
neighbourhood and commence the application
of the stewardship principles in practice.

Our expectation is that key stakeholders will
sign up to the principles that are adopted and
agreed.

TBC

Page 99



Introduction & Context

Page 100




Introduction & Context

INTRODUCTION &
CONTEXT

WHO & WHAT IS THIS CHARTER FOR?

This Charter is to be used by landowners,
developers, site promoters and planning
applicants as guidance to support them in
implementing stewardship arrangements to
the required standard.

It is primarily intended to apply to the
four new communities which will come
forward as part of the Harlow and Gilston
Garden Town (HGGT or the Garden
Town) but it may be appropriate to be
applied to existing assets and community
development initiatives too. It is expected
that landowners/ developers/ applicants
will be responsible for initiating the
actions set out in this Charter. They
must engage with exisiting, new and
emerging communities in all processes. It
is anticipated that communities will take

a more proactive role once a Shadow/
Advisory Stewardship Body is formed and
thereafter.

The guidance in the Charter is intended
to apply to all elements of stewardship
arrangements as would be appropriate.

It is also for use by the community (which

means all existing residents and those who
come to live in the Garden Town) so they

can understand how they can expect to be
involved.

The Charter will be taken into account
when assessing the acceptability of

development proposals coming forward
as part of the Garden Town; as such it is
a material planning consideration in the
determination of planning applications.

The Garden Town Partners (see below)
expect landowners and developers to
sign-up to the Charter to demonstrate
their support for aspirational stewardship
arrangements across HGGT.

BACKGROUND

The Harlow and Gilston Garden Town

is being supported and delivered by the
five Garden Town Partners (East Herts
District Council, Epping Forest District
Council, Essex County Council, Harlow
District Council and Hertfordshire County
Council). This Charter sets out their joint
requirements for stewardship. The Garden
Town Partners are looking for innovation
and ambitious approaches to ensure that
good quality outcomes are achieved.

The Charter complements the Harlow
and Gilston Garden Town Vision. The
Key Principles for Healthy Growth and
how they are tied together by long term
stewardship arrangements are set out in
the Vision. This inter-relationship is shown
in the Vision Wheel, included overleaf is an
extract from the Vision.

7

Page 101



Introduction & Context

Gilston
Garden Town

Fig |. Relationship between the Key Principles for Healthy Growth, as set out in the
HGGT Vision, November 2018.

8

Page 102



Introduction & Context

DEVELOPMENT WITHIN THE NEW GARDEN
HARLOW COMMUNITIES

As well as the four new communities,

the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
comprises the whole of the existing town
of Harlow, developed as a New Town in
the latter half of the twentieth century.
Arrangements are already in place for the
management and maintenance of public
spaces and facilities within Harlow.

Whilst not primarily intended as guidance
in relation to the development of sites
within the existing town, the Principles set
out here can be considered in relation to
those sites and development proposals if
appropriate to do so. Consideration can
also be given to the relationship between
new stewardship arrangements and the
arrangements in place for existing assets,
where there are mutual benefits to be
achieved.

The new communities element of the
Garden Town comprises the delivery
of four new, sustainable and cohesive
neighbourhoods around Harlow.

The design and delivery of attractive and
functional places is integral to achieving
this outcome. The new communities
will include high-quality new homes,
employment opportunities, sustainable
transport infrastructure, and a range

of other social and environmental
enhancements.

All of these elements are to be delivered
in a way that ensures they are accessible
to existing residents in the area. Similarly,
the residents of the new community
developments are to be able to easily
access and support the ongoing services
and facilities provided within Harlow.

Page 103



Introduction & Context

SUCCESSFUL NEW PLACES
AS PART OF HARLOW AND
GILSTON GARDEN TOWN

* For the Garden Town to be a truly
successful place, it will need to be more
than just the initial creation of high-quality
environments; the new developments will
also need to be supported by long-term,
inclusive decision-making, placemaking and
place-keeping mechanisms to ensure that
the long term stewardship and governance
of each place is secured.

*  The stewardship and governance
arrangements have a role to play in
ensuring that the new communities
are integrated with the existing diverse
communities which make up the Garden
Town. They will enable inclusivity in all
aspects of the future stewardship of
these new places — so that they continue
to be great places for future generations,
long after initial development has been
completed.

*  Where a Stewardship Body takes on
the management of any transport
infrastructure, it will have a role to play in
ensuring that the aspirations of the Garden
Town partners in relation to transport
outcomes are achieved. These are set out
in the HGGT Transport Strategy.

10

Page 104

In other words, stewardship at Harlow and
Gilston Garden Town is to be more than
just the management and maintenance

of public areas and green spaces: it will
enable inclusive community participation,
ensuring local and neighbouring residents
and businesses are informed, involved and
empowered in how their local areas are
shaped and cared for.

This Charter is required to be taken into
account in the determination of planning
applications relating to the Garden

Town. The requirements of the Charter
can be interpreted and applied flexibly,
provided all proposals for stewardship
arrangements can demonstrate that they
have had regard to its Principles and deliver
outcomes that are aligned with them.

Local site and delivery circumstances will
be taken into account when the Principles
of the Charter are applied. Stewardship
arrangements will be secured and enforced
through planning conditions and s106 Legal
Obligation Agreements. Where they are
secured through s106 Agreements related
to planning permissions, these will be
binding on both initial and subsequent site
developers, should land be sold on whilst
development is taking place.

A Glossary is included at the end of the
Charter to ensure that the terminology
used within it is understood.



Introduction & Context

Page 105



Timeline

PRE-APPLICATION, STRATEGIC
. TLINE PLANNING APPLICATION >
MASTERPLANNING > o8 S SATS >‘

J

/ACT|V|TY; Community Engagement \
ACTION: Initiate engagement and
ensure continuation through
all stewardship stages. Set out
principles for stewardship for the
site and engagement processes in
strategy
OUTPUT: Engagement Strategy and Principles
for Stewardship.
.
(ACTIVITY: Programming )
ACTION: Mapping out time-scales for
actions/ phasing and delivery
\OUTPUT:  Delivery Programme )
12

Page 106

FULL OR RESE

-

implemented )

PLANNING A
(ACTIVITY: Community building and creation of\ (ACTIVITY: Asset pl
Social Value
ACTION: Enable ¢
ACTION: Identification of actions to be accordal
undertaken Strategy
OUTPUT: Draft Community Development and OUTPUT: Collabo
\ Social Value Strategy - K planned
KACTIVITY: Ecology and Biodiversity Net Gain \ (ACTIVITY: Commu
Social Vi
ACTION: Identification and understanding of
ecological objectives and implications ACTION: Refine a
for use/management of land Develof
Strategy
OUTPUT: Draft Ecology and Biodiversity Net
\_ Gain Strategy Y, OUTPUT:  Finalisec
\ and Soc
/ACTIVITY: Outcome Monitoring and Quality N
Assurance [ACTIVITY: Business
ACTION: Identification of outcomes based ACTION: Detailec
indicators, how they will be assets al
measured, and how they link to
the HGGT Quality Monitoring \()UTPUT: Detailec
Framework
\OUTPUT: Draft Monitoring Strategy ) KACTIVITY: Govern:
ACTION: Determ
/ACTIVITY: Business Financial Planning \ Referen
Steward
ACTION: Identification of costs, assets and
resources OUTPUT: Comme
eUTPUT: Emerging Outline Business Plan ) N
(ACTIVITY: Governance and Representation \
ACTION: Terms of Reference and
representation for Shadow/Advisory
Stewardship Body identified
OUTPUT: Shadow/Advisory Stewardship Body



Timeline

CONSTRUCTION / IMPLEMENTATION OCCUPATION

anning and design \ KACTIVITY: Asset Delivery \ ACTIVITY: Governance and Representation
ollaborative design in ACTION: Identification of detailed asset costs ACTION: Implementation of structures and
nce with Engagement Stewardship Body
@UTPUT; Asset Management Plan Y,
OUTPUT: Stewardship Body operational
ratively designed and (ACTlVlTY: Asset Delivery N\
assets / ACTIVITY: Outcome Monitoring and Quality
ACTION: Asset Construction Assurance
Inity building and creation of
alue @UTPUT: Delivered Assets / | ACTION: Refine, finalise and implement
Monitoring Strategy
nd finalise draft Community KACTIVITY: Asset Verification \
»ment and Social Value OUTPUT: Refine, finalise and implement
ACTION: Identification and implementation of Monitoring Strategy Finalised
verification process for all assets Monitoring Strategy
| Community Development
ial Value Strategy

OUTPUT: Asset Verification Process
NG J

(ACTIVITY: Ecology and Biodiversity Net Gain N\

J
i Financial Planning \

| consideration of costs,

. Refine, finalise and implement
1d resources ACTION: P

actions regarding ecology and
Biodiversity Net Gain

| Business Plan /

OUTPUT: Finalised Ecology and Biodiversity
ance and Representation I K Net Gain Strategy )

ine structures, Terms of
ce and representation for
ship Body

‘nce Implementation

J

13

Page 107



Principle |

14

Page 108



PRINCIPLE I:

Collaborative Stewardship

I.1 The Garden Town partners are committed
to ensuring that stewardship arrangements are
brought forward collaboratively by both those
proposing development and the existing and
future communities.

1.2 To achieve this, landowners, applicants,
developers and site promoters must engage
the community inclusively in each phase of
stewardship development as outlined below
and then described more fully in the later
sections of this Charter. When considering the
setting up of stewardship arrangements and
their structure, issues that may be shared by
the community across existing communities
and the wider HGGT area should be taken
into account.

I.3 This work falls under four areas:

* Development: Strategy, Planning and
Business Development.

* Delivery: Delivering assets

* Governance and Quality Assurance: A
decision-making body, which oversees and
manages the work, including monitoring and
reporting, finance, and resource management.
(Principles 4,5,6). This can initially take the

Principle |

form of a ‘Shadow or Advisory Stewardship
Body’, which would not perform all of the
above functions on commencement. Set

up in advance of the ongoing long term
governance arrangements, a Shadow/Advisory
Stewardship Body would ensure early
community representation in decision making.

* Ongoing Care and Management: Caring
for social and physical assets, including
their enhancement and / or replacement,
community development, wellbeing and
capacity building and providing stewardship
services in perpetuity.

1.4 Principles for Stewardship, an Engagement
Strategy and Stewardship Delivery Programme
will be produced early in the formulation of
development proposals.

1.5 The Engagement Strategy will set out
which stakeholders will be engaged, how they
will be engaged and when in relation to the
programme. It should ensure inclusivity.

1.6 The Stewardship Delivery Programme
will set out when the more detailed proposals
for the long-term stewardship of the site will
come forward.

I5

Page 109



Principle |

1.7 Those detailed proposals will include
collaboratively developed strategies and plans

for the following: CHECKLIST
* The detailed design and development WHAT BY WHEN
of assets;

Early engagement, pre-
* Community development and Social Value; Engagement Strategy application or Strategic

Master Planning stage
* Ecology, Biodiversity net gain and green
infrastructure — which should explore the
opportunities potentially available to ensure
ecological outcomes, the relationship with
recreational uses, guidance in the Green
Infrastructure Framework, future dynamic
approaches to land managed by a Stewardship
Body and positive financial outcomes this may
enable;

Early engagement, pre-
Delivery Programme application or Strategic
Master Planning stage

Draft Community
Development Outline planning application
and Social Value stage
Strategy

Draft Ecological

* Outcome Monitoring and Quality Assurance. and Biodiversity Outline planning application

stage

Net Gain Strategy

Draft Monitoring Outline planning application
the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Strategy stage

1.8 Following its assessment of the view of
residents on the Your Quality of Life in

area in 2022, the Garden Town Partners

will be undertaking a similar exercise in future
to enable changes in views to be sought and
considered. How this is undertaken will be

set out in a Your Quality of Life Monitoring
Strategy. The expectation of the Garden
Town Partners is that outcome monitoring and
quality assurance in relation to stewardship will
largely take place through the approach to be Final Monitoring .

set out in the Your Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy Occupation stage

Strategy.

Final Community
Development and
Social Value Strategy

Full or Reserved Matters
planning application stage

Final Ecological and
Biodiversity Net
Gain Strategy

Construction/Implementation
stage

16

Page 110



Q
C
<

c
a




Principle 2

I8

Page 112



Principle 2

PRINCIPLE 2:

Community assets: collaborative planning, design, delivery
and care of physical infrastructure which is sustainable,
responsive, effective, and established in perpetuity

2.1 Physical, social and community
infrastructure is essential for the day-
to-day functioning, health and wellbeing
and overall success of the community.
This infrastructure is referred to in this
Charter as the community assets. The
sustainability of the community assets
will depend on how relevant they are to
the community; and how well they are
planned, designed, specified, delivered,
and cared for.

2.2 Asset type, quality, location, and
the timing of their delivery, as well

as flexibility of their use over time,
alongside community values and needs,
are therefore essential considerations
for achieving long-term, sustainable,
collaborative stewardship.

2.3 Asset planning, design and

delivery must therefore be undertaken
collaboratively with the community, taking
into account the proposals in community
development strategies. Decision-making
on masterplanning and the design of
potential community assets should take
into account future lifetime maintenance
and management requirements, long-term
replacement in accordance with current
and future standards and associated costs.

2.4 The type of assets that are suitable
for stewardship bodies to manage at a

local level will be specific to each development
and will be influenced by what works best for
both the asset and the local community.

2.5 Community assets subject to stewardship
arrangements could include:

* Green and blue infrastructure, including
biodiversity net gain land, sustainable drainage
systems (subject to potential regulatory change
in respect of SUDS adoption), allotments, and
community orchards.

* Public open spaces, including the central
focal area of developments where community
facilities and services are provided, sports
pitches, and play areas.

* Community buildings and services, including
créches, sustainable transport hubs and non-
adopted highways, footpaths and cycleways,
delivering positive outcomes in relation to the
Garden Town partners transport aspirations.

* Income generating assets, including those
which may only generate an income in the
longer term, including commercial floorspace,
potentially biodiversity net gain, renewable
energy, and farmland.

* Meanwhile places, providing place-based
activities, community development and income
generating opportunities.

19

Page 113



Principle 2

2.6 Alongside planning and design, Asset
Management Plans will also be required to
ensure that community assets are properly
cared for over the long-term, including
potential replacement.

2.7 Asset Management Plans must comprise
transparent, robust, business plans, detailing
the standards to which the asset is to be
delivered and to ensure that quality and
viability are verified.

2.8 As the development grows or plans
evolve, further assets will be managed in the
same way.

2.9 All transfers of community assets to the
stewardship body will be subject to an Asset
Verification Process to enable them to be
confirmed as fit for purpose. This process
will include a clear procedure to be followed
where the quality of the asset is found to

be sub-standard and where it cannot initially
therefore be transferred to the stewardship
body. The procedure must ensure that
initially sub-standard assets do not remain in a
transitionary state.

2.10 Community assets will generally be
freehold or subject to a long lease at a
peppercorn rent (there may be circumstances
where other arrangements would be
appropriate, but these are likely to be the
exception); and may also be leased or utilised
in the shorter term for meanwhile purposes,
where this serves the community’s best
interests.

20

Page 114

CHECKLIST:

BY WHEN

Collaboratively
Planned and Full planning or reserved
Designed matters application stage

Community Assets

Asset
Management
Plans

Construction/implementation
stage

2.11 For the purposes of transparency and
clarity, it would not be expected that there
would be more than a single Stewardship
Body for each site and that, where assets are
transferred, they are transferred to that Body.
Retention of assets by the initial site owner/
developer is not anticipated.



Principle 2

21

Page 115




Principle 3




Principle 3

PRINCIPLE 3:

Community development: collaborative planning, delivery
and running of place-based community projects

3.1 Community development, like asset
development, is the collaborative planning,
delivery, and management of a project,
supporting the social infrastructure of a
community and its sense of ownership and
care of a place.

3.2 Itis as important as a community’s physical
infrastructure. Place-based community
projects will ensure that the community’s
needs, and values are understood and enable
those needs and values to be incorporated
into how assets evolve and are used.

3.3 Such projects can also create opportunities
for community collaboration and integration.
Projects should be initiated alongside asset
development and as soon as there is a
community to work with. Projects should be
in place, at the latest, by the time of any initial
occupations at the site. They can support
positive outcomes in relation to the future
operation of the sites, e.g. in relation to the
transport objectives set out in the HGGT
Transport Strategy.

3.4 Developers, and subsequently the
stewardship bodies who will inherit the
responsibility, must collaboratively plan and
deliver community development initiatives

with existing, emerging and neighbouring
communities ensuring inclusivity.

3.5 Development creates extensive
opportunities for this as every asset and

phase of its development enables community
participation. Community participation brings
benefits to places and assets through wider
diversity of input and experience into the
design process. It also has the added benefit
of enhancing community empowerment (with
subsequent measurable social, socio-economic
benefits).

3.6 Projects are expected to enable
demographic representation, prioritising
under-represented groups. They should work
in partnership with existing local community
and voluntary organisations.

3.7 Community development and Social Value
strategies must therefore ensure linkages with
other elements of the development of the
place including with master planning and the
programming of delivery of assets.

3.8 The stewardship body will also be
responsible for delivering communication tools
and community events, including: welcome
packs and events, festivals, celebrations and
appropriate and responsive communication
channels.

23

Page 117



Principle 3

3.9 The Stewardship Bodies should consider how CHECKLIST

they will engage with, include and develop young

people as part of their work. This will likely require WHAT BY WHEN

thoughtful use of social media and the generation of
appropriate community development projects.

Draft Community
Development and Outline planning application

Social Value Strategy stage

Final Community
Development and
Social Value Strategy

Full or Reserved Matters
planning application stage

24

Page 118



Principle 3

25

Page 119



Principle 4

26

Page 120



PRINCIPLE 4:

Principle 4

A representative and accountable governance structure to
develop, deliver and manage stewardship

4.1 To ensure resilience, quality, equality,
diversity and inclusion, stewardship
governance structures and processes
need to meet the following criteria:

* Be accountable to and representative
of the community they serve with a
representative governance structure;

* Be transparent in the way they are run
and governed and communicate clearly
and effectively;

* Be adaptable, innovative entrepreneurial
and maintain holistic and balanced
approaches across socio-economic,
ecological and social requirements;

* Have sufficient financial resources for
start-up, development and long-term
viability;

* Have the capacity and flexibility to
provide the potential to integrate with
neighbouring stewardship organisations,
where appropriate and where enhanced
collective value can be achieved;

* Have the flexibility to change over
time to meet changing needs of the
Stewardship Body and the community,
with regular review periods built in to
ensure this is happening.

4.2 The governance structure for the
Stewardship Body will provide the necessary
legal and strategic framework to enable all of
these.

4.3 It will own or lease, assets, be responsible
for resources, ensure quality management

and be accountable for service delivery,
demonstrable benefits, and inclusive
community participation. Governance
arrangements can build on and/or involve
existing structures in place, eg Parish Councils.
Where Parish Councils are in place, evolving
governance arrangements must allow for their
involvement

4.4 A robust governance structure will ensure
it achieves the following objectives:

* Assets are properly safeguarded in the public
interest, in perpetuity

* Community development and asset
development should both be progressed to
optimise value

* Service delivery is effective and of a high
quality

* Resilience is integrated to be able to deal
with changing circumstances

* The community is empowered, and

accountability is maintained 27

Page 121



Principle 4

for local community reps, consideration should
be given to remuneration for their time and

4.5 Itis expected that the stewardship body other arrangements that would make such
will: roles attractive.

Governance structure

- Take the form of a charitable trust (such as a 4.8 Before occupation of the first homes, or

community management trust or similar);

- Be supported by a community forum (this is
likely to evolve from early engagement work)
to ensure local and neighbouring community
views inform decision-making, and;

- Make use of a subsidiary body, such as

completion of the first community asset, the
full Stewardship Body will be implemented

in place of the Shadow/Advisory Body. Itis
envisaged that the Stewardship Body will need
to be established prior to first occupation of
homes in order to be able to collect estate
charges from new residents and have the
necessary arrangements established from first

community interest company, to allow
commercial flexibility, where necessary.

CHECKLIST:

BY WHEN

4.6 A Shadow/Advisory Stewardship Body

or Community Forum will be formed at

the earliest opportunity to support strategy
development and to help shape and inform the
establishment of the Stewardship Body and
the work it will be responsible for.

WHAT

Shadow/Advisory
Stewardship Body or
Community Forum

Outline planning application
stage

Determine structure,
Terms of Reference
and representation for
Stewardship Body

Stewardship Body Occupation Stage

4.7 This Shadow/Advisory Stewardship

Body will include representation from the
local authority, landowners, developer(s),
community, and other relevant stakeholders.
In order to make the Shadow/ Advisory Body
and subsequent Stewardship Body accessible

Full or Reserved Matters
planning application stage

28

Page 122



Principle 4

29

Page 123




Principle 5

30

Page 124



PRINCIPLE 5:

Principle 5

Financial sustainability, resilience, and entrepreneurship

5.1 A long-term viable and prudent Business
Plan must be developed which ensures the
efficacy and success of the stewardship
arrangements, ensuring financial sustainability
and properly recognising the costs of the high-
quality outcomes to be achieved.

5.2 The Business Plan must recognise the need
for the Stewardship Body to be supported

by sufficient resource, capacity, and expertise
(which may need to be purchased if it is not
available within the Body).

5.3 An Outline Business Plan will be expected
early in the planning process with a detailed
Business Plan prepared no later than Full or
Reserved Matters Planning Applications. A
detailed Business Plan can evolve further as
more phases of development come forward.

5.4 Asset Management Plans are to be
provided and agreed before the transfer of
any assets to the Stewardship Body. Such
plans will provide for long term maintenance
liabilities over the full life cycle of the asset,
including the need for sinking funds to be built
up to deal with repair and renewal where
appropriate. As a general principle, owners/
developers will remain ultimately responsible
for performance and assets should not be
transferred until long term sustainable financial
arrangements are in place. Equally, transfer
of assets should not be delayed too late in a
development.

5.5 A diversity of income sources will be
available to the Stewardship Body, enabling
a flexible, adaptable, and entrepreneurial

approach in its financial planning. Diverse
income sources will also ensure long term
resilience to changing circumstances or
unforeseen events. This diversity of income
sources will include capital endowment and
the endowment of the Stewardship Body with
physical assets.

5.6 Any service and estate charges (residential
and/or commercial) will be set at and
maintained at a reasonable level that is
commensurate with the level of cost that

is incurred in maintaining or servicing the
relevant assets. Charges must clearly identify
the purposes and services for which they are
levied to ensure clarity in relation to other
charges that occupiers may be responsible for.

5.7 Any service charges will be enforced in
an equitable manner without compromising
the occupancy or ownership of residents’
homes. Charging schedules will be subject to
regular reviews to ensure value for money.
Services charges will be properly brought to
the attention of initial and future prospective
residents within marketing materials and
wherever else necessary to ensure early
awareness.

5.8 The expenditure of the Stewardship Body
will fall into four main headings.

31

Page 125



Principle 5

Financial subsidy will be required from the
developer(s) in the early years of delivery and
must be available to allow early development
work:

* Development

o Such as early stakeholder engagement and
establishing community network.

o Place-shaping through developing strategies,
plans and governance.

o Master planning and co-design.

* Governance and quality assurance

o Core infrastructure costs for the stewardship
organisation including financial management,
staffing and resources, and operations.

o Establishing quality targets, monitoring, and
reporting.

* Delivery
o Project costs for community development,
and service delivery.

* Ongoing management

o Management and care of all assets
transferred to the body, including sinking funds
for eventual long-term replacement.

o Facilities management and operation of
community facilities.

o Training and upskilling.

o Being flexible, adaptable and entrepreneurial
to ensure that opportunities to secure income
are explored.

32

Page 126

5.9 Stewardship Bodies will need to have the
necessary resources and skills to apply for
external funding opportunities to further the
interests of the local community, however they
will not be dependent on external funding to
fulfil their responsibilities.

5.10 Appropriate arrangements are to be
identified and established that allow for
independent scrutiny of the operation of

the Stewardship Body to be undertaken if
there are concerns that it is not operating
acceptably. The process to be followed,
should a Stewardship Body experience financial
difficulties, or become insolvent, should be
identified.

CHECKLIST:

BY WHEN

Outline planning application

Outline Business Plan
stage

Full or Reserved Matters
planning application stage

Detailed Business Plan

Asset Management
Plan Stage

Construction/Implementation



Principle 5

33

Page 127



Principle 6

34

Page 128



Principle 6

PRINCIPLE é:

Ambitious Environmental, social, and socio-economic

practice and monitoring

6.1 The Stewardship Body will ensure that all
its activities are carried out in accordance with
ambitious environmental, social and socio-
economic practice, taking into account relevant
national and local policies and guidance.

6.2 Local policies and guidance include:
* This Charter;

* The HGGT Sustainability Checklist;

* The HGGT Quality of Life Monitoring
Strategy

e The HGGT Communications and
Engagement Strategy

6.3 Transparent, ambitious outcome based
quality targets will be identified by the
Stewardship Body, aligned to the following six
key themes for healthy growth as set out in
the HGGT Vision and which also relate to the
HGGT Quality of Life Monitoring Strategy,
where these are within the scope of the
activities of the Stewardship Body:

I. Placemaking and homes.
2. Economy and regeneration.

3. Landscape, ecology, blue and green
infrastructure.

4. Sustainable movement.

5. Public health.
6. Social value and culture.

6.4 These targets will be monitored within a
wider monitoring framework and reviewed
periodically. Many of these will be reviewed
through the Garden Town partners Quality
of Life Monitoring Strategy, which includes
indicators linked to the six key themes listed
above, and outcomes identified throughout
this Charter.

6.5 Examples of positive outcomes that

could be identified for monitoring range

from enabling positive behaviours for both
households individually and for the community
collectively e.g. recycling, home composting,
school streets, co-design and build of public
space, etc to using local small businesses for
services and goods.

6.6 The following is a non-exhaustive list from
which indicators could be drawn:

* Ecology (habitat creation, protection, and
enhancement).

* Recreational uses.

35

Page 129



Principle 6

¢ Climate mitigation and resilience.

CHECKLIST:
* Biodiversity net gain. BY WHEN

* Social value. Draft Monitoring Outline planning application
Strategy stage
* Community cohesion.

Final Monitoring :
* Quality of life. Cr— Occupation Stage

* Sustainable and active transport (modal
shift).

* Economic growth and local job creation.
* Volunteering and skills development.

6.7 It will be expected that a culture of
continuous improvement will be incorporated
into the running of Stewardship Bodies so that
they always seek to improve the quality of
their services and deliver enhanced social value
wherever possible.

6.8 It will also be expected that the
stewardship bodies will share their knowledge
with other stewardship ventures (locally

and nationally), both to learn from their
experiences and celebrate their achievements.

36

Page 130



Principle 6

37

Page 131



Glossary of Terms

e
. ,_a».._%ﬂ;_mﬁ‘!!w;: |

- W

o -

38

Page 132




Glossary of Terms

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Community Buildings, structures, spaces and land constructed or delivered as
Assets or a result of the development which do not form part of residential
Assets properties. A range of these will be transferred to the care of the

Stewardship Body. The terminology ‘asset’ is used in this Charter
whether or not the particular building, structure etc may generate
income through its use.

Community Actions undertaken to enhance the community being created as a
Development result of the development, its awareness of and sense of ownership
and control over the new places being created. Community building,
building capacity, resilience, community engagement and consultation.

Community Part of the governance arrangements. A Forum which seeks to
Forum ensure that all members of the community have an ability to express
their views and influence decision making.

Engagement A strategy setting out how all stakeholders will be invited, encouraged
Strategy and enable to ensure their views are made and taken into account.
Governance The formal structures and the operation of them through which the

agreed stewardship arrangements are implemented.

Harlow and The whole of the existing town of Harlow and the proposed new
Gilston Garden communities to be development on land allocated for that purpose
Town (HGGT) in the Garden Town partners Local Plans. These comprise the

Gilston Area to the north of Harlow, land to the East Of Harlow,
Latton Priory to the south of Harlow and Water Lane to the west of

Harlow.
Material Planning A matter which is to be taken into account in the determination of
Consideration planning application proposals, with weight to be assigned to it by the

decision maker.

Meanwhile Spaces, buildings and uses of a temporary nature, put in place prior to
Places/Uses the longer term and more permanent use of those buildings etc and
which can be used to test initiatives, generate income and community
cohesion.
39

Page 133



Glossary of Terms

New
Communities

The proposals, as part of the Harlow and Gilston Garden Town,
for significant new development at the Gilston Area to the north of
Harlow, land to the East Of Harlow, Latton Priory to the south of
Harlow and Water Lane to the west of Harlow.

Quality Monitoring
Framework/
Strategy

The Strategy to be developed and implemented on behalf of the
Garden Town partners to monitor the physical, social and socio-
economic quality of the Garden Town as it develops. Through the
Framework the specific attributes and indicators to be monitored will
be identified.

Section 106
(S106) Planning
Obligation
Agreement

A legal Agreement made under s106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990 (as amended). These legal Agreements are used
to secure actions on behalf of a landowner/ developer which will
mitigate the impacts of development. These can include the delivery
of infrastructure or funding for the provision of services.

Service Charges

Charges levied on all occupiers of residential and commercial
property delivered as part of the development of the new
communities and which will form an element of the income of the
Stewardship Body.

Shadow/ Advisory
Stewardship Body

An early form of the Stewardship Body (see below) which enables
engagement and representation to be achieved early in the life of the
delivery of stewardship outcomes.

Social Value

The outcome of a range of actions which can be taken to enhance
and improve communities, contributing to a more holistic view of
how places and projects are valued and whet they provide to the
community.

Stewardship Body

40

Page 134

The body responsible for delivering the agreed stewardship
arrangements for new development, through the agreed governance
arrangements.



Glossary of Terms

41

Page 135






H GA&ndf_ltem 11

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Agenda Item 11

Report to: HARLOW AND GILSTON GARDEN TOWN JOINT COMMITTEE

Title: ‘Re-imagining How We Can Travel Differently’ — A HGGT Framework (HGGT
Modal Transition Delivery Framework)

Report Reference: JC-006-2024/25

Date: 22 July 2024

Report Author: Naisha Polaine — Director HGGT

Enclosures: Appendix A - ‘Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently’ — A ,
HGGT Framework

Recommendations/Decisions Required:

The HGGT Joint Committee is asked to:

A. Approve the Framework ‘Re-Imagining How we Can Travel Differently’ (The Framework)
as set out in Appendix A.

B. Recommend to HGGT Council partners that the Framework is considered in the
evidence base for execution of highways and transport planning decisions and
developer contributions.

C. Require the HGGT Council partners to work together to continue to develop an
overarching programme plan of key activities required to deliver modal shift, informed

by the Framework.

D. Agree that an update on progress is report to the Joint Committee in Spring 2025.

Executive Summary

@ Epping Forest —
& District Council ~ [E=SN ~ OrOW ,
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk seiisiniiiceris Wisrkirne towcther for THariow P ag e 1 3 7



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

1.1 The 5 Council partners have committed to transforming how current and future residents of
Harlow and Gilston Garden Town can travel in the future as set out in the Local Plans of the
three Local Planning Authorities in conjunction with the Local Transport Plans (LTPs) for the
two County Councils. This ambition underpins the sustainable growth objectives of the
Garden Town and aims to improve the quality of life for the community. The principles of the
approach were formally agreed by the HGGT Board through the HGGT Transport Strategy
which has been endorsed by each of the 5 Council partners concluding in October 2022.

Appendix A contains the Framework document ‘Re-Imagining How We Can Travel
Differently’ which provides a high-level unfunded approach setting out a range of draft actions
and interventions which aim to underpin the objectives as set out in the HGGT Transport
Strategy.

The project consultants (ARUP) were commissioned to work with the HGGT 5 Council
partners to develop the Framework.

Reasons for proposed Decision:

The HGGT Joint Committee has been formed by the 5 Council partners to develop and
approve the HGGT Transport Strategy and oversee the implementation of the Transport
Strategy. This includes the delegated function to develop and maintain an overarching
programme plan of key activities required to deliver the HGGT modal shift targets.

The Framework will enable the 5 Council partners to programme and plan those initiatives
working with the modal shift assumptions in planning permissions for the HGGT sites. It will
also assist in seeking funding, where required, from other public and private sources. The
HGGT 5 Council partners are also required, as part of the Housing Investment Grant (HIG)
funding provided by Homes England, to evidence that progression towards achieving the
modal transition target is being made.

Other Options for Action:

It could be determined not to approve the Framework presented at Appendix A and to take
no further action in relation to it. This option as a course of action is not recommended. It
would not support and enable the development of the 5 Council partners approach to
sustainable travel and leave the HGGT Transport Strategy (endorsed by each HGGT Council
partner) without further detail on proposed actions. It would also leave landowners,
developers, community representatives and other stakeholders without further guidance from
the 5 Council partners on the steps towards meeting the agreed modal transition target in
the adopted Local Plans. A lack of a coherent modal shift strategy could potentially mean
developers will have grounds to argue out of their commitments that should contribute and/or

@ Epping Forest Ty "
(5% (Ebmcoms MM Horow RN
P ag e 1 38 www.eppinglorestde.gov.uk et A Wisrking topether for Harfow



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

align to the modal shift target or underperform in relation to it at site level. It would also mean
the contractual commitments of HIG to provide evidence on how the mode share targets will
be achieved could not be met.

2. Introduction

2.1 The HGGT Transport Strategy was endorsed by the 5 Council partners in October 2022 to
give weight in Planning decision-making for the three Local Planning Authorities in
conjunction with the Local Transport Plans (LTPs) for the two County Councils.

2.2 The Transport Strategy developed the HGGT Vision in respect of the key principles for
Healthy Growth through a focus on sustainable movement as set out in the Local Plans. It is
also consistent with the principles of the Town and Country Planning Association Garden
Community Guidance.

2.3 Alongside the objectives to improve air quality, health and welbeing and reduce congestion
and to deliver sustainable growth for the wider community, the Transport Strategy identifies
a primary overarching objective:

‘50% of all trips starting and/or ending in the existing communities of Harlow
Town should be by active and sustainable travel modes and 60% of all trips
starting and/or ending in the new Garden Communities of Harlow & Gilston
Garden Town should be by active and sustainable travel modes.’

2.4 It was agreed by Members of the HGGT Board that further work would need to be undertaken
to refine the Transport Strategy programme, and the Framework in Appendix A, begins to
scope out how the mode share objectives could be achieved under different scenarios.

2.5 The initiatives identified in the Framework are unfunded in the same way that the HGGT
Local Cycling and Walking Instructure Plans (LCWIP’s) and Infrastructure Development Plan
(IDP) are unfunded plans. The approval of this Framework by the HGGT 5 Council partners
will assist officers in securing funding from a variety of sources including developer
contributions and Government grants.

2.6 Similar to other documents relevant to transport (e.g. the HGGT Infrastructure Development
Plan (IDP) and the HGGT LCWIP) the Framework is not a statement of agreed and
committed actions to be taken by any or all the HGGT Council partners. It recognises that
each community has a range of different challenges and opportunities.

(Easty Epping Forest o n
& District Council ~ [E=SN ~ OrOW ,
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk seiisiniiiceris Wisrkirne towcther for THariow P ag e 1 3 9



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

2.7 To accommodate this each partner can mix and match to ensure that the benefits of any of
the potential future proposals — their costs, and any other implications of implementation and
delivery — are appropriate to justify a decision to commit resources and execute.

2.8 The Framework also recognises that any future interventions will need to be assessed and
measured against wider economic and social contexts.

3. HGGT Sustainable Travel Infrastructure — Achievements to Date

3.1 The HGGT 5 Council partners have already achieved several significant milestones in
progressing the required infrastructure to support the delivery of a growing community as set
out in the three District Councils Local Plans. These include:

Junction 7A on the M11 - £76 million
£171 million Housing Infrastructure Grant (HIG) to forward fund travel infrastructure
and establishment of the Rolling Infrastructure Fund (RIF) for future infrastructure
delivery
Planning permissions granted for a new Eastern Stort Crossing & enhanced Central
Stort Crossing
Improvements to Edinburgh Way/Howards Way junctions
Gilston S106 Heads of Terms securing for the Garden Town initiative include:

o £42.1 million contribution for delivery of the Sustainable Transport Corridors
£6.58 million for bus services including serving Harlow destinations
£12.23 million for Sustainable Transport and Innovation initiatives
£3.3 million for Stort Valley enhancements including cycle routes
£0.5 million (feasibility) and £5.1 million (implementation) for Harlow Town
station northern access plus £88,000 for enhanced cycle parking

o £0.275 million Bus stop upgrades
£2.62 million to deliver new cycling infrastructure in Harlow from the LCWIP
Breaking ground on 2 km of the new sustainable transport corridor in Harlow ‘North
to Centre’ and completion of the Cambridge Rd junction scheme improving access to
Templefields industrial area
New transport interchange at Harlow Town Centre to be constructed by 2025/26

O O O O

4. Sustainable Transport Corridor (STC) Network

4.1 The development of a network of Sustainable Transport Corridors (STCs), and a rapid bus
transport system, are a key enabling factor in improving air quality, reducing congestion and
enabling the planned growth of the Garden Town as set out in the Transport Strategy and
the Local Plans. The STCs will also provide additional safe walking and cycling routes.

Page 140

@ @ Epping Forest — Harlow ']
Ap— /11

H{f‘:S/ District Council -~ ——_ Council
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk paasiitens s Wowiiee sopether for Hlarfew Hertfordshire



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

4.2 The North to Centre STC section, connecting the Gilston Area development with Harlow town
centre, is the most advanced and construction has begun, delivered by Essex County Council
and funded by the HIG grant from Homes England.

4.3 Design work has continued for the remaining network and programme risks associated with
the timing, funding and delivery have been discussed with the HGGT 5 Council partners.

4.4 The service that will run on the STCs will need to be agreed with the 5 Council partners as
well as the developers of the strategic sites and other stakeholders.

5. Purpose Of The ‘Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently’ Framework

5.1 The 5 Council partners have committed to transforming how current and future residents of
Harlow and Gilston Garden Town can travel in the future as set out in the Local Plans of the
three Local Planning Authorities in conjunction with the Local Transport Plans (LTPs) for the
two County Councils. This ambition underpins the sustainable growth objectives of the
Garden Town and aims to improve the quality of life for the community. The principles of the
approach were formally agreed by the HGGT Board through the HGGT Transport Strategy
which has been endorsed by each of the 5 Council partners concluding in October 2022.

5.2 The HGGT Transport Strategy established a clear set of mode share objectives and a set of
principles which are aligned to the planned delivery of 23,000 new homes across the Garden
Town area.

5.3 The teams focussing on the new garden community neighbourhoods around Harlow, all at
different stages of planning and delivery, have been considering and responding to these
principles, with the Gilston Villages the most advanced. However, existing communities must
be supported through a range of travel options which are complimentary to the success of
any of the new modal transition options and interventions currently being delivered as part of
the Garden Town initiative. To date there has been less focus on the existing communities
and what those options might be and how they might need to be funded.

5.4 The Framework sets out a range of possible interventions which could, subject to funding
and further detailed assessment and engagement, be implemented to achieve the objectives
set out in the Transport Strategy. It seeks to set out how the overarching mode share
objective could be achieved under different scenarios through the prioritisation of initiatives.
It also provides basic estimates of the scale of contribution different actions could make
towards achieving the mode share objective. The Framework provides evidence for the
highways and transport authorities to consider in implementing and reviewing the Local
Transport Plans which form the statutory transport plans covering the Harlow Gilston area.

@ Epping Forest Ty "
& District Council ~ ESI  1ArIOW ,
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk seiisiniiiceris Workime sowerher for THariow P ag e 14 1



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

6. Approach To Developing The Framework

6.1 The Framework has been prepared to guide decision makers in understanding the types of
interventions that may contribute towards the achievement objectives of the HGGT Transport
Strategy. As part of the development of the Framework, stakeholder engagement has been
at the centre of the drafting work and the contributions made by partners have been a critical
influencing factor in the Framework. Significant levels of engagement have been undertaken
with the 5 Council partners at officer and senior leadership level, with elected members,
developers, and other key stakeholders.

6.2 The approach taken by the consultants to produce the Framework included three stages:
¢ Diagnostic Review — comprising of a discovery exercise on work completed to date
e Prioritisation and Scenario Testing -setting out interventions and scenario tested
considering additional wider benefits
e Delivery Pathway — includes a roadmap for potential interventions
7. Next Steps
7.1 Once the Framework is endorsed the next steps are:
o Conduct further work to better understand the scope, cost, deliverability of a priority
set of these initiatives.
e Progress the work of the HGGT Active Travel Engagement Officer

Implications - Resource Implications:

None at this stage of framework approval but significant additional resources will be required to
be able to deliver further scope and subsequently deliver specific Framework interventions.

Equalities and Diversity - Equality Impact Assessment:

Is this a new policy (or decision) or a change to an | No
existing policy, practice or project?

Describe the main aims, objectives and purpose of | To provide an overarching framework for
the policy or decision pursuing Modal Transition interventions
for HGGT to achieve is strategic
transport objectives

What outcome(s) are you hoping to achieve (ie NA
decommissioning or commissioning a service)?

éa} Epping Forest —
%8 (Enmnccoms M Horow RN
P ag e 1 4 2 www.eppingforestde.gov.uk i i e et



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Does or will the policy or decision affect:
e service users
e employees
e the wider community or groups of
people, particularly where there are
areas of known inequalities?

No —it is only a framework at this
stage

Will the policy or decision influence how
organisations operate?

No — it is only a framework at this stage

Will the policy or decision involve substantial
changes in resources?

No — it is only a framework at this stage

Is this policy or decision associated with any of
the Council’s other policies and how, if applicable,
does the proposed policy support corporate
outcomes?

Yes — it seeks to integrate with those

What does the information tell you about those N/A
groups identified?
Have you consulted or involved those groups that | N/A

are likely to be affected by the policy or decision
you want to implement? If so, what were their
views and how have their views influenced your
decision?

If you have not consulted or engaged with
communities that are likely to be affected by the
policy or decision, give details about when you
intend to carry out consultation or provide
reasons for why you feel this is not necessary:

Extensive consultation took place on the
Transport Strategy that sets the policy
context for this Framwork. Further
consultation will be undertaken on
initiatives prior to implementation as
required.

Use this section to assess any potential impact on equality groups based on what you

now know.

Age, Disability, Gender, Gender reassignment,
Pregnancy/maternity, Marriage/civil partnership,
Race, Religion/belief, Sexual orientation

Assessment of impact on equality groups
will be made as part of progressing
individual initiatives.

Does the EqlA indicate that the policy or decision
would have a medium or high adverse impact on
one or more equality groups?

No

@ Epping Forest —
H{’!_‘/ District Council =
www.eppingforestde. gov.uk ki

Harlow

—_ Council

Working sowether for Harlow

il
Hertfordshire|

Page 143



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

HGGT Vision Assurance

1. What principles of the HGGT Vision does this seek to achieve?

Healthy Growth through a focus on sustainable movement

2. What steps have been taken to ensure the HGGT Vision is embedded into the project?

The Framework sets out a range of potential actions which aim underpin the objective of
sustainable travel, improving air quality and reducing congestion. The Framework also
provides a long-term vision of the types of interventions that may contribute towards the
achievement of the modal objectives.

@ Epping Forest — ']
& @ District Council ~ [E=SN ~ OrOW "

www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk Working together for Harfor Hertfordshire|

Essax County Councl

Page 144



JUNE 2024

GARDEN
TOWN

GUIDANCE

Page 145




o T abed

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
Re-Imagining How We Can Travel
Differently

Reference:

Find | 20 June 2024

ARUP



/T obed

This report takes into account the particular i nstructionsand requirements of our client.
Itis not intended for and should not berelied upon by any third party and no
responsibility is undertaken to any third party.

Job number

OveArup & PartnersLimited
8Fitzroy Street

London

WI1T4BJ

United Kingdom

arup.com



81T abed

ARUP

Document Verification

Project title Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Document title

Job number

Document ref

File reference

Revision Date Filename 191223 HGGT Modal Transition — Draft for
Comment
19/12/2023 Description Modal Transition — Draft for Comment
Prepared by Checked by Approved by
Name CFDP/ISZ Ccw RG
Signature
gy £ &
02/02/2024 Filename 120224 HGGT Modal Transition Framework— Find
Description Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Modal Transition
Framework
Prepared by Checked by Approved by
Name CFHDP/IsZ DP RG
Signature

| Final | 20 June2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited



61T obed

20/06/2024 Filename 200624 _HGGT Re-Imagining How We Can Travel
Differently — Final

Description Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Re-Imaging
Travel Framework — update following comments
Prepared by Checked by Approved by
Name Y4 Ccw
Signature
I ssue Document Verification with v
Document

| Final | 20 June2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited



0GT abed

Contents
Foreword 1
Executive ummary 2
1. Introduction 3
11 Background 3
12 Purpose of this Framework and Approach to Implementation
4

13 Summary of Approach and How to Use This Framework 5
2. Context and Setting the Challenge 6
21 HGGT Vision 6
2.2 HGGT Modal Transition Objectives and Funding Conditions 7
23 Measuring Mode Share and Global Comparisons 8
24 Case Study 1 — Odense, Denmark 9
25 Case Study 2 — Houten, Netherlands 10
26 Example Mode Share Targetsfrom Other Cities 11
2.7 Optimal Path to Achieving the Modal Transition Objectives

12
28 Factorsthat Influence Future Modal Shares 13
3. Baseline Transport Profile 14
31 The Challenge— Mode Share 14
32 The Challenge— Demand 15
33 Baseline Mode Share Results (Stantec) 16
34 Mode Share: All Trip Types 17
35 Mode Share: Commuting 18
3.6 Trip Duration: All Trip Types 19
37 Transport Network — Relative Cost of Car and Bus 20

| Final | 20 June2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

3.8
3.9
3.10

4.1
4.2

51
5.2
5.3
54

6.1
6.2

7.1
7.2
7.3
7.4
7.5
7.6
7.7

8.1
8.2
8.3
8.4

Private Sector Car Parking
Employment Profile

Travel Behaviour

Challenges and Opportunities
Challenges

Opportunities

Benefits Map

Benefits Map Methodology

Garden City Principles and Benefits
Logic Map

Mapping Benefits

Framework Methodology

Overview

Strategies, Programmes and Interventions
Framework Themes

Introduction

Road, Streets and Neighbourhoods
Increasing Bus Use

Increasing Shared Mobility and Active Travel
Targeted Engagement Programmes
Rebalancing the Cost of Travel
Sustainable Freight and Deliveries
Scenarios

Introduction

Exemplar: Harlow

Exemplar: Strategic Sites

Ambition: Harlow

21
22
23

24
29

33
34
35
36

37
38

39
40
50
59
68
77
86

94
95
96
97

24

33

37

39

94



TGT obed

8.5 Ambition: Strategic Sites 98
8.6 Business as Usual: Harlow 99
8.7 Business as Usual: Strategic Sites 100
9. Summary
9.1 Delivery Themes Pathway 101
9.2 [llustrative Sequencing for Gold Scenario 102
9.3 Combined Delivery Pathway 103
9.4 Conclusions, Recommendations and Next Steps 104
Tables
Table 1: Comparison of mode share with Odense, Denmark 9
Table 2: Comparison of mode share with Houten, Netherlands 10
Table 3: Main car park capacity and charges in Harlow 21
Table4: Description of roads, street and neighbourhoods components
41
Table 5: Summary of local impact of roads, streets and
neighbourhoods components 42
Table 6: Summary of delivery and funding considerations for roads,
streets and neighbourhoods components 43
Table 7: Indicative HGGT area-wide programme costs for roads,
streets and neighbourhoods components 44
Table 8: Component summary table for roads, streets and
neighbourhoods 45
Table 9: Prioritised roads, streets and neighbourhoods programmesand
timeframes for delivery (short term focus) 46
Table 10: Prioritised roads, streets and neighbourhoods programmes
and timeframes for delivery (long term focus) 47
Table 11: Description of increasing bus use components 51
Table 12: Summary of local impact of increasing bus use components
52

| Final | 20 June2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

101

Table 13: Summary of delivery and funding considerations for

increasing bus use components 53
Table 14: IndicativeHGGT area-wide programmecostsfor Increasing
Bus Use components 54

Table 15: Component summary table for increasing bus use 55

Table 16: Prioritised increasing bus use programmes and timef rames
for delivery (short term focus) 56

Table 17: Prioritised increasing bus use programmes and timef rames
for delivery (long term focus) 57

Table 18: Description of shared mobility and active travel components

60

Table 19: Summary of local impact of shared mobility and active

travel components 61
Table 20: Summary of delivery and funding considerations for share
mobility and active travel components 62
Table 21: IndicativeHGGT area-wide programmecostsfor Increasing
Shared Mobility and Active Travel 63
Table 22: Component summary table for shared mobility and active
travel 64
Table 23: Prioritised shared mobility and active travel programmes and
timef rames for delivery 65

Table 24: Prioritised shared mobility and active travel programmes and
timeframes for delivery (long term focus) 66

Table 25: Description of targeted engagement programme components

69

Table 26: Summary of local impact of targeted engagement
components 70

Table 27:Summary of ddivery and funding condderationsfor targeted
engagement components 71

Table 28: Indicative HGGT area-wide programme costs for targeted
engagement programmes 72



ZST abed

Table 29: Component summary table for targeted engagement
programmes 73

Table 30: Prioritised targeted engagement programmes and timeframes
for delivery (short term focus) 74

Table 31: Prioritised targeted engagement programmes and timeframes
for delivery (long term focus) 75

Table 32: Description of rebalancing the cost of travel components78
Table 33: Summary of local impact of rebalancing the cost of travel

components 79
Table 34: Summary of delivery and funding considerations for
rebalancing the cost of travel components 80
Table 35: Indicative HGGT area-wide programme costs for
rebalancing the cost of travel 81
Table 36: Component summary tablef or rebaancing the cost of travel
engagement programmes 82
Table 37: Prioritised rebalancing the cost of travel programmes and
timef rames for delivery (short term focus) 83
Table 38: Prioritised rebalancing the cost of travel programmes and
timeframes for delivery (long term focus) 84
Table39: Description of sustainablefreight and deliveries components
87
Table 40: Summary of local impact of sustainable freight and
deliveries components 88
Table 41: Summary of delivery and funding considerations for
sustainable freight and deliveries components 89
Table 42: Component summary table for sustainable freight and
deliveries programmes 90
Table 43: Prioritised sustainablef reight and deliveries programmesand
timef rames for delivery (short term focus) 91
Table 44: Prioritised rebalancing the cost of travel programmes and
timeframes for delivery (long term focus) 92

| Final | 20 June2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Table 45: Indicative modal transition impact by trip type (Exemplar:
Harlow) 95

Table 46: Indicative modal transition impact by trip type (Exemplar:
Strategic Sites) 96
Table 47: Indicative modal transition impact by trip type (Ambition:

Harlow) 97
Table 48: Indicative modal transition impact by trip type (Ambition:
Strategic Sites) 98
Table 49: Indicative modal transition impact by trip type (BAU:
Harlow) 99
Table 50: Indicative modal transition impact by trip type (BAU:
Strategic Sites) 100
Table 51: Delivery themes pathway 102
Table 52: Delivery pathway 103
Figures

Figure 1: Comparison of commuting mode shares — Harlow and other
towns and cities (2021 Census Journey to Work [JtW]) 8
Figure 2: Odense tramway opened in 2022 9
Figure 3: Odense foot and cycle bridge 9
Figure 4: Strategic transport map of Houten 10
Figure 5: Houten neighbourhood cycle path 10
Figure 6: Recommended path to achieving the modal transition
objectivesfor HGGT 12
Figure 7: Factors not within and within HGGT's control 13
Figure 8: The challenge - modal share 14
Figure 9: The challenge — total demand forecasts 15

Figure 10: Baseline modal share survey results (Stantec, 2023) 16



€GT oabed

Figure 11: Mode split by trip type - HGGT: Stantec survey (2023)

England-wide: NTS0409 17
Figure 12: Method of travel to work - Census (2011 and 2021); Stantec
surveys (2023) 18

Figure 13: Trip duration, Stantec residential surveys (2023) 19
Figure 14: Car parking costs against public transport ticket pricing20
Figure 15: Jobs located within Harlow by sector (Source: Nomis data,

2022) 22
Figure 16: Internal and external trips (Harlow Economic Development
Strategy, 2023) 23
Figure 17: Internal and external trips by mode 23
Figure 18: Relationship between strategies, programmes and

interventions 38
Figure 19: Harlow cycling catchment 40
Figure 20: Harlow bus catchment 40
Figure 21: Harlow driving catchment 40
Figure 22: Existing bus travel catchment for Harlow 50

Figure 23: Town Centre and Templefields Walking Catchment 59
Figure 24: Existing Cycle Routes and Proposed LCWIP Routes 59

Figure 25: Mode shift STARS- Centre of Excdlence for the delivery
of Effective Travel Plans in Education, Business and Residential

Settings 68
Figure 26: Car vs Public Transport Accessibility 77
Figure 27: British Business Bank eco-friendly delivery strategy 86

| Final | 20 June2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited



vGT abed

Foreword

Loremipsum dolor sit amet, consectetur adipisci €lit, sed eiusmod tempor
incidunt ut labore et dolore magna aliqua. Ut enim ad minim veniam, quis
nostrum exercitationem ullam corporis suscipit laboriosam, nisi ut aliquid ex
ea commodi consequatur. Quis aute iurereprehenderit in voluptate velit esse
cillum dolore eufugiat nulla pariatur. Excepteur sint obcaecat cupiditat non
proident, sunt in culpa qui officia deserunt mollit anim id est laborum.

Loremipsum dolor sit amet, consectetur adipisci €lit, sed eiusmod tempor
incidunt ut labore et dolore magna aliqua. Ut enim ad minim veniam, quis
nostrum exercitationem ullam corporis suscipit laboriosam, nisi ut aliquid ex
ea commodi consequatur. Quis aute iurereprehenderit in voluptate velit esse
cillum dolore eufugiat nulla pariatur. Excepteur sint obcaecat cupiditat non
proident, sunt in culpa qui officia deserunt mollit anim id est laborum.

Loremipsum dolor sit amet, consectetur adipisci €lit, sed eiusmod tempor
incidunt ut labore et dolore magna aliqua. Ut enim ad minim veniam, quis
nostrum exercitationem ullam corporis suscipit laboriosam, nisi ut aliquid ex
ea commodi consequatur. Quis aute iurereprehenderit in voluptate velit esse
cillum dolore eufugiat nulla pariatur. Excepteur sint obcaecat cupiditat non
proident, sunt in culpa qui officia deserunt mollit anim id est laborum.

Loremipsum dolor sit amet, consectetur adipisci €lit, sed eiusmod tempor
incidunt ut labore et dolore magna aliqua. Ut enim ad minim veniam, quis
nostrum exercitationem ullam corporis suscipit laboriosam, nisi ut aliquid ex
ea commodi consequatur. Quis aute iurereprehenderit in voluptate velit esse
cillum dolore eufugiat nulla pariatur. Excepteur sint obcaecat cupiditat non
proident, sunt in culpa qui officia deserunt mollit anim id est laborum.

Loremipsum dolor sit amet, consectetur adipisci €lit, sed eiusmod tempor
incidunt ut labore et dolore magna aliqua. Ut enim ad minim veniam, quis
nostrum exercitationem ullam corporis suscipit laboriosam, nisi ut aliquid ex
Harlow and Gilston Garden Town

| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

eacommodi consequatur. Quis aute iurereprehenderit in voluptate velit esse cillum
dolore eu fugiat nulla pariatur. Excepteur sint obcaecat cupiditat non proident, sunt
in culpa qui officia deserunt mollit anim id est laborum.

Councillor Dan Swords

Chair of the Joint Committee

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently
Page 1



GGT abed

Executive Summary

This Framework sets out how the modal transition objectives established in
the HGGT Transport Strategy (2022) could be achieved. It aimsto guide
HGGT and its partner organisations on the types of projects, schemes and
interventions that will contribute towards the achievement of the modal
transition objectives.

Significant levels of engagement have been undertaken with local authority
officers senior local authority leadership, elected members, developers and
other key stakeholders throughout the development of the Framework.

Through detailedinterrogation of the existingwork plan, it is clear that onthe
current trgjectory, thereis low confidence that the highly ambitious targets
that HGGT and partners have signed up to will be met within the proposed
timef rames. The Framework aimsto demondgratehow HGGT may beable to
progresson itsjourney fromwhereit is now to meeting the modal transition
objectives.

Significant sumsof Central Government-dlocated funding has conditioned
the need to demondrate progress towards the achievement of the Transport
Strategy modal objectives. Further, amodal transition is critical to realising
the Gibberd vision and to ensure a sustainable future for HGGT and
surrounding communities.

To assist with planning the transition activities and anticipating outcomes
resulting from different initiatives, alogic map was developed to embed the
benefitsinto the outputs, outcomes and objectives. Theaim of thelogic map
isto show aclear rationade betweenthe Transport Strategy outputs, desired
outcomes and benefits — all linking back to the stated objectives. This
benefitsmap will ensure that benefitsarenot viewed in isolation, but rather
demonstrate howinterventions can generate multiple benefits simultaneoudy
and how benefitsmay span across diff erent outputs and outcomes. These
wider benefits will support the transition by helping to unlock various
different funding streams and opportunities, for example around health.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Acrossthe HGGT area, recent surveyshave indicated that thereis currently a
23% sustainable travel mode share. This means to achieve the Transport
Strategy objectives, amore than doubling of the current share by active and
public transport modes from today’s figures is required. This is equivalent to
approximately three times as many sustainable travel trips by 2040.

The optimum path to achieving the modal transition objectives will need to
adapt to economic and societal changes and the success of committed
infrastructureschemes. Public acceptability and cost are key constraints. If
publicly acceptable measures do not achievethe required behaviour change,
then higher impact measures or further investment in existing measures may
be needed to achieve thedesred outcome. Most successful modal transition
delivery strategiesrely onamix of better services, promotions, and effective
demand management interventions.

The Framework has been set out according to six themes:
Roads, streets and neighbourhoods

Increasing bus use

Increasing shared mobility and active travel

Targeted engagement programmes

Rebalancing the cost of travel

Sustainable freight and deliveries

These themes reflect the key areas of targeted intervention that will
contribute to modal transition in HGGT. None of these themes alone will
deliver the modal transition objectives for HGGT, however, delivering a
mixture of interventions across all the themes will result in a more
sustainable shift in behaviours. Thisframework hasbeen deve oped to enable
the future consideration and integration of initiatives that may enhance
progresstowards modd trangtion objectives. Ensuring the Framework can
adapt as technology evolves, best practices emerge, or political mandate
dictates.

Three scenarios were developed to provide an indication of potential
pathwaysto achievingthe HGGT modd transition objectives, ranging from
falling behind (i.e BAU), to trailing the target timeframes to being on-track
to achieve the objectives (i.e. Exemplar).

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 2



9GT abed

1. Introduction

1.1 Background

Arup has been commissioned by Harlow and Gilston Garden Town (HGGT)
to produce a framework to support- the re-imagining of how people can
travel differently in Harlow. The purpose of this Framework isto set out how
the modal trandtion objectives edablished in the HGGT Transport Strategy
(2022) could beachieved under different scenarios. This Framework includes
aprioritised pathway of transport focused interventions that are either at
various stages of planning, designand delivery, or have been developed and
identified through this work. All to achieve the ultimate aim of a modal
transition to more sustainable modes of transport.

Aspart of the development of thisFramework, stakeholder engagement has
been acritical influencing factor. Significant levelsof engagement have been
undertaken with local authority officers, senior local authority leadership,
elected members, developers and other key stakeholders.

One of the key outcomes of the Framework, and the development of it, has
been focused on knowledge transfer, with the aim of influencing the
organisational approach to the challenge within the five HGGT partner
authorities, comprised of ECC, EFDC, EHDC, HDC and HCC. This will be
crucial to the ef fective execution of the Framework and achievement of the
modal transition objectives.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town

| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 3



/GT obed

1.2 Purpose of this Framework and Approach to
Implementation

Asstated in section 1.1, aFramework isrequired in order to give HGGT and
its partner organisations a clear pathway to how it will achieve the modal
transition.

The Framework has been prepared to guide decision makersinthe immediae
next stepsto be taken along the pathway to achieving the modal transition
objectives established within the HGGT Transport Strategy and secured
through various planning agreements with developers. It also provides a
long-term vision of the types of projects, schemes and interventions that will
contribute towards the achievement of the modal objectives.

Whilst significant work has been progressed to date, by a wide range of
diff erent partners, theactionswithinthe Transport Strategy and the long- list
of transport interventionsthat havebeen developed to support the strategy,
have not been prioritised in such a way that the impact and relative
contribution towards themodal shareobjectives can beconsidered and fully
understood.

The purpose of this Framework isto give the right level of information to
decision makersto eneblethem to make aninformed choice, and have aview
on, the pathway to the achievement of the modal transition, whichisrequired
to support sustainable development in the HGGT area.

The Framework has sought to review all identified schemes, and using
professonal judgement, of the consultancy teamand locd authorities, as well
ascomprehensive research and benchmarking, to ascertain whether these
schemes will be sufficient, in their current form, to meet the objectives.

Through thisdetailed interrogetion of theexisting work plan, it is clear that
on the current trajectory, thereis low confidence that the highly ambitious
targets that HGGT and partners have signed up to will be met within the
proposed timeframes.

As such, a number of themes around different elements of transport and
movement have been investigated to understand where there may be
opportunitiesto devedop further programmes and interventions that could be

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town

| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

delivered to close the modal transition gap. Thisisthe intention of the
delivery pathway — to demonstrate how the HGGT area may be able to
progress on itsjourney fromwhere it is now to meeting the susainable travel
objectives.

These themeshave contained within them awide range of components that
could be considered challenging to deliver, socially, technologically,
economically (cost), environmentaly and palitically. It should be noted that
the ultimate aim of this Framework isto show what is required to meet the
modal objectives. Itis recognised that thisis one of many outcomes that the
authoritiesinvolved are seeking to achieve. To address this, we have also
developed a benefits map to show how other wider societal benefits can be
achieved through the delivery of the theme components.

In summary, the key purposes of this Framework comprise using it as:

o A tool to leverage s106 funding contributions from Developers
that will support achievement of the modal objectives.

e A mechanism to obtain funding from gover nmental departments.

e A pathway to dischar ge the conditions of the Housing
I nfrastructure Grant.

ﬂ A technical base and supporting infor mation for Local
Transport Plans (whether they are existing and/or emer ging).

It isimportant to note that thisis a Delivery Framework that is currently
unfunded, not a statutory document and significantly extends the scope of the
IDP, therefore a clear objective will be to use it as a “hook™ to leverage
financial support.

The following sub-section overleaf talks about how the Framework has been
developed, who the usersof the Framework are and how it is intended that
they use the Framework in their roles to support the required modal
transition.

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 4



8GT abed

1.3 Summary of Approach and How to Use This
Framework

This Framework has pulled together significant amounts of existing context,
through acomprehensvediagnostic review. This hasincluded a review of
existing contextual information around HGGT area-wide movement and
transport. It hasalsoinvolved a deep dive into existing plans, policies and
strategieswhich arelikely to influence the ability of the five HGGT partner
authoritiesto deliver modal transition. This also included a benchmarking
review of similar placesthat are seekingto achieve similar modal transition
outcomes.

Following this diagnostic review, challenges and opportunities have been
identified, which havethen been worked through into a benefits framework
mapping exercise. Theobjective of thisisto illustrate what wider benefits
can be realised to improve the lives of the people of the HGGT area and
future residents, through the changes being implemented to achieve the
modal transition.

The Framework then seeksto set out the ddivery planrequirements under a
number of different scenarios and thisis explained through a number of
identified themes, such as ‘roads, streets and neighbourhoods’ and
‘increasing bus use’.

The Framework then goesinto detail under each of these themes, identifying
who is responsible for delivery, the indicative cost range, and what is the
expected modal transition that can beachieved through successful ddivery of
each programme or intervention that are contained within these themes.

These details have been informed f rom comprehensive desktop research and
benchmarking, and detailed discussions and workshopswith officersworking
across all of the HGGT partner councils.

These programmes and interventions are all then subsequently brought
together in the delivery pathway, which sets both short-term (next 2 years)
and long-term (up to 2040) actions that will need to be undertaken to achieve
the objectives.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

How to use this Framework
This Framework will have different usesfor different parties all responsible

for various elements of influencing movement choices across the HGGT
area.

HGGT and Partner Councils

This Framework will be a critical piece of work that can be used by HGGT
and councilsto ensurethat thereisaclear pathway to the modal transition
that needs to hgppen. Thiswill act astheir guiding framework to know what
to do next, when to do it, how long it will take to deliver and to gain an
indication of thelikely impact and contribution towards the set objectives.

Developers

Developersbringing forward plans will need to demongtratealignment with
this Framework and propose devel opment that is complementary, whilst also
being cognisant of the phasing of the transport programmes.

Local Authority Officers and Decision Makers
Local Authoritieswill use this Framework to aid planning decisions, enabling

them to robustly respond to planning applications and support them in
discussions with developers.

Residents and Local Interest Groups

This Framework should give residents comfort that there is aclear pathway
that has been established to understand what needs to happen, and when, to
ensure the sustainable delivery of growth in the HGGT area.

Stakeholders and Businesses

Itis crucial that wider stakeholders (e.g. publictrangport operators) and local
businesses and public sector groupssuch as schools and the local NHS trust
are fully bought into the Framework. It will be crucial for their support to be
gained for the Framework to bedeliverableand f or thetransition required to
be achieved. They will use this Framework to inform future business
planning through understanding the long-term vision for the HGGT area.

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 5



2. Context and Setting the Challenge

2.1 HGGT Vision

Harlow has grown from a vision shaped by Gibberd: ‘an organism which
would go on changing and being rebuilt as theneedsof the people changed.’

Sustainable development, health and wellbeing of residents, and better
connecting Harlow as it grows are now among the key needs of people
currently and going forward.

It isimportant to remember that HGGT is not starting from scratch:
e Gibberd designed Harlow for cycling and walking
o Harlow is already well-connected to urban areas and nature

Modal transition iscritical to realising the Gibberd vision

| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Ca

ravel Differently




09T abed

2.2 HGGT Modal Transition Objectives and Funding
Conditions

There are two key elements that form the requirements around the modal
transition objectives. These are critical as they underpin the Transport
Strategy, but also significant sumsof Central Government-allocated funding
that conditions the need to demonstrate progress towards the achievement of
the stated objectives. Thisis set out in more detail below.

Modal Transtion Objectives

50 % by of all trips starting and/or ending in the existing settlement area of
Harlow Town should be by active and sustainable travel modes.

60% by 2033 of all trips starting and/or ending in the new Garden
Communities of Harlow & Gilston Garden Town should be by active and
sustainable travel modes.

o EXistingresidentsandthe travel withinthe HGGT areaneedsto achieve

o New strategic sites being ddivered acrosstheHGGT areawill need to

K ey takeaways:

Modal Transition to reach the 50% sustainable mode objective.

establish how the modal objective will be achieved, what they are
delivering to ensure this and how they will get to 60%.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town

| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Grant Determination Agreement (GDA) Part 1- Transport
Monitoring

For the Housing Infragtructure Grant, wording has been agreed that states:
that the Grant Recipient shall provide:

e Further transport monitoring and evaluation if requested by the
Department for Trangport, including, but not limited to, the monitoring
and evaluation of travel plansinduding sustainable and active modes;

o Details of potential approaches to meeting this requirement

Key takeaways:

e Clear and effective Monitoring and Evaluation Plan is required
showingthe baselineinformationandthe pathway to achieving the
reguirements.

e TheFramework will need to set out the range of potential gpproaches
to meet the requirements, for both existing HGGT area residents and
those in the future.

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 7



T9T abed

2.3 Measuring Mode Share and Global Comparisons

Most townsand citiesin the UK do not monitor their mode share. Measuring
mode share is only possible through travel surveys or potentially using
innovative techniquessuch as monitoring mobile phone data, although this
comes with its own challenges.

Anindicationisusudly inferred through Census-collected data by assessing
the mode used to commute. However, the 2021 Census was undertaken
during the Covid-19 pandemic when travel patterns were impacted. The
Censusisalso only undertaken every 10years, meaning change can be hard
to monitor on a more granular basis.

The Department for Transport (Df T) does undertake an annual National
Travel Survey (NTS), but this coversthe whole UK and the sample size is
too small for regional analysis.

Some larger cities conduct ongoing mode share analysis, for example
Transport for London (TfL) produce annual Travel in London reports.

The chart on the right is a summary of the 2021 Census commuting mode
share for Harlow and other towns and cities. Harlow currently hasarelatively
high car mode share, low amounts of working from home and moderate
public transport and active mode share.

Harlow’s high motorised modeshare for journey to work compared to WFH
and active travel could be attributed to the labour market profileof the town
set out in the transport baseline. The sociodemographic mix of the area,
comparative expenses of sudainable transport options compared to the car,
national reduction in passenger transport use following Covid-19, lack of
investment to maintain activetrave routes and passenger travel options, the
lack of flexihility of sustainable transport, and the reliability of services are
also contributing factors.

Other examplesof lower car usehave been in historical settlements. Cities
and towns with constrained road networks (such as Cambridge, Delft or
Pontevedra) or modern suburbs designed to support low vehicles use
(Vauban or Houten example overleaf) have significant road capacity
constraints, which support uptakeof different modesof transport. However,
there are also other examplesof citiesdelivering higher shares of sustainable

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

travel through investment in arange of infrastructure alongside the right
transport policies. The specific challenge in Harlow is that the existing
transport and urban realm has historically prioritised vehicle movements
between ne ghbourhoods which alongside trends in higher car ownership, the
relative costs of different modes and location of employment has made
driving the dominant transport model.

2021 Census - Journey to Work

60%

50% N N -
40%
30%
20% = = B _ _
10%
0%
o

W Mode Share Motorised B Mode Share PT/Active B Share Work From Home

Figure 1: Comparison of commuting mode shares = Harlow and other towns and
cities (2021 Census Journey to Work [JtW])

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 8



29T abed

2.4 Case Study 1 - Odense, Denmark

Odense is the third largest city in Denmark, located 100 miles from
Copenhagen. It has been successful in increasing the share of both active
transport and public transport, whilst reducing traffic.

Local public transport is provided through alight rail or tram sysem (opened
in 2022) and buses which are connected to neighbouring communities
through activetransport. Thetramway was congructed on previous highway
which was seen to becreating severancef or activeand publictrangport in the
city. Odensealso deve oped anintegrated ticket sysem for use across modes,
and alow emission zone operates in the centre of the city.

Odense hastargeted campaignsin placeto increasethe level of active travel
within the city. Thisincludes bike friend campaign, acycling coach scheme
and walking chdlenge. Thesecampaigns are alongsideinvestment in cycling
infrastructure. For example, the mainrailway station hasample cycle storage
and there is over 540 km of bicycle paths.

Table 1: Comparison of mode share with Odense, Denmark

Figure 2: Odense tramway opened in 2022

Odense Harlow

Population 175,245 93,566

Public Transport M ode Share 26% 14%

Population Density 2,280.74/km2 3,058/km2

Motorised Share 28% 7%

Cycle Usege 50% of dl centrd trips done by 2.6% of adults cycling for travel
bike a least 3 times per week

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Figure 3: Odense foot and cycle bridge

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 9



2.5 Case Study 2 — Houten, Netherlands

Houten is asuburb on the outskirts of Utrecht, Netherlands. Like Harlow, it
was a “new town” however it was designed specifically to maximise cycle
and public transport access over the private car.

Vehiclesare only able to leave neighbourhoods via the ring road whilst the
neighbourhoods are connected by dedicated walking and cyding routes. This
meansthat active transport isfaster for nearly all short journeys and external
journeys can still be made by car. Key trip attractors such as schools are

located on the active transport spine.

Houten actively promotes sustainable travel through behavioural change
programmes These, combined with innovative design featuresand the city’s

persistent policies to favour cyclists and pedestrians, have resulted in

numerous measured benefits, including improved cyclist and pedestrian
saf ety, increased activity levels of residents, and reduced air quality impacts.

Table 2: Comparison of mode share with Houten, Netherlands

17 rimed wimsd

- X ¥ o e
- N |'| ] 5 : ki oaty gt
h) ety
X % r—'—‘-ll

i |
i T

\
_.u:"’
25

Figure 4: Strategic transport map of Houten

Figure 5: Houten neighbourhood cycle path

Houten Harlow
Population 49,911 93,566
Carsper 1000 residents 415 564
Population Density 914/km2 3,058/km2
Public Transport Mode Share 11% 14%
Motorised Share 45% 7%

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

€97 abed

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently
Page 10



9T abed

2.6

London

Target: 80% of tripsby Public and Active
Transport by 2041

Baseline: 65% of trips by Public and
Active Transport (2022)

Historical change: LondonHasachieve a
12% increase in sustainable mode share
from 2000 to 2022.

Key componentsof strategy:

e Continuedinvestmentin publictransport
including busin outer London, locd rail
services and tube.

e Healthy Streets programmeto encourage
walkingand cydingandnew ectivetrave
infrastructure.

e Denser devdopment, publictransport
accessible areas.

e Utilisingfurther road pricingif required.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Example Mode Share Targets from Other Cities

Greater Manchester

Target: 50% of tripsby Public and Active
transport by 2040

Baseline (2018): 40% of tripsby Public and
Active Transport

Historical change: No evidence of
transf ormative modal shift to sustainable
trips prior to creation of TFGM but

Key components of strategy:

Control and reformthebusnetworks
through franchising.

Development of tram/train network.

Integrated ticketingandimprovedrail
service.

Expansion of cycling infrastructure.

Focusdensedevel opment onpublic
transport corridors.

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Other Areas

Target: Most regionscities target changes
in specific modes or outcomes. Examples
include:

e DFT: Netzero transport in U.K by 2050.
DFT Decarbonising Transport

o Wales: 45% of journeys to be made by
publictransport, walkingandcycding— by
2040.

e ActiveTravd England: 50%o0f tripsin
England'stowns and cities are walked,
wheeled or cycled by 2030

e Oxford: 50% increase in all cycle
journeyswithin Oxfordf or all purposes
by 2031.

e Cardiff: Increasing mode share of
sustainablemodesfrom 51%to 75%by
2030.

e Edinburgh: 30% reductionin kilometres
(KMs) travelled by car by Edinburgh
residents.

Page 11



GoT abed

2.7 Optimal Path to Achieving the Modal Transition
Objectives

The optimum path to achieving the modal transition objectives will need to
adapt to economic and societal changes and the success of committed
infrastructure schemes.

Public acceptability and cost are key constraints, but the most impactful
modal shift palicieshaveincluded potentially controversid measures such as
restricting certain traffic movements and some form of pricing mechanisms
for travel.

To get public support better public and activetrangport needsto be delivered
so residents have more viable choices other than private car. If publicly
acceptable measures do not achieve the required behaviour change, then
higher impact measures may be needed which may include greater use of
vehicle restraint or pricing.

Most successful modal transition frameworksrely on amix of better services,
promotions, effective pricing and restraint measures.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

e Trips by active and sustainable travel modes (Harlow)
=== Trips by active and sustainable fravel modes (strategic sites)
= Trips by non active and sustainable travel modes (Harlow)

== Trips by mon active and sustainable ravel modes (strategic

sites)
160,000
140,000

Focus on developing share, delivering

120.000 the network of active development and
o and public transport deca:homsmg

alternatives and remauming fransport

promoting nsage
100,000

Number of Trips
[==]
=
(=)
]
L)

Focus on improving
zervices and
1esitaini medsures 10
required to boost
modal tranzition

BT W W M 00 h D e oy oo T = T - B - Y — |
o o o ocdoe el Toenoen o o M oen o m w
o L] o] o =] o] o [ [ o o [ =1 o [ [ -] (=]
o T o B o B T = I o T o R = | ' B o I o B o I = R | I =]

Figure 6: Recommended path to achieving the modal transition objectives for
HGGT

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 12



2.8 Factors that Influence Future Modal Shares There are many factors that influence travel, and hence mode share, that are
not within the direct control of HGGT partners. The factors outside HGGT’s
control will influencewhat needs to be ddivered to meet themodal transition
objectives These will change over time and will also impact the success of
each individual intervention. Future “background” changes are uncertain and

Employment Markets will require flexibility in strategies and plans to be able to respond.
and Commuiing

99T abed

S, Not within . s .
Commercial Aiteraton anc Parking Cost HGGTs Key examplesof factorsoutside HGGT’s control that impact any planned

ot - - strategy are:
Logistics sl (07 National Policy control

ssitlls _ Regional Policy e Travel demand changes induced by Covid-19.
Parking Supply
National Bus Policy Technology o Fuel price spikes changing behaviours.
Public Percenti Change m Vehicles _ _ )
Cost of Vehicles S (e.g. Automation) e Theroleof smartphonesin transport which are changing theway people
plan journeys and the preferences of travellers.

Active Travel :
Kail FOUCY 10CL Intrastructure National . . . . . o .
Road Pricing ¢ Onlineretailing changing leisurehabits and society is adgpting to people
spending more time online rather than in person, reducing some leisure

Economic Public Transport trips.

Future Pricing  pyplic Awareness
Fuel Prices

Growth ISR Within  Population dispersal due to technology.
Development Consent . . . .
HGGT's e Working from home creating ‘occasional” commuters who are harder to
Built Environment control predict.

¢ Land use changes through permitted deve opment rights (PDR) resulting

in uncontrolled distribution of key jour ney attractor s/gener ators.
Figure 7: Factors not within and within HGGT's control

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Page 13



3. Baseline Transport Profile

3.1 The Challenge — Mode Share

Theareaof significant challenge for the delivery of this Framework is the . ; .

scale of themodd transtion required. The current mode share for sustainable In line with the HGGT Transport Strategy:

transport, whilst reasonable for the context of the HGGT area, is still far e Active and sustainable transport = walk, cycle, bus, train
below the future modal objectives. The challenge of implementing this _ _ _
change and what that means for overall numbers of people travelling by  Non-sustainable transport = vehicle passenger or driver

sustainable modes is an important consideration when developing the
prioritised interventions. The challenge is illustrated in the figure below.

%

Strategic sites need to have a far
hagher share of active and
g T sustanable modes than the
- Near doubling of the use of existing pattems of travel in
= sustainable modes within the Harlow
2 : . 0
g existing town will be required. +37 //'I':]
| This will requere a new style of
e development which favours
Change achieved through existing e e i
g measures (indicative) / :
.
0%

8Today ®Fohme ®Strmtegr Sobes

Figure 8: The challenge - modal share
Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

/9T abed

Page 14



89T abed

3.2 The Challenge — Demand

The modal transition objectives, coupled with the expected population
increases corrdate to asignificant increasein the number of trips to be made
by sustainable modes:

e +90,267 (+216%) tripsper day if thereisnoreductionin thetrip rate
(trips per person per day).

o +48,157 (+115%) tripsper day if thereisareduction in thetrip rate(trips
per person per day).

The capacity of theactive and public transport network will need to match
this anticipated demand.

The reduction in the non-sustainablemode share results in non-sustainable
trip reducing moderately from 2021 with the growth projections.

It should be noted that previous studies on the number of trips, used in
support of theLocal Plan, presented forecast trip rateswhich only considered
vehicle trips in the peak periods for a wider area.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

160,000 100%

140,000

120,000

10,200

Active srd suzlsinable made share

280,000
50,000 3
o
-
+*
£0,000 B
=«
20,000 i
a [
201 2040 [same 156p rale as 2021] 2040 (reducad kip rala)
== Popalation = Trips by sustainable mode == Trips by non-sustainable mode =——Mode share

Figure 9: The challenge =total demand forecasts

Note:
2021 trip rate: 1.95 trips per person
Reduced trip rate: 1.61 trips per person (1% reduction per year)

Trip ratesin the U.K have been falling due to changing leisure, retail and
employment patterns, if these where to continue demand for travel on a per capita
basiswould fall.

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 15



69T obed

3.3 Baseline Mode Share Results (Stantec) NTEM Data:

To help inform the progress of the transport strategy and understand the e National Trip End Model forecasts growth in trip production and
baseline mode share in order to measure against targets, HGGT attractionsfor usein transport modelling. 2023 NTEM datawas extracted
commissioned Stantec to undertake comprenensivetravel surveys across the by Stantec for Harlow District using TEMPro software. Like any f orecast
area of interest, in November 2022 and March/April 2023. Three types of model it partially only models the spatial reality in local areas.
surveys were undertaken.

Residential Surveys:

Baseline Mode Share Survey Results

e 20,000 letters sent out

85
e 3%responserate 100%
80%

Employee Surveys

_ 60%
e 1,900 business contacted 3a%

40% 22%
e 728 online-only responses, reduced to 135 valid responseswith trip data g R 125 g
e 118 -“I“l ool - ual Blam
Retail/Leisure Surveys: 0% -— == 1
e Of 2,312 surveyed, 759 (33%) valid responses utilised \E._?Q“ \\Q-x“ _\h& _\;}o‘? (j;;-“'\ ‘:{\G“
su N Nl Ry )
Key Issues/ Limitations: & < t@' & & Al
of v
e Survey responsewaslessthan hoped but still provides reasonable
statistical reliability. m Walk ® Cycle m Public Transport ®mVehicle Passenger mVehicle Driver
o A clear methodology hasbeen taken to ensure that sustainable modes are Mode Share o prs
not overreported due to analysis of both trip stages and in totality. 0% 0% 0% 6P o A

The baseline mode share from the residential survey has been validated B Active & Sustainable Travel  ® Non-Sustainable Travel
against Census 2021 (which asks specifically about travel to work), with the
resul_ts n9t havmg S|gn|f|cant variances, which _conflrms Its r_obustness, . Figure 10: Baseline modal share survey results (Stantec, 2023)
considering the Census2021 wasundertaken during Covid, which resulted in
some anomalies (e.g. less public transport use and more driving).
Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Page 16



3.4 Mode Share: All Trip Types
HGGT residents currently:

0.7 abed

e Relyoncar forcommuting, shopping, escorting family members
personal business and leisure.

e Show propensity for higher uptake of walking for commuting,
escort and leisure compared to the England-wide average.

e Show propensity for higher uptakeof cyclingfor businessand
shopping compared to the England-wide average.

e Show propensity for higher uptakeof public transport for busness,
education/education escort, shopping and leisure compared to the
England-wide average.

Combined (residential, employment, retail/leisure) surveys
resulted in abaseline (2023) mode shareof 23% of people
using sustainable modes.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

l_.'!l&*st;lnplil Ly Lrin lype

P—— [ [ap— [rT— - tam
I ] — — — — o -
o — -
BN,
e ]
R | [ =] -
i L L L L | || L
- w s . - a 2 o E = > -
a-,;- __..'-'? & ,__F-.-:F ol A 2'.5"’ \r& ey A & ra e o
A & : ! A & 3 : ¥
& ey ,jf‘s & q‘;‘\ -,’ﬁy v
o y o o oF o
WAaR @iydn @Halldke @i B barsongos 409
Note:

The baseline mode share taken fromthe Stantec surveys was based on low response
rate, and should therefore be treated with some caution (albeit evidence is provided

to indicateit alignswith comparative data e.g. census).

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 17



T.T obed

3.5 Mode Share: Commuting

Commuting tripshave been investigated for patterns and the following
insights have been developed.

Compared to the all trips’ mode share:

o HGGT residents’ commuting tripstendto bedonemore by sustainable
modes than other trips.

o HGGT employees’ commuting tripstendto bedoneless by sustainable
modes than other trips.

2021 compared to 2023:

e dight reductionin public transport use (continued recovering from
Covid-19).

e Increase in walking and cycling.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town

| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Method of travel 1o work
Pt

[
(L6
20 armpk 13
FUES s
Wak y Coar nace

Cyris Ral { qax [
mAll Harfow DY mAUl Horlos 2031 @ 3023 swreey [sesideminl @303 surery emaloyess)

Figure 12: Method of travel to work - Census (2011 and 2021); Stantec surveys (2023)

Note:

The baseline mode share taken fromthe Stantec surveyswas based on a low
response rateand should therefore be treated with some caution (albeit evidenceis
provided to indicate it alignswith comparative data e.g. Census).

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 18



2/ 1 abed

3.6 Trip Duration: All Trip Types

Accordingto survey data of the HGGT area taken from the Stantec travel
surveys (2023):

e The mgjority of trips surveyed have a duration of 11-30 mins.
o 54% of trips are internal to Harlow; 46% external.

o Opportunity to target 0-30 minstrips being undertaken by car with active
and bus transport.

e Longer distancetrips are more challenging to convert to sustainable
transport modes.

In comparison the England-wide averages® are:
e Walk: 18 mins

e Cycle: 24 mins

e Rail: 82 mins

e Bus(non-Lon): 37 mins

e Car: 21 mins

e Car pax: 22 mins

L NTS, 2022 - NTS0303

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town

| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Trip duration in 2023 (HGGT

Y0P

A

a0

A

[+
Welnl

WiAdmaE B1-I0mEE BX mind BB AiAE DR minL R miaE

9

[ Pad { B E [—

Figure 13: Trip duration, Stantec residential surveys (2023)

Duration of internal employment trips 49% 40% 7% 0% 0%
Duration of internal residential trips 48% 43% 5% 2% 1%

Note:

The baseline mode share taken fromthe Stantec surveyswas based on a low
responserate, and should therefore be treated with some caution (albeit evidenceis
provided to indicate it alignswith comparative data e.g. census).

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 19



¢/ T obed

3.7 Transport Network — Relative Cost of Car and Bus

The BusNetwork Review for Harlow has been interrogated to understand
how the attractiveness of bus compares to the attractiveness of driving.

The average busfare for adult commutersis £0.25 more expensive than the
average long-stay parking charge?. Theaverage bus fare for a leisure trip is
£2.59 more expensive than the average short-stay parking charge.

Around 1/3 bus passengers are part of concessionary schemes and do not pay
afull fare.

For larger family groups travelling by bus can be significantly more
expensive than parking — where costs such as are shared.

Currently busfares are £2 as part of a national bus fare cap, this will
temporarily reduce the cost of travelling by bus for many trips.

Thisdifferencemay thereforeact to encourage morepeopleto use privae car
over bus when making commuter and leisure trips.

Le=x

-

]

Cast (£}

g%

-

5
3
dl l

fWCrage Fanong  Average Uus bare  Soorage Hamng o Average Dus Fane
Charge (Long siay) (oM Charge (<hofd Liay) Laisure 1np)

Area of Travel Cost

Figure 14: Car parking costs against public transport ticket pricing

21t is noted that the bus fares relate to an adult fare per person whereas car parking charges are per vehicle.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 20



v/ T abed

3.8 Private Sector Car Parking

Parkingin central retal and employment areas of Harlow isrelatively low
cost and provided by private businesses for customers or for employees.

Key car parking observations:

e Many hospitably andleisure business arelikely to continue to want to
provide free parking to attract customers in a competitive market.

e For many retail business, providing free car parking ensures
competitiveness with out-of - town retail or online retailers and cost of
provision is relatively low.

e Providing employees with parking ensures they competitive with other
employers and providing the equivdent public transport discount as a
benefit has additional tax implications.

e With many employers providing free parking and many employees
having freeparking at home (either off-street or on-road) increasing the
share of employers commuting by public trangoort over medium and long
distances can be challenging.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Car Park

Number of Spaces

Charges
(Weekday - approx. 2 hours)

The Water Gardens 1200 £0.90 for 2 hours
Queensgate Centre 842 Free (customers only)
The Harvey Centre 731 £1.10 for 2 hours
Terminus Street 678 £3for 2 hours
Harlow Town Station | 673 £2 for 2 hours

The Oaks Retail Park | 382 Free (customers only)
Post Office Road 139 £1.25 for 2 hours

Table 3: Main car park capacity and charges in Harlow

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 21



G/ T obed

3.9 Employment Profile

Harlow’s economy has a high quotient of public sector employment
including:

e Harlow College (400)
e Harlow Council (400)
e The Princess Alexandra Hospital (3,500)

In the private sector the employment market has a higher-than-average
employment in sectorslike Retail (22%) andin the public-private sector with
Health and Sodial work (19%). Much of Harlow’s private sector employment
isin businesses of under 100 people and their sustainability is vital to
ensuring the local economy is growing.

The shift patternsin many of many occupaionsrequires early morning and
late evening commutes, this may favour car journeysand alternativesneed to
provide a competitive service outside core hours or equivalent levels of
saf ety and security in early morning and evening such as lighting and
maintenance of paths.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

L]

;

l-Z|1||1|m||:-.'r|l within Harlow
¥
=

e I ] |w:u—\n: e md Podromt | Sdsacmemy Berwes ‘ez h
Rzt Trade g Cosmmrmes  kuzzfc ox r..r:rp-.—
r.r:_ f Nom Tk
...f,—.._' l.. i ACTVEE
Bty

e

Inchstie

Figure 15: Jobs located within Harlow by sector (Source: Nomis data, 2022)

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 22



9,7 abed

3.10 Travel Behaviour

Various sources of information have been interrogated to infer travel
behaviours, the key points to note are that:

In Harlow, there is broadly balanced commuting flows (slightly tilted
toward outflow of commuters — 16,000 inflow compared to 16,500
outflow). Thereis generally aninflow nationdly for towns and cities, due
to their role as employment hubs.

Intemal travel isby 34% sustainable modes (with walking accounting for
21%) and indicates already significant car sharing (9% intemal passenger
trips compared to in/out travel).

Only 11% sustainable travel into Harlow.

Travel fromHarlow gopears moresudainable at 22% - reflecting
significant travel to work in London.

5% 1%

nvernal Trips - S

2% 1% 1%

outflow Trips I

1% 1% 1%

nflow Trips I

0 5000 10000 15000 20000

B Walk B Cycle B Public Transport M Passenger M Driver ll Other

Figure 16: Internal and external trips (Harlow Economic Development Strategy, 2023)

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Figure 17: Internal and external trips by mode

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

i mn Dariwar

Page 23



4, Challenges and Opportunities

4.1 Challenges

This section sets out to summarise the challenges identified through the
baseline diagnostic review that have been distilled down and grouped into
various themes.

All identified challenges have been assessed against the impact to modal
transition objectivesand were then considered to betaken forward during the
prioritisation and scenario testing phase of the study.

Challenges have been summarised into the following categories:
e Travel patterns

e Transport network

e Spatial design and land use

e Social characteristics

e Resources

e Political

e Economy

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

/1T obed

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 24



8/ T abed

Category

Challenge

Supporting data

Implication on modal transition objectives

Travel patterns

Low number of peoplein jobsthat
enable working from home.

Occupation current -
Census Maps, ONS

Limited ability to reduce the total number of
commuting trips. Car isthe main modeused by
existing residents for commuting.

Many trips startand/or end outside
of the HGGT area (some including
the

rural hinterlands of Essex and
Hertfordshire and beyond).

Stantec survey 2023
(internal / external trip
analysis)

These longer trips are difficult to servein their
entirety by alternatives to the car. Modal
Transition for these will rely on the bus network
(noting thereis arole for rail connecting some
adjacent areas).

Limited dataavailability of trip patterns
(i.e., chalenging to understand trip
patterns based on current data - Stantec
survey, Census or NTS).

Officer interviews

Limited understanding of trip patterns and profiles
makes informed investment in interventions for
Modal Transition more difficult.

Level of HGGT Partner control

High — HGGT can improve understanding and
monitoring of trips to and within the HGGT area.

Transport
network

Even with Modal Transition objectives,
thereis aneed to retain highnway capacity
due to projected population grows

Stantec survey
2023; population
projections (seeslide11)

Any reductions in highway capacity at locations
will need to be carefully considered.

Medium — HGGT can provide an important coordination
and collaboration rolewith the partner councils making up
the LHA and would be consulted with for future
governance, with final responsibilities lying with the
highways authorities as LHA (HCC/ECC).

Falling bus patronage and the challenging of
developingsustainable mode share without|
ongoing subsidy

bus01.ods
(live.com) (BUSO1e)

Reduction in bus mode share. Higher costs for
multiple people/families usingbuses compared
to parking even with current fare cap.

Medium — Improving bus services requires financial
subsidy, likely to requireahigh level of funding. However,
bus subsidies may berequired as part of S106 agreements.
Subsidy required alongside analysing whole journey
package to understand constraintsof current provision and
measures to reduce attractiveness of parking cost in line
with ECC standards.

Missinglinkswithin thewalkingand
cycling network.

HGGT Transport Strateqy

Limits the casefor change to walking and cycling|
modes if the network is disconnected between key/
O-Ds.

Medium —HGGT have produced an LCWIP and will
be updated early next year. This will interlink with
LCWIP’s produced by the counties. HGGT needs to
continue to make the case for funding through
national schemes. Currently only LHA’s can bid, with
no indication within that this will change in future.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 25



6.1 obed

Distanceto thetrain stations
from communities in the
south.

HGGT Transport Strateqy

Potential reduction in theattractiveness of usingthe
train for longer trips or use of sustainable modes to
get to the station.

Medium — HGGT has developed
proposals to increase public and active
transport from the south but there are
areas outside of control of HGGT such as
fare integration.

Real and perceived safety
issues with sustainable
transport network.

HGGT Transport Strateqy

Potential reduction in attractiveness of active and
sustainable modes.

High — HGGT can run trials on new
modes and support safety through
messaging and programmes. HGGT can
liaisewith LHA to ensure infrastructure
is maintained and delivered to a high
standard and raiseissues to address with
them.

Limited collaboration on demand-
responsivetransport (DRT) / community

Officer interviews

Limits the potential for cross-boundary DRT or
community transport to fill gaps in the transport
network.

Medium — HGGT can push theagenda
for this amongst partner councils, but

achieving buy-in from al is not
guaranteed.

Transport transport.
network
i : Limits attractiveness of non-car modes if they can't
Accessibility (travel time) by car compared Accessibility mapping access a similar number of destinations in gyn
to other modes : )
equivalent timeframe.
Therelative costs of modes can result in incentives
Relative cost Officer Interviews for car trips especialy for larger groups
Longterm sustainability of high frequency Introducing comprehensive new form of
bus services, share and demand Officer Interviews transport need to have long term revenue and
responsive transport service sustainability plans.
Readily avallabl_e cheap parkingin . : Does not disincentivise driving throughout HGGT.
town centre, main employment Spatial mapping
areas and residential
developments.
Spatial design
and land use Planned poly-centric layout will provide residents
with access to alarge number of services in ashort
Spatial layout of HGGT. Spatial mapping distance. Thesetrips aremore easily accommodated

by active and sustainable modes.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Medium — Improvements to the active
and public transport networks will
increase the accessibility of these modes.
Proximity to strategic road network
presents challenges to level of control.

Medium — Council-owned parkingis
within HGGT’s control, but retail and
employment sites are privately owned,

and companies havecommercial pressure
to retain.

Page 26



08T abed

Current model does not disincentivise driving, and
there are potential political and costingissues in

Low- Private parking owned by many
businesses is seen as key to attracting
customers and retaining competitiveness

Private Sector Parking Supply Spatial mapping driving a shift away from this model. as an employer, with employee
expectations to havefree on-siteparking.
High — A second Stort crossing is being
planned according to the strategic

River Stort severs HGGT (aswell asA414) | Spatial mapping Disproportionally increases thejourney time of transport network vision. Further possible

walking and cycling compared to driving.

intervention includes Parndon LCWIP
Mill Route, Link to Roydon Station and
improvements to the paths in the Stort
Valley.

Social
characteristics

Lifestylefactors, e.g., leisure activities,
times and location of employment,
family commitments, etc.

General (i.e., not specificto HGGT)

Potential reduction in attractiveness of active and
sustainable modes for certain trip types or traveller
characteristics.

Low — HGGT is very limited in terms
of what it can do to influence these
lifestyle factors.

High car use.

HGGT Transport Strategy; Stantec

survey 2023

Potential reduction in attractiveness of sustainable
modes (walking

and cycling: safety; buses: congestion) if cars
dominate the local streetscapes.

Medium — HGGT can’t control national
policies on relative cost of modes e.g.,
public transport fares, fuel duty, etc.

Resistanceto change.

General (i.e., not specificto HGGT)

A long-term and persistent commitment over many
years is required which may involve impacts on
existing patterns of use.

Medium — HGGT will need local buy-in
to deliver the measures that will impact
existing residents.

Capacity in partner councils.

General (i.e., not specificto HGGT)

Limited human resources availableto push the
agenda for modal shift.

Medium — Knowledge transfer
throughout the partner councils and the
Modal Shift Officer role will help to
raise the profile of the task.

Resources I "
Limited human resources availableto pushthe mﬁ?jlil;gaeti(;?g]nél(;trh:)eilgreif)ﬁirsteake
Fundingavailability. Generdl (i.e., not specificto HGGT . ) P
9 v ( P ) ?ngggglasfr?i;t funding. Funding availability is aso
' available from central government
grants, etc.
Appendix ALong-term planningto support theModal
- - . - Transition is challenging. The introduction of the o -
Gaining long-term political support. Generdl (i.e., not specificto HGGT) Joint Committee will enable HGGT greater decision- Medium — HGGT can lobby politically.
making powers, and delegation in some respects.
Political

The ‘Plan for Drivers’ (DfT, Oct 2023).

General (i.e., not specificto HGGT)

Introduction of measures to balance the time
differential and environment between sustainable
modes and vehicles is difficult to introduce.

Low — National approach to drivers from
the Government.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 27




Gaining local support.

Officer interviews

Hesitance to make difficult decisions to support the
Modal Transition if loca support is not there.

Medium — HGGT will need local buy-in
to deliver the measures that will impact
existing residents.

Vehicleownership.

Number of carsor vans- Census Maps,

ONS

Can be difficult to influence people’s behaviours
away from car use towards sustainable modes with
very high levels of car ownership. Locations with
high public and active transport mode share tend to
havefar lower car ownership then Harlow (although
Harlow (78% car ownership is amongst the lowest
in Essex (83%).

Medium — HGGT has limited over
whether residents own vehicles, but it
can influence design of new
developments to reduce the need of
existing communities reliance on private
vehicle ownership through improvingthe
quality of alternatives to car ownership
or polices that reduce car ownership such
as household parking permitting.

Increasingcosts of bus operations.

Economy

Generdl (i.e., not specificto HGGT)

Reduction in bus mode share because of bus
operators withdrawingbus services, reducingthe
network coverage and service frequency.

Propensity to change different social groups
including deprivation

IMD

It may beharder to increase uptake people in lower
incomes as they could have other more pressing
economic challenges than travel even though
sustainable transport is in many cases more
affordable.

However public transport use is often higher for
lower income groups, often due to lower car
availability.

Medium - The HGGT Quiality of Life
work has identified issues and begun to
build relationship with local communities
and should be developed further.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

TQT abed

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 28



28T abed

4.2 Opportunities

This section sets out to summarise the opportunities that have been identified through the baseline diagnostic review. It summarises these into the following
categories:

Published LCWIP

Area Wide Network Management and Liveable Neighbourhoods
Infrastructure

Harlow Town Station

Spatial Design and Land use

Travel Patterns

Transport Network

Resources

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Page 29



£gT abed

Category Opportunity

Supporting information

Implication on modal transition objectives

Level of HGGT Partner control

Travel Patterns High number of internal (short) trips.

Stantec survey 2023 (internal / external trip
analysis)

High number of potential trips to target with
active and sustainable modes.

High — Shifting short trips to active travel
could be significant contributions to the
target through mix of improved cycleroutes
and right policies.

Thereisaready an extensivewalkingand
cycle network.

Spatial mapping

Potential faster uptake of active or
sustainable modes with moreinvestment asa
baseline has already been established.

High — Network can improve through
targeted measures and extensonsto new
development can be cost effective.

Current and ongoing bus reform funding.

National Bus Strategy

Increase in bus mode share will be
challenging without significant increase in
funding.

Medium — Bus funding largely available
from national funding pot and limited
resources to achieve significant frequency
improvements locally. Section 106 can also
support service improvements.

Trangport Network
Maintenance and lightinginitiatives to make
existing network more inviting.

2022 Quality of Life survey

Potential increasein attractiveness of active
and sustainable modes.

High — Network can improve through
targeted measures and extensions to new
development can be cost effective. Ongoing
cost will remain achallenge.

5106 agreements associated with new
development sites and des

General (i.e., not specificto HGGT)

Will assist with funding constraints and
reducethe risk of developments being
constructed with no car alternatives.

High — Opportunity for new sites to support
development of public and active transport
infrastructure on the outset.

DRT / community transportto help to service
rural areas or fill gaps in other parts of the
network.

General (i.e., not specificto HGGT)

Potential increasein bus mode share.

Medium — Evidencefor DRT providing
significant model shift.

Resources HGGT Moda Transition Officer role.

Officer interviews

Dedicated human resources to push the
agendafor Modal Transition acrossthe
HGGT partner councils.

Medium — Focused resourceto drive mode
shift agenda.

ATF funding secured for LCWIP Route 9 and

Can begin next stages of development of the

High — Funding secured (to Essex CC) and

Published LCWIP

Gilston and upgrade the LCWIP Route.

accessibility to new developments.

design for LCWIP4. HGGT LCWIP walking and cycling schemes. plans developed.
. . — High - Utilised opportunity for developes
N2C STCwill deliver the LCWIP Route 2 by Developer s106 contributions for the STC . .
2026 — funded through HIG. HGGT LCWIP network will support LCWIP delivery. g iE sl e i g
development.
CSC will deliver theLCWIP Route 3to HGGT LOWIP Delivery of key crossingfor sustainable High— Delivery of 2 infrastructure projects

and improvements through 1 scheme.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 30




8T abed

Parndon Mill Routesecured in s106.

s106 Heads of Terms

Support sustainable travel for new
developments.

Medium — Securing fundingthrough s106
agreements. Delivery trigger must be met
before funding secured. Still issues to
address.

Creation of apipelineof schemes for further
walking and cycling measures.

HGGT Transport Strategy

Key strategic aspect of maintaining
infrastructure delivery to support sustainable
travel by existing and new developments.

Medium — Capacity to develop more
schemes and interlink delivery difficult

ECC Asset Enhancement programme has
improved walkingand cyclingroutes away
from LCWIP.

Everyone’s Essex Annual Plan

Key for development of aregional,
sustainable travel network.

Medium — ECC deliverables but HGGT
can manage the opportunities for
connections withinthe HGGT areato these
routes.

ECC is planning a West Essex LCWIP to

Key trip types to betargeted for transition to

Medium — ECC deliverables but HGGT can

re_view inter-town, cross border arjd longer ECC engagement active and sustainable modes. manage the opportunities for connections
leisure and commuting opportunities. within the HGGT areato these routes.

. Key for achievinglevel of desired modd Medium — Aspects of strategy there but
AreaWide Network Crestion of abetter balance between vehidl transition, and greater equality between difficult to managetravel behaviour in area
Management and i st?stz;i)n:blet?ravel ancebetwee C& | HGGT Transport Strategy different mode choices and maximise due to constraints such as parking
L'Yeible h ' the benefits of theactive and sustainable ownership, business incentivesand national
Neighbourhoods travel programmes. government policy.

High — First leg to be delivered by March
Harlow Council Infrastructure Delivery 2026 through HIG. Opportunity toinvestin
' : Plan (IDP), Gilston Villages s106 Heads Delivery of key infrastructureto support design of other STCsections, create outline
Sustainable Transport Corridor (STC) of Term, Infrastructure Delivery Plan sustainable travel across HGGT area. business cases. Significant s106 funding
(IDP) Update 2024 already secured from Gilston. Network
within the IDP requires developer funding.
Infrastructure

HGGT AreaWider Infrastructure Schemes

Harlow Council Infrastructure Delivery
Pan Harlow & Gilston (HGGT)
Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) Update
2024

A mix of measures at key junctions across
the network to improve the sustainable and
active travel facilities, manage the network
and reduce impact of development in
residential areas. Key for deliveringlevel of
infrastructure required to achieve targets.

Medium — Schemes designed to preferred
option stageand creation of outline business
cases, with funding required.

ECC haveundertaken aninitial assessment
considering options for improving bus and
cycle access and related facilities on the

Harlow Townand - .
southern side of Harlow Town Station.

Mill Stations

Improvingaccessibility to the stations which
will contribute to rail attractiveness.

Medium — Requires Network Rail approval
and work undertaken by them and is based
on their costings.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 31




GgT abed

Potential for wider development in thearea,
including existing land uses.

Gilston s106 to include contribution for the
Northern Access, with money set aside for
feasibility study.

Opportunity to create mobility hub alongside
modernisation of access and interchange
arrangements and improve northern access to
Harlow Town Station through liaison with
Network Rail/GBRTT.

Development opportunities around stations,
which would promote activetravel and link intg
STC corridor. Opportunity for both stations to
act as interchanges or Transport Hubs.

Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) Update
2024

Promotion of sustainabletravel from outset
for new developments due to location.

High — Harlow Town Station lies within
Burnt Mill designated employment areain
the HDLP 2020. This allows for
employment-led development
opportunities with the potential to provide
development contributions that can
enhancetransport infrastructure around the

station as atransport hub and create a
more attractive gateway into Harlow.

Key for improving accessibility to the
station for Gilston Villages for sustainable
modes.

Medium — Requires Network Rail approval
and undertaken by them and is based on
their costings.

Creates opportunity for transport linksfor
before/after journey stage improving
attractiveness of rail and station
accessibility as is relatively isolated
spatially.

Medium — Requires Network Rail approval
and work undertaken by them and is based
on their costings.

Maximisingthe benefits and opportunities of
modal transition.

High — HGGT can promote improved
station accessibility and facilities as driver
for modal transition as referenced om the
Revised HGGT IDP.

Spatial Design and
Land Use

Increased proximity to services as aresult
of effective masterplanning.

HGGT Vision, Local Plan policies and
masterplanning for strategic sites.

Potential decrease in longer duration trips
and increase in shorter duration trips (that
could be done by walking or cycling).

Medium — Potential for land use changes
highest in new development.

Increased permeability of areas.

HGGT Vision, Local Plan policies and
masterplanning for strategic sites.

Potential to better connect theactive
transport network.

Medium — There are powers among
HGGT authorities to change permeability
through modal filters on the highway
network, or to require new connections
within planning policy and demand
management, or to seek fundsto deliver
such interventions more directly.

Job creation from development of employment
land use.

HGGT Vision, Local Plan economic
policies, HGGT Strategic Economic
Framework 2024, HDC Economic
Development Strategy 2023-2028.

Key for achieving HGGT quality of life
objectives. Will enable integration with
sustainable modes.

Medium — Difficult to control employment
opportunities and business investment but
land availability in public and active
transport accessible areas would support
high sustainable transport use.

Mixture of land usein development to reduce
trip lengths.

HGGT Vision, Local Plan policies and
masterplanning for strategic sites.

Increases prevalence of active and
sustainable modes dueto local nature of
trips.

Medium — HGGT LPA partners can
promote mix of land uses through planning
policy alocations and development
management.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 32




0gT abed

5. Benefits Map

5.1 Benefits Map Methodology

Benefitsredisation isthepractice of ensuring that benefitsare derived from outputs and outcomes. Any programme of change requires a constant focus on the
intended benefits (measurableimprovements) if it isto deliver value and remain aigned with overarching goals Delivering value begins with defining the expected
high-level outcomes before a programme is approved and continues through the identification, profiling, tracking, and embedding of benefits.

A 3-step methodology wasf ollowed to devel op a benefits map. The approach aimsto promote efficient resourceallocation, asit helpsidentify synergiesand trade-
of fsbetween benefitsand interventions, allowing for more informed decision-making and a more comprehensive understanding of the potential outcomes.

1. Identifying Benefits

+ To assess potential measures and metrics to assess the proposed interventions, the garden city principleswere used asa
starting point for identifying benefits for the people of the HGGT area.

2. Logic Map

+ To providetransparency of decision-making as the Framework is progressed and to help plan and provide details around
activities for implementation and expected results, alogic map was developed to embed the benefitsinto the outputs,
outcomes and objectives The aim of the logic map isto show a clear rationale between the strategy outputs, desired
outcomes and benefits— all linking back to the strategy objectives.

mmmme 3. Mapping Benefits

» To enable aholistic perspective, the benefits were mapped against the Framework’s objectives, outcomes and outputs.
By doing this, we ensure that wedont view benefitsin isolation but rather understand how interventions can generate

multiple benefits smultaneously and how benefits may span across diff erent outputs and outcomes.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Page 33



Gardan f.'r‘fg Pn-‘ul?fl;'

). 8T 0 esfitc for the Community

5.2

'

Cammuniry
Invesvement in
Planning

Principte: Immiang
resicdents m the decision.
making process

Garden City Principles and Benefits

The garden city principles offer ahalistic framework to enhance thenatural environment while also providing af f ordable and accessible places to live to support
healthy and sociable communities. These ambitious and creaive principles are the starting point for which to assess community benefits for the Framework. A
transport lenshashbeen applied to each of the principles to understand how we might achieve the garden city principles through improved trangport and modal shift.

m““""‘"" Land valise capbure far the
il o il RN o O sy

P A, commieTial,
and recreatioral spaces
wathies Cless pen iy
Fenefie: Enhanced
wormenience, reduced
travel distances, and a

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town

Mhiwed-temare homes and

genuinely afferdable.

Atfardable and inslusive Green and Sustainakie Pulblic Bpaces and
Access: Mablility: Mazas:
Prwaciods’ Eraariog Arcie: Empaaiong Enmaphe Desgning
mrcassishy for ol errdroreamatly frisndy cammunal sgaces for
DS DONOITIC Eroupe irsnapartation optiore. recreabion ard
v fir, Sackal egeity. deaefie Reduced satlalEatisn

i impat, Bangfit: Improwes

ard @0 imgroved sir quality, cemmunity
Inclushve community and a haalthier, more engagement, Increased
whiere sverpone car Inahl ity sacial coheslon, and a
particizate and k. Frrs wibranl and
enjayable living

| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Drhogivet g [l FEAATEL
. Besatifully snd smaginativesy the nstural environment,
Awide range of local jobs in trensport systems, with B with mum-mﬂm
the Garden Chy within walking, cyclivg and public i robese, oyl e et i
:" iy of toan and country 0 treste nd mat bicdisersty gaim,
- ¥ Snl albocil T.ﬂ‘hg e Mumnties. lnI: .‘.:‘ uses rera-carban
!
v
integrated Transpart Smert Transpsreation Prdestrian s Cyclist- Exduced Tratfic Bragarvation of Matural
Merweorks: Solutians Frandly L 5 Cong Landscapes:
Erinpiple Etabrishicg Princpve; Implementing Pyl Froabding Ennagle. Managng brafic Frmichike Peotecteg and
FEATRERE CONMECTINTS Irnelgent i wadbabiiny and cyding o aificimntly i Incorporating nansal
setween diferen modes technolngy-creen within the comerurity. mirmine congestion. elemeris inin urhan
o Iranspamanon. IRBFEpOIT Sy, Weefit: Erhiet ed Eeneffe Limer stres plerming.
Benefe Increassd Bensfir; Increased haalth, salery, and a hevels, faster Benpft Enhanced
mccessibility, save of afficiescy, safety, svd sansa ol ' ing times, and quality of life, sasthetic
travel, amd effi d e ® festering soclal an overall smsother agpeal, and &
mowement. coniributing ¥ s | i mnd iravel s far e D FakUTe,
i el d ame ing & futurs-prosd reducing dependence Iacal rasidunts, prarreding everall wll-
coheshs Community. trarspariation an moterized transport. being and mantal
Infrastruciure, healeh,
Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently
Page 34



88T abed

5.3

Logic Map

To providetransparency of decision-making asthe Framework is progressed and to help plan and providedetailsaround activities f or implementation and expected
results, alogic map was deve oped to embed the benefits into the outputs, outcomes and objectives. Theaim of the logic map isto show a clear rationde between the
strategy outputs, desired outcomes and benefits — all linking back to the strategy objectives.

Outputs

What will be deliverad on the ground?

BTy Y e

LT —

® [is
P LT
i Increasing Bus Lise

[ T o - a3 Reremg

G P ol i M £

faram (raver o

B B

e Wby

¥ e b

[}

i a3
@ -

s vl Ry
P

LiteTs e mrag

v
.

L sy L
B Srwpaeres

P

Tareasm

et il Badorin
Elar g

o s
oy ey

Lt e
=

Rebatancing the Cost of Trayve:

kgt =

Aadbege ey Ve
& -

Baia i | Barpry
Ty Bropoui

Menstoring! Evaluation

Parmi T aevmy

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

T Crren bariarg
gy

Pt Mens
3

1 Increasing Shared Mability & Acthee Trowel

pay reen Sabars

T

Outcomes

What are the culcomes for the transpart

system?

Pedesinian-tnendly infrastruciure and
walkabla i 5 - M increase in
weanlking Irips b0 fown cemlne

Dedicaled cpce lanes, bike parking fackies,
Bike sharing proprarmemes - % inersase v
cyche rips 1o fown cantre

Sale school travel 2ones. Beiive el
educaticn programmes. collabarabing with
Incal stakphnoioars - 5 Increase in achive

schools

.hr.a.tﬂlutlﬁ; actm .{:rrnrnum,l. 'mﬂ'ula-m
cycha fachiing - % Increase in walking and
cyciing to workplaces

annancing tha availabikly and consanieno of
altarnative tansportation options « %
reduction i localshor! car Irips

Promotion of EVs ard low amission wahicles

and priofilising active Iréved - improved air
; quatity

Ciplimizad publc frarsport routas, first and
sl mile sohiftions - reaswT ACCEES IO
Jobs and services

Dedicated lanes and roubes for sustainable
modea, sman raflic management -
Competithve journey Uimes vie suslainaiye
travey

Educalion amnd swanerness campaigns,
Improved passarger axpanence - SHN i
bahaviowr changa

Benefits

What will be the benafits to passengers,

society, the anvironment and the wider
aconomy?

Green and Sustainable Mobiity

! Pedeatrian and Cyclist-Friendly
Infrasgrscruire

Fublic Spaces and Plazas '

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Objectives

What did the schame seak o daliver?

e g
i i
' ]
: Reducs Car SOpendence i
i 1

i
o i
T I R S Sy A —
L F e s -
' i
' ]
: incremse modal choce 1
! :
i

i
N .
e T - — T 3
1
‘ '
; Improva haakth ard wall-being ]
! ]
1 i
¥ -
o T e s o !
1
i Carbon reduction and maet climate action :
: LGS i
' '
' &
e e e s * "
' i
| i
i Improve spatisl design of public places :
1 i
1

i
]
-

g
g
£
%
g
g
-

Page 35



5.4 Mapping Benefits

To enable a holistic perspective, the benefits were mapped against the
Framework’s objectives, outcomes and outputs. By doing this, we ensure that
wedon't view benefitsin isolaion but rather understand how interventions
can generate multiple benefits simultaneously and how benefits may span

across dif f erent outputs and outcomes.

E 5
Paadacn car hgpandurce g 9 O g 9 -] g 9 1]
e o e ® 0 o ) o © o o
o st e v © o ] o o
P —— © 0 o o o o © 0 6 6
T ——— o o o O © o o
P iy 2 s o 9 © 9 0 o o 0 O
Dutcomes
Plietopt i 0 i A B e ®© © © 0 0 O /] /] o
© 0 © © 9 O G o
o o o o o
o 0 o ] o
(] o O & o /] [/
o o o o ) o o
] o o [
S s s e Tt el st o o o o o o o o
© 0 0 0 0 O o O © 90 0
] L] g © O L]

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

68T abed

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 36



06T abed

6.

6.1

Framework Methodology

Overview

Below isan overview of themethodology appliedto develop the
Framework and its themes.

1. Review long list of interventions

Thefollowing inf ormation was documented on the delivery proposals:

More developed interventions:;

a

b.

C.

d.

Typeof intervention (i.e., infrastructure/policy)
Funding status and source
Panning status

Delivery period and completion

Less developed interventions:

e.
f.

o}
h
i.

J.

Who would be responsible for delivery
When it could be delivered
What it would impact (active, public transport, reduced vehicle

. attractiveness, etc.)

Identified deliverability challenges
Identified benefits

2. Groupinterventionshy theme

Themesreflect the key areas of targeted intervention that will contribute to

modal transition. See Section 7 for details of the themes selected.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

3. Prioritiseinterventions,or groupsof inter ventions, within each of the
themes.

Prioritisation was based on feadbility, ddiverability, affordability and modal
shift potential. These details were informed by comprehensive desktop
research, abenchmarking exercise, and detailed discussions and workshops
with officers working across all of the HGGT partner councils.

4. Setout prioritisedinterventionsin a delivery pathway

Thetimings of intervention delivery are based on project dependencies and
knowledge of ddivery for similarschemes. Bothshort term (next 2 years) and
longterm (up to 2040) actionsare included. The interventions have also been
overlaid with the existing HGGT work plan.

5. Develop delivery scenarios

Three delivery scenarios (Business as usual, Ambition and Exemplar) have
been set out in Section 8 to indicate the diff erent potential pathways for
achievingthemodal transition objective. Particular interventions have been
allocated to each scenario.

Falling behind
achieving the
objectives for

HGGT
(BAU)

Scenario

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 37



T6T obed

6.2 Strategies, Programmes and Interventions

Strategies set out an agreed way to achieve an objective to ensure
delivery is aligned strategically.

Programmes area group of related interventions that combine to
deliver an outcome (as set out in the strategy).

Interventions are activities that aim to deliver a specific
output/outcome (as set out in the strategy).

The Framework has been developed on the basis that successful change
requires aset of programmesthat can deliver smaller tactical interventions.
Programmatic approaches have been key to changing transport systems over
asustained period, especially where there has been aneedto transitionfrom
placesthat overwhelmingly favour private transport to one which is more
balanced and multi-modal.

In the following section, complementary schemes havebeen grouped into
themes and selected based on them having similar principles and an
understanding of what delivers value for money.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Strategy
The strategy A strategy can
may directly have both
require some programmes
key specific and
interventions interventions

Interventions —

A programme
can have
severd

interventions of

varying scaes

Figure 18: Relationship between strategies, programmes and interventions

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Programme

Page 38



26T abed

7. Framework Themes
7.1 Introduction
The Framework has been set out according to six themes: These themes reflect the key areas of targeted intervention that will

contributeto moda trangtion. None of these themes alone will deliver the
modal transition objectives for HGGT, however, delivering a mixture of
interventions across dl the themes will result in a more sustainable shift in
behaviours.

For each theme, the following has been set out:
¢ Baseline situation

e How it supports the vision for HGGT

e What it will likely achieve

e Summary of components (wha strategies, programmes or interventions
sit within the theme)

¢ Prioritisation and suggested delivery timeframes

e Benefits, outcomes and evidence.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Page 39



€6T abed

7.2 Road, Streets and Neighbourhoods
721 Introduction

What isthe baseline situation?

Many of Harlow’s heighbourhoods and main streets arecar dominated, this
not only encourageshigh levelsof car usefor short journeys but also makes
active travel less attractive. The HGGT area is delivering improvements

through the LCWIPand STC schemes. Thereis still a high share (23%) of

very short3car journeys in Harlow.

Why does this theme support the Vision for the HGGT area?

Ensuring that appropriateroad and kerb-side spaceis allocated evenly, and
fairly to all modesinduding public transport, cyding and walking aswell as
ensuring dedicated facilities for pedestrian and cycling facilities are high
quality, has been proved to increase sustainabletrave uptake and therefore
mode shift.

Short trips by private car are some of the easiest to change and by reducing
thelevel of overall trafficonkey streets, this can makewalking and cycling
sa;‘er, creating a positive rei nforcemept.

Figure 19: Harlow cycling catchment

3 Car trips less than 10 minutes in duration

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

What will it achieve?

There are multiple examples of investmentsin streets and neighbourhoods
supporting significant modal shift. This also supportsimproved economic and
health outcomes through active travel and improve quality of life through
lower noise, better air quality and higher-quality local environments and
places.

Figure 20: Harlow bus catchment

Figure 21: Harlow driving catchment

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 40



7122

v6T abed

Component Description
Thissummary table setsout the component parts of the roads, streets and neighbourhoods theme. It establishes which individual programmes or schemes are included
within the theme, a description of what it entails, its likely influence on modal choicefor users, some of the key chdlenges to deliverability or the scope of influence

on modes and how it may be interpreted differently for the strategic sites.

Component

What is it?

How does itinfluence modal shift?

Key challenges

Strategic Sites

@ Healthy School Streets
Programme

Reducing drop-off activity onthe access streets
outside schools and colleges through timed or
permanent restrictions for private cars.
Improved safety around schools, delivering safe
routes for walking, cycling and public transport
access can be gpplied to new sites and to
existing schoals.

Safer experience for students and their
parents/guardians to wak and cycle.
This give less priority for vehicles
drop off encourages uptake of active
travel and is likely to achieve society
wide support. Can be delivered
quickly.

School catchments can cover areas
outside walking and cycling distances
beyond walking. Provision for the
wider catchment needs to be
maintained. Incressed choice between
schools means many residents travel

medium and long distances to schools.

Establish any new school within-built
excdlent active travel accessibility
and priority for those travelling
sustainably.

Liveable/Healthy Streets
‘3 Programme

Liveable streets amto create cleaner and safer
environments by "greening" streetsand creating
spaces where cars are guests to pedestrians and
cyclists through a programme of interventions.

By making waking and cydling safer
and more attractivemorepeople make
trips by sustainable modes.

Liveable streets require investment in
improved road layouts and junctions
in existing streets and can reduce
highway capacity.

Strategic sites should be designed
with the principle of liveable/healthy
streets, in particular within mixed use
aress.

'3 ActiveNeighbourhoods
Programme

Dédlivering the proposed Active
Neighbourhoods (neighbourhoods with reduced
through-vehicle traffic) set out in the LCWIP.

Encourages shorter distance trips to
be made by walking and cycling and
could lead to changes in land use
further into the future — improved
local services.

Highlevelsof ownership and car use
means Active Neighbourhoods may
increase some vehicle journey times
and face local opposition.

New neighbourhoods should be
designed to encourage walking and
cycling rather than short car trips.

Town CentreParking
Strategy

Investigating the potentia of consolidating

public vehicle parking dlocations within the
town centre andlink to pricing withthe am of
supporting cycle parking and shared mobility.

By reviewing the availability of
private parking and increasing options
for thosetravelling to Harlow town
centre by sustainable modes such as
waking and cycling and improved
public realm this could significantly
shift modes.

Many car parks are privately owned
and operated. Loca shops may rely
(or have the perception of) on trade
from those parking in the town centre.
The casefor incressed sustainable
travel providing the sameleve of
trade as thosetravelling by car will be
key.

Management of public parking at key
demand dtractors.

Table 4: Description of roads, street and neighbourhoods components

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town

| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 41




G6T obed

723 Local Impact

Thissummary table sets out thelocad impact andysis of parts of the roads, streets and neighbourhoods theme. Across each programme or scheme a number of key
determinants aredescribed, includingwhat are thelinked HGGT infrastructure elementsthat are already planned or under deveopment, what key demographics will
they impact, what isthe spatial influence acrossdifferent geographies, what isthe likely share of movement trips and type that are impacts and finally, the likely

scale of impact.

Healthy School Streets

Liveable Streets

Active Neighbourhoods

Town Centre Parking Strategy

Linked HGGT Infrastructure
Elements

Cycle and walking routes via schools
LCWIP Routes 2,4, 6,7, 8
Active Neighbourhood 1-8

Radid Bus
Radid Cycling
Active Neighbourhood 1-8

Walking and cycling routes
connecting A ctive Neighbourhoods

Active Neighbourhood 1-8

All STCs
LCWIP routes 1-8

Key Demographics

Children, families and young adults

All

Householdsin proposed
neighbourhoods

Commuters and leisure trips into the
town centre

Key HGGT Geography

Residentia areaand neighbouring
schools

Town centre and other mixed land
use areas

Residentid areas identified by
LWCIP and new residential aress

Town centre

Share of HGGT areatripsimpacted
by intervention

10-15% of trips areto and from
schools/colleges

23% of car trips* areless than 10
minutes in duration and could be
walked/cycled

23% of car trips* areless than 10
minutes in duration and could be
walked/cycled

55% of commuting* to Harlow
employment isdone by car. 45% of
leisure trips are done by car*

Scale of Impacts

High

Medium

High

Medium

Table 5: Summary of local impact of roads, streets and neighbourhoods components

* Doesn’t include car passenger

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town

| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 42




96T abed

Delivery and Funding
This table summarises the elements of delivery and funding critical to the different components. It gives high level inf ormation regarding the source of funding, the
type of funding and scale required, and indicative package costs, whois likely to lead on delivery of the scheme or programme and what is the role of HGGT in the

delivery.
Component Potential Source of Type of Funding Indicative Package Cost (and Proposed Delivery Role of HGGT
Funding how) Organisation
Resource Capital Revenue
Hedlthy School Streets | Active Travel Fund (from £ ££ £ Development: £50k Harlow Develop case
i . Essex Oversight,
Adtive Travel England) Dedlivery: £30k-£100k -per school Gilston M onit(?rin
) . g
Dependant on scope and funding Hertfordshire —
available — simple schemes such as (Potentia challenge as
multiple camera ANPR HCC does notcurrently
pedestrianisation enforcement costs | Promote Healthy School
an average of £60k and can return ger“e\‘ftesr dzﬁ;cl’e':]' Sto; ic
on costs through pendty y 9es
enforcement
Liveable Streets Active Travel Fund (or ££ ££ £ Development of Strategy: £40k Harlow, Essex Engagement,
equivaent) Ongoing Programme: £100k Gilston Hertfordshire | consultation, develop
Harlow Coundil Delivery dependant on designs Proposals
Developer Contributions
Active Active Travel Fund (or £ ££ £ Development: £50k Delivery: £100k | Harlow Essex Develop and Deliver
Neighbourhoods equivaent) per liveable neighbourhoods Gilston Hertfordshire
. and developers for
Harlow Council o
strategic sites
Town Centre Parking Developed through £ £ £ Development: £40k Harlow Essex Develop and Deliver
Strategy HGGT Ddivery: TBD

Table 6: Summary of delivery and funding considerations for roads, streets and neighbourhoods components

Key:

£ - Low

££ - Medium
£££ - High

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town

| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 43



/6T abed

Indicative Programme Cost

Arup has produced a high level indicativerange of costsfor the identified programmes, interventions and schemes. These are based on similar schemes developed
for other loca authorities, but for most costs there are significant scaability opportunities and challenges depending onthe level of ambition and the exact proposal
istaken forward. Thiswould be confirmed through the devd opment stage. Optimism bias has not currently been applied and all schemesare costed at current prices,
with forecasts to 2050 made based on current prices, not accounting for varying leves of inflaion. If schemesare ddivered later or completed earlier thiswould dso
impact costs. Thepurposeof the costingis providing high level comparison of themes, not development of futurebudgets. Where deve opment costs are identified,
some could be delivered through internal resource if capacity and capability is available.

Low Estimate

High Estimate

Capital Cost £2,525,000 £5,050,000
Revenue Cost £7,250,000 £,12,250,000
Development Costs £180,000 £220,000

Table 7: Indicative HGGT area-wide programme costs for roads, streets and neighbourhoods components

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 44



86T abed

724 Component Summary
Thissummary table setsout, for theroads, streets and neighbourhoods theme, the identified prioritisation for each programme or scheme, the likely delivery

timef rames, the potential impact range of modal shift and key actions to be taken for each identified programme.

The prioritisedcomponents, includinga breakdown of key tasks, allocated to a detaled annual programme, with greater short-term (to 2025) granularity is provided

overleaf in Table 9.

Intervention

Short term Priority

Timeframes

Potential Impact Range

Key Action

Strategy

delivery

Healthy Schools Streets High Short-term development, M edium- 1-4% Develop apriority list of healthy
term delivery school streets with a target to
achieve school streets across all
schools in the HGGT areaby 2030.
Liveable Streets High Short-term development, M edium- 1-5% Establish alivesblelhedthy streets
Programme term delivery programme to set out key design
principles and work with Essex
Highways to establish delivery
programme.
Active Neighbourhoods High Short-term development, M edium- 1-5% Consult and establish a proposa for
term delivery delivery active neighbourhoods and
begin consultation with residents
building on the LCWIP.
Town Centre Parking Low M edium-term development and 1-5% Explore feasibility of delivering

strategy with key partners,
stakeholders and commission within
next financiad year. Gain

Table 8: Component summary table for roads, streets and neighbourhoods

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town

| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 45



66T obed

725 Theme Prioritisation and Timeframes (short-term focus)

Scenario Priority
BAU | AMbItion EXemp

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 | 2029/30| 2031/32| 2033/34| 2035/40

1. Healthy School Streets
1.2 Devdop a strategy for community engagement and encourage schools
to have a gaff member who is reponsble for susainable trawel,
engagement or road safety
1.2 Agreewith Essex the forward plan of school streetsdeliveryand future
funding
1.3 Priority list of healthy school streetsbased on agreed principles, high
level costings and designs
1.4 Consult on school streetsproposals
Output Agreed action areaswith partner councilsand strategy for
implementation based on examples and community feedback

2.Liveable/Healthy Streets
2.1 Develop healthy streets evaluation process
2.2 Useevaluation to make assessment of HGGT area streets
2.3 Assessareasand opportunitieswhere traffic and bereduced, consult
with communities on views and embed alongside LCWIP schemes
2 A ldentify high-priority measurestoimprovestreetsandinclude design
principlesfor future highway development
Output: Agreed evaluation tool for strengthsand weaknessesof streets
and identified priority intervention areas

3. Active Neighbourhoods
3.1 Consult with active communitiesas proposed inLCW Pand
engage themwith a community led programme
3.2 Prioritise space infaround key target areas for sustainable activity
3.3 Identify prioritisation and packagesfor ActiveNei ghbourhood
delivery (on the bass of proposed consultation)
3.4 Develop framework for educating communitiesto support
behaviour change
Output: Transformed neighbourhoods supported by engaged and|
educated communities who can lead approach to neighbourhood
transformation and support behaviour change

4.Town CentreParking Strategy
4.1 Harlow undertaking feasibility planon car parking proposed for
2024/25
4.2 Long termstrategy requiring engagement and consultation with
partner authorities and communities

Table 9: Prioritised roads, streets and neighbourhoods programmes and timeframes for delivery (short term focus)

C| Consultation

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Page 46



00z abed

726 Theme Prioritisation and Timeframes (long term focus)
Whilst Table 9 on the previous pagegives amore detail ed breakdown of the short-term priorities up until the end of 2025, this section expands to the 2040 future
year and sets out the longer term priorities. Thisis demonstrated in Table 10 below.

2023

2024

2025

2026 2027 2028 | 2029/30

2031/32;

2033/34:

2035-4

Scenario Priority

Healthy School Streets

Liveable/Healthy Streets

Active Neighbourhoods

BAU i Ambition:

Exemplg

Town Centre Parking Strategy

Table 10: Prioritised roads, streets and neighbourhoods programmes and timeframes for delivery (long term focus)

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 47



Short term priority

Development

Establish Liveable StreetsProgrammef or the
HGGT area.

Establish Healthy School StreetsProgramme
for the HGGT area.

Establish Active Neighbourhoods
Programme (objectivecriteria) for the HGGT
area.

Develop proposalsfor the Liveable Streets,
School Streets and A ctive Neighbourhoods
Programmes.

Wider ambition for liveable streets roll out.

ConsultationonActiveNeighbourhoods
proposals within LCWIP.

Delivery

Ensureproposdscreatehealthy andsafe
residential environments

Medium term priority
Development

e Town centre parking allocation strategy
(linked to pricing strategy) and improved,
high quality town-wide cycle parking,
including hubs linked to public transport
access points.

Delivery
e Delivery of Healthy School Streets

o Delivery of key liveable streets on
employment and towncentrecorridors

e Delivery of wider liveable streets

e CoreActive Neghbourhoods delivered.

Long term priority
Development

e Town centre parking land use allocation
Deliver wider liveablestreets concept outside
town centre.

Delivery

o Clear strategy, that has been consulted with
partner councils and other relevant
stakeholders with a clear direction on
reducing attractiveness of town centre
parking.

o Beneficid if strategy alignswith direction of
other parking council’s approach to town
centre parkingstrategy as not to detract from
the HGGT area amongst the wider

geography.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Page 48

TOg abed



20¢ abed

727 Benefits, outcomes and evidence

This section sets out thewider benefits that can be achieved (linked to the benefits map) through the ddivery of the components that make up the roads, streets and
neighbourhoods theme. It also demonstrates case studies of where similar has been devd oped and examples of how this could happen in the HGGT area and some
outcomes that could be realised.

Wider Benefits

* Increased access to education, employment, leisure and social amenities
for those without vehicles.
* Improved health outcomes for thelocal community through improving

Examplel — School Trave

With the new schools' streets most

ar quality and encouraging active travel. children arenow travelingto school
+ Reduced congestion in town centres making them more vibrant and by walking or bike, with less traffic
enjoyable to bein. at the school gatesand secure cycle
* Opportunities for compact and mixed-used development through storage. Thisfreesup more time for
integrating residential, commercial and recreational spaces within close travellingtowork, enablingmecycle
proximity. or take the bus.

Where hasit been adopted?

+ Case study 1 - Brentwood and Braintree Healthy School Streets; Small Example2 — High Street Business Owners
infrastructure changes improving roads around schools to mitigate congestion New liveable streets have improved
and improve active travel experience such as resurfacing, bollards to prevent the local high streets, making it a far
pavement parking, refreshing zebra crossings, updating signage and more attractive place for a

temporary street art to improve the look and feel of the surrounding streets. community to stop and shop, secure
cycle parking and better quality of
bencheshasencouraged more people

* Casestudy 2- TfGM Active Neighbourhoods: Movement of peopleis e [ e

prioritised over cars, typicaly by using planters or bollards to stop through
access, making it safer and easier to ger around on foot or by bike. Co-
designed with communities.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Page 49



€0z abed

7.3 Increasing Bus Use

731 Introduction

What is the baseline situation?

Bususein the HGGT areaiscurrently low at only 3-5% of mode share. This
is largely aresult of high car ownership (78%), and because most
employment, leisure and retail land usesare more easily accessible by car.
Often thesededinaions are also accompanied by affordable (or in some
casesfree) car parking, which doesnot fed comparableto busfares. HGGT
ischaracterised by ahigh proportion of shift work whichbustimetablesmay
not accommodate as buses are considered infrequent and not operating a
‘turn-up-and go’ service. Further, the current £2 bus fare cap initiative is
plannedto endin December 2024 which may havea negative impact on bus
patronage.

The HGGT areaisinvedinginthe STCsandrelaed infrastructure which will
provide increased bus priority through dedicated lanes and improved
junctions. Longer term plans for connecting the town with growth areas are
also being considered.

Why does it support the Vision for the HGGT area?

To achieve the vision and objectives for HGGT in terms of sustainable
growth, bususewill need to increasefromitslow base, specifically through
providing improved access to employment sites and the Harlow town centre.
From reviewing best practice and through benchmarking with other high
performing comparable towns and cities, high-quality, frequent buses can
attract up to and around al5% mode share. Buses are proven to be more
efficientin their use of road space than cars, and this can beenabled through
the delivery of dedicated priority infrastructure.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

What will it achieve?

Improving the bus network through better bus priority and redesigning the
bus network should improve the attractiveness of the bus network and
support higher frequency services—key is growing further demand through
theright fares and incentives which could create a step change in bus use.

The bus network and support higher frequency services- key is growing
further demand through theright fares and incentives which could create a
step change in bus use.

y N ’ :

Figure 22: Existing bus travel catchment for Harlow

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 50



0z abed

P/
S/

732

Component Descriptions

This summary tablesets out the component parts of the increasing bus use theme. It establishes which individual programmes or schemes are included within the
theme, adescriptionof what it entails, itslikely influence on modal choicefor users, someof thekey chdlengesto ddiverability or the scope of influence on modes
and how it may be interpreted differently for the strategic sites.

Specifications

bus priority of the STC programme.

and higher levels of relatability to
make astep change in bus
provision and éattractiveness of
Sservices.

enable high quality bus services but
deliveringtherequired service levels
which maximise usage will require
fundingas demand grows, with limits
on what S106 can fund.

Increasing busprovisonmay reguire
additiona landfor servingand depots.

Component What is it? How does itinfluence modal Key challenges Strategic Sites
shift?
STC ServiceProvision The service proposition to maximise the By unlocking faster journey times | EnsuringSTC corridors aredesignedto | All proposed strategic housing

sites will be connected to thetown
centre by STCs with potentia
extensions proposed.

Bus Service
Improvement

Using the BSIP process to support the
development of improved bus network.

Buses provide atractive
competition tocars over short and
medium journeys when service
frequencies and prices are
competitive.

Deliveringlongtermsustainablelevels
of bus demand to support a high
frequency busserviceor requirements
for ongoingsubsidy with LTAs facing
challenging funding environment
across the region.

Increasing busprovisonmay reguire
additional Iandfor servingand depots.

Opportunity for designing bus
priority and infrastructure into
sites and supporting new routes.

Harlow Town and
Villages Demand-
ResponsiveTransport
(DRT)

Anon-demand bus service whereriders can
request trips to either open ended or fixed
locations.

DRT can provide improved
service compared to low frequency
timetabled services for lower
density development.

Requires ongoing operationa
support and subsidy during early
years and depot facilities.

Ensuring DRT is considered as
part of road layouts in new
developments for example
potentid waiting aress,

Harlow Ticketing/
MaaS/ Price Cap

AnHGGT integrated ticket covering al
modes of sustainable transport.

By providing truly integrated
ticketing.

Public transport operators
currently focus on individual
modal tickets.

Oneproposa would be gpplicable
for the HGGT areaand the
strategic sites.

Table 11: Description of increasing bus use components

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town

| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 51



733 Local Impact

This summary table sets out the local impact analysis of partsof theincreasing bususetheme. Across each programme or schemeanumber of key determinants are
described, indluding what are thelinked HGGT infrastructure elements that are already planned or under development, what key demographics will they impact,
what isthe spatial influence acrossdifferent geographies, whet is the likely share of movement trips and type that areimpactsand finally, the likely scale of impact.

*+ STCS2C-Town centre, Latton
Priory, Stewards

* STCE2C-Towncentre, Netteswell,
London Road Enterprise Zone,
Newhdl, East of Harlow, M11 J7a

+ STCW2C-Town Centre, Public
Hedlth England, Pinnacles
Employment Area, Water Lane,

STC Service Provision Specifications | Bus Service Improvement Harlow Ticketing / MaaS /Price | Harlow Town and Villages DRT
Cap
Linked I nfrastructure Elements STC corridors and the four strategic STC corridors and the four N/A N/A
development sites they will connect with | strategic development sites they
Bus Stetion. will connect with Bus Station.
Key Demographics * IntraHGGT Commuters * IntraHGGT Commuters All New Garden Village Residents
* Low Income Families * Low Income Families
* Ral Station Access * Rall Station Access
Key HGGT Geography + STC N2C- Harlow Town Station, LA wide LA wide Garden Villages
Town centre, Gilston Villages, Town
Park

Katherines
Shareof Trips Impacted Currently 5% use buses but STC Wider routes outside the STC Improving ticketing acrosstheLA | DRT has been successful in rura
services could increase use by afurther to enable mixed mode will areas but impact likely to be
5% improve the success of multiple limited to areas implemented.
modes.
Scale of I mpacts High Medium Low Medium
Table 12: Summary of local impact of increasing bus use components
Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

G0g abed

Page 52




90¢ abed

734

Delivery and Funding

Thistable summarisesthe e ements of delivery and funding criticd to the different components. It giveshigh level information regarding the source of funding, the
type of fundingand scalerequired, and indicativepackage costs, who islikely to lead on delivery of the scheme or programme and what is the role of HGGT in the

delivery.
Type of Funding L Proposed
Component ﬁzﬁ;cli of I(r;gldcitcll\\//\?)Package Cost Delivery Role of HGGT
9 Resource Capital Revenue Organisation
STC Service BSIP+ Funding £ (STCcosts ££E Develop STC services proposals Essex Develop Service Provisionfor STC
Provision Developer not and funding proposal incl. HGGT routes
Specifications Funding included) developer funding proposal Harlow
Operator £40k Hertfordshire
Funding
Bus Service BSIP+ funding £ ££ ££E . . Essex Develop plans to maximise bus useto feed
| mprovement Essex Wider Bus Service Routeplan HGGT development of future Essex/Hertfordshire
£20k
Developer ) Harlow BSIP
; Future revenue funding dependant ;
Funding ) Hertfordshire
to be agreed depending on future
BSIP funding
Harlow Ticket / MaaS| HGGT/Essex ££ ££ Transport Appendix BDevelop concept for integrated
/ Price Cap . OperatorsHGGT ticketing/M aaS with stakeholders latching
Igevelcépment of M ?aS £75k — 200k Essex on to existing systems which can be
epending on complexity Hertfordshire moulded into HGGT needs dueto cost of
bespoke system
Harlow Town and Developer EEE ££ ££ Development: £80k for app Essex Develop concept for DRT serving HGGT
Villages DRT funding Capital: £12k per vehicles Hertfordshire strategic sites and town, develop funding
DfT funds Revenue: £25-10k per vehicles + HGGT package or facilitate service agreements
Hertfordshire/ wages between Herts and Essex to dlow existing
Essex DRT services to be cross-authority and
Cost varies significantly depending serve existing areas not well serviced
on scale and service requirement

Table 13: Summary of delivery and funding considerations for increasing bus use components

Key:

£ - Low - ££ - Medium - £££ - High

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town

| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 53




Indicative Programme Cost

Arup has produced a high level indicativerange of costsfor the identified programmes, interventions and schemes. These are based on similar schemes developed
for other loca authorities, but for most costs there aresignificant scaability opportunities and challenges depending onthe level of ambition and the exact proposal
istaken forward. Thiswould be confirmed through the devd opment stage. Optimism bias has not currently been applied and all schemesare costed at current prices,
with forecasts to 2050 made based on current prices, not accounting for varying leves of inflaion. If schemesare ddivered later or completed earlier thiswould dso
impact costs. Thepurposeof the costingis providing high level comparison of themes, not development of futurebudgets. Where deve opment costs are identified,
some could be ddivered throughinternal resourceif capacity and capahility isavailable. Bus capital invegment in the STC and Bus Station have not been included.

Additional revenue due to bus level improvements may offset costs or bus infrastructure such as new depot facilities which mi ght be required.

Low Estimate

High Estimate

Capital Cost £200,000 £400,000
Revenue Cost £21,200,000 £41,800,000
Development Costs £230,000 £400,000

Table 14: Indicative HGGT area-wide programme costs for Increasing Bus Use components

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

10z abed

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 54



80¢ abed

735 Component Summary

Thissummary table setsout, for theincreasingbus use theme, theidentified prioritisationf or each programme or scheme, thelikely ddivery timeframes, the potential
impact range of modal shift and key actions to be taken for each identified programme.

The prioritisedcomponents, includinga breakdown of key tasks, allocatedto a detalledannual programme, with greater short-term (to 2025) granularity is provided

overleaf in Table 16.

Intervention

Short term Priority

Timeframes

Potential Impact
Range

Key Action

Harlow Town and Villages DRT

and long- term delivery

High Short-term development, 5-10% Develop and agree service provision using STCs as

STC Service Provision Specifications medium- term delivery they are built and operational with proposds for turn-
up and go services on key routes

High Short-term development, 1-2.5% Undertake early bus network review to identify
Bus Service Improvements (non STC) medium- term delivery options including evauation of hub and spoke model

Low Medium-term 0-2% Work with Essex/Hertfordshire and transport operators
Harlow Ticketing/MAAS/Price Cap development and on future options for integrated ticketing as part of the

ddlivery shared mobility framework
Low M edium-term development| 0-1% Work with developersto understand potential for how

DRT could serve lower density parts of the Garden
Villages and key transport hubs like bus stations and
ralway stations

Table 15: Component summary table for increasing bus use

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 55



736 Theme Prioritisation and Timeframes (short-term focus)

2023

2024

Scenario Priority

2025 2026 2027 2028 202930 2031/32 2033/34 2035/

1. STC Service Provision Specifications
1.1 Using the Essex Enhanced Partnerships and Hertfordshire Enhanced
Partnerships with operators and Harlow Bus User Group to establish
HGGT area working group (with key stakeholders including developers)
and consult on STC service proposition
1.2 Once engagement with operators has progressed based on above,
develop a framework for services to utilise STCs and implement
agreements on routes and frequencies and financial commitment from
developers
1.3 Set out commitments to infrastructure and services in revised Essex
and Hertfordshire EP
Output: Established working group and service propositions agreed
and Essex/Hertfordshire EP updated with propositions

2.Non STC Bus Service Improvements
2.1 Engage with Essex CC on aspirations for non-STC servicesto serve
new developments and improve existing services
2.2 Set up Quality Bus Partnership consulting with users on improvements|
2.3 Review EP contract
2.4 Set out new service frequency provision, setting out these
commitments in revised Essex EP and BSIP
Output: Agreed serviceimprovements including frequency,
infrastructure and facilities

3.Harlow Town and Villages DRT
3.1 Consult with Essex and Hertfordshire to develop DRT in new villages
based on existing services
3.2 Liaise with developers of strategic sites to incorporate DRT proposal
3.3 Set out commitments to run DRT services in revised Essexand
Hertfordshire EP
Output: Essex and Hertfordshire to understand requirements and
costs of extending services to strategic sites and HGGT area
transport hubs and agreement from HGGT developers on
incorporating DRT

4, Harlow Ticketing / MaaS/ Price Capping
4.1 Long term strategy that requires engagement and consultation

Table 16: Prioritised increasing bus use programmes and timeframes for delivery (short term focus)

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

60¢ abed

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

BAU Ambitioné Exemplari

Page 56



0T¢ abed

737 Theme Prioritisation and Timeframes (long term focus)
Whilst Table 16 onthe previous page givesa moredetailed breakdown of the short-term priorities up until theend of 2025, this section expandsto the 2040 future
year and sets out the longer-term priorities. This is demonstrated in Table 17 below.

Developmental
Delivery

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 ! 2029/30

| Scenario Priority

2031/32] 2033/34] 2035-40M 55 T A iiion Beanisian

STC Service Provison Specifications

Bus Service Improvements

Harlow Town and VillagesDRT

HarlowTicketing / MaaS/ Price Cap

Table 17: Prioritised increasing bus use programmes and timeframes for delivery (long term focus)

Short term priority
Development
e STC service proposition specification

e BusServicelmprovementspropositionfor
short/medium/long term

o Engagewith Essex/Hertfordshire EP
delivery teams

Delivery

o Deliver serviceimprovements, and
incorporate STCsinto serviceroutes

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Medium term priority
Development

e Harlow TicketingMaaSproposal devel oped
with operators

e Harlow Town and Villages DRT proposal

Delivery

e STCcorridor services

BSIPservice improvements

Fare capping

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Long term priority

Development

Servicesplannedto incorporate strategic
developments and connecting STCs

Harlow MaaStticketing proposal consulted
on, and a delivery strategy has been
developed with operators

Delivery

The HGGT area’s public transport mode
optionscanbeutilisedusingoneplatform
and associated form of ticketing

Page 57




TT¢ obed

738 Benefits and Evidence

This section setsout thewider bendfits that can beachieved (linked tothe benefitsmap) through the ddivery of thecomponentsthat make up the increasing bus use
theme. It also demonstrates case studies of wheresimilar has been developed and examplesof how this could happen in the HGGT area and some outcomes that

could be realised.

Wider Benefits

Support low income and car free householdswith better accessto
services and improved journeys and access to employment
Enables additional development on land use in city centres

Enable householdsto reduce car dependency and alleviate cost
pressures on households without the cost of car ownership
Increased accessibility and ease of travel which contributes to more
efficient movement

Where hasit been adopted

Case study 1 - Coventry Mobility Credit Pilot: Trial scheme where
residents are given credits to spend on sustainable travel, including
buses, in return for scrapping an older car.

Case study 2 — Surrey Connect: Developing aDRT for Mole Valey
and extension to new neighbourhoods has replaced lost bus services
with trips available on demand.

Case Study 3: Crawley Fastway: Dédlivered 10% growth in bus
passengers over 10 years with 20% of Crawley residents travelling to
work by bus.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Example 1 - Buses Providing Access

Improved bus services have enabled better
connections andlower faresfrom residentia
aress into employment sites at Pinnacles
and the town centre. With more regular
services, demand has increased cregting a
more sustainable bus service and improved
access to economic opportunities.

Later evening services aso mean
passengers can usethe bus service for more
leisure services and supports workers in
hedlthcare and hospitdity, for example.

Example 2 - Linking Housing and Transport
Nodes

New housing developments in Gilston are
connected into key transport nodes et the
railway station, high frequency buses via
the STC’s, and new bus station via DRT.
This makes the new development dtractive
for commuters to who can essily connect to
jobs by integrated public transport or travel
into the town centre for leisure without
using acar, this keeps car ownership lower
and makes the developments an attractive
environment for walking and cydling.

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 58



ZT¢ abed

Transport Strategy as important to enable modal transition, alongside good
placemaking and the investment in active and sustainable transport
infrastructure, to achievingthe HGGT targets for active and sustainable travel.

7.4 Increasing Shared Mobility and Active Travel

741 Introduction

What will it achieve?
Improving provision for
active travel and increasing
shared mohility will improve
the attractiveness and
flexibility of sustainable
transport modes The benefits
of shared mobility include S
decreasing the cost of L, oy
sustainabletransport through =,
increased flexibility and
pricing making thisis an
attractiveness alternative to

What is the baseline situation?

Walkingis currently the most common choicefor journeys under 10 minutes.
Cyclingisnot particularly a popular mode within the HGGT area with only
5% of journeys being made by bike. The HGGT area has a number of
dedicated walking and cycling routes however these often do not directly link
to neighbourhoods which are often car centric and dominated by parked cars
and traffic flows.

Therearecurrently very limited sharedmobility optionswithintheHGGT area
but thereisgood potential for solutionsin the future that will provide viable
options away from privatecar use. With HGGT comprisng a partnership of 5
separate Local Authorities, no single Authority can currently deliver

comprehensive shared mobility or MaaS for HGGT.

Figure 23: Town Centre and Templefields Walking
Catchment

The HGGT Shared Mobility Feadbility Study concluded that the potential
exists to support the introduction of both bike share and car clubsin the
existing HGGT area based upon meeting the needs of existing residents,
businesses and visitorsto thetown centre and surrounding neighbourhoods,
with scope for such services to be expanded to meet growing demand,

potentially somedemand may be absorbed from other transport modes but
shared mobility canincreasethe sustainable options availablef or many trips.

Why doesit support the Vision for the HGGT area?

Increasingwalking and cycling (and potentially scooting) rates are key to
meeting the objectivesof HGGT and the50% sustainable trips mode share.
The cycling propostion needsto support the growth of cycling in existing
communities thisincludesimproved storage and facilities and an improved
range of activetravel options such as access to cycle hire. Shared Mobility
services, for example cycle hire and car club, are identified in the HGGT

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

private car use. Shared
mobility options can also
reduceoverdl journeytimes
by sustainable transport
modes and therefore
ensuringtrave timeismore
comparative with that of
those trips taken by car.

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Figure 24: Existing Cycle Routes and Proposed LCWIP



142

Component Description

This summary table sets out the component parts of the shared mobility and activetrave theme. It establishes which individud programmes or schemes areincluded
within thetheme, a description of what it entails, its likely influenceon modal choice for users, some of thekey challengesto deliverability or the scope of influence
on modes and how it may be interpreted differently for the strategic sites.

Component What is it? How does it influence modal Key challenges Strategic Sites
shift?
Shared M obility A procurement/partnership framework approachthat detail s thescope Provide a viable procurement routein which Resourcewithin HGGT and partnersis HGGT growth comprises delivery of anumber of
@ Framework of shared mobility servicesthat can be procured. shared mobility services and produds can be required to dedicatefocusin progressing separatenew devel opment. Thereisarisk without
designed and delivered. withthiswork.Currently beingresourcedin | co-ordination that piecemea measuresin this
addition to coreroles and has led to slow spacecould fail to offer areadistic alternativeto
progress i n establishingand embeddingthe | theprivate car and could conflict and undermine
framework. each other.
M obility Hubs Devel opingmulti-moda i nterchanges between activemodes, public Enables users to change modes efficiently, Identifyingappropriatesitesinnew axd New strategic housingsites. Residentia and
@ transport and micro mobility in existingand new communities. andfirstand|ast miletrips areintegrated with existing communities and ensure that employment areas for end-to-end trips.
medium and long-di stance public transport providersincludetherequired level of
journeys. modal integration.
Car Clubs Car clubs offer vehicles for hirefor members from | ocations near to Can support lower carownershipby providing | Traditiona successincarclubshascomein Car clubinfrastructurecoul d beincludedinnew

where peoplelive. Members can book carsin avariety of ways online,
by mobileapp, or over the phone. They can access the car viaasmart
card or smartphone application. Members can useany car froma
club’s entire network across the UK. Car club operators typically own
or leasetheir vehicles that are made avail ableto their members for
short-term use. Thecar club coversal the costs of owningand
operatingthevehicles.

car accessibility when required for trips not
possibleby public and activetransport, for
short tripsby those without private car access.

areas with high cost of car ownership and
denseland usewithout access to private
parking, and wherethereisahigh level of
commutingby public transport. Private
companieswill want aprofitable operation.

developments where dedicated car parkingis
limited.

CycleStorageLinked

Providing safe, on-street cyclestoragetosupport journeys toandfrom

Enables moretrips by cyclingthrough the

Allocatingspacefor secure cycleparking at

Asappropriateincludesecurecyclestoragein

ownership. Local authoiities |oan bikes to residents for atria or offer
interest freel oans. Some schemes also have E-bikes availablefor rent
for businesses and residents.

mediumdistancejourneys’andthosewithless
ability to cyclelonger distance or can also be
used to repl ace some servicingtrips.

toLCWIP work and other destinations, without the need for space at home. provision of dedi cated securestoragein pl ace the expense of curb side parking. proposals.
of on-road parkingin residential and Requirement of proper maintenancetohave
employment areas. longtermimpact.
E-Bike Scheme Supportingresidentsin usng E-Bikes through hire schemes or private | E-Bikes provide competition with cars on Secure storage for E-Bikesand highup- Asappropriateincludea ongsidestandard cycle

front costs forindividual users, some
challengesoverlow levelsof familiarity

secure storage, potential to include E-bikes as
aternativeto high car provision.

CycleHire Scheme

Cyclehirefor short periods usually costed permile/km with anunlock
fee. Initial promotions can be used to encourage uptake.

Enabl es short trips around atown centrefor
thosewithout accesstoabicycle. Caninclude
E-Bikes.

Many cycle hire schemes require ongoing
subsidy. It can createimpacts on streets
through poor bike parking, this can be
miti gated through requiringtrip-end points
to bein specific areas.

Ensuringthat any cycle hire scheme can easily be
expandedintonew areasandincorporatedintonew
developments.

Table 18: Description of shared mobility and active travel components

€T¢ abed

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 60



v Tz abed

743

Local Impact

Thissummary table sets out the local impact andysis of parts of the shared mobility and active trave theme. Across each programme or scheme a number of key
determinants are described, including what are thelinked HGGT infrastructure elementsthat are already planned or under development, what key demographics
will they impact, wha isthe spatial influence across different geographies, what is the likely share of movement trips and type that are impacts and finally, the

likely scale of impact.

Mobility Hubs

Car Clubs

Cycle Storage Linked to
LCWIP

E-Bike Scheme

Cycle Hire Scheme

residentid with 20%bus ness
use ranging from SMEs to
large corporates and local
authorities.

Linked HGGT Infragructure Latton Priory, Gilston Villages, East of Latton Priory and Gilston * Radial Bus Strategic Strategic
Elements Harlow and Water Lane Mobility Hubs Villages Mobility Hub » Radia Cycling development’s development’s
Existing hubs in Harlow « LCWIP Routes 1-9 mobility hubs mobility hubs
Key Demographics Residentsor young professionals without cary  Residents without cars or Residents without cars or Internal Commuters | City centre
single car families(north and secureoff road bikestorage workers and
centra Harlow) younger
Users aretypicdly split 80% demographic

Key HGGT Geography Gilston Villages, Latton Priory, East of North and central Harlow « Edinburgh Way All Town centre including
Harlow and Water Lane. Existing hubs at thd where car ownership islower | «  Town Centre key nodes such as the
centrd Transport Interchange, Harlow Town| than in other areas. « Rail Stations railway station and bus
and Mill railway stations, PAH and * Residential aeaswith station
employment areas. L CWIP connections
Mobility hubs should be co- located and
integrated into the village centre, next to
amenities. However, this will be dependent|
on the detailed planning of the development
and clearly needsto be integrated with car-
free areas and cycling and walking routes.

Shareof HGGT areatripsimpacted| Gilston and Latton Priory around 0-1% 0-2% 0-1% 0-2%

by intervention <5% of futuretrip share

Scaleof Impacts High High Medium High High

Table 19: Summary of local impact of shared mobility and active travel components

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town

| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 61



GT¢ abed

744

Delivery and Funding

Thistable summarises the elements of delivery and funding critical to the different components. It gives high level information regarding the source of funding, the
type of fundingand scae required, andindicative package costs, whoislikely to lead onddivery of the scheme or programmeand what is the role of HGGT in the

delivery.
S ‘ Type of Funding Proposed
Component ource o Indicative Package Cost (and how) Delivery Role of HGGT
Funding . R
Resource Capital Revenue Organisation
Shared Mobility Internal Resource ££ - £ Around £30k to develop a shared mobility HGGT and partners Framework lead as
Framework framework, ongoing resourceto manage co-ordinating body
contracts.
Mobility Hubs Developer £ £££ £ Highly dependent on scale but small Developers Establish branding
Contributions and mobility bubsare around £500k -£1m per All partners approach and
Developer Ddivery site integrate with bus
theme
Car Clubs Developer £ £ £ Some car clubs operate on commercia basis All partners Lead on framework
Contributions and but can require up front support and some development to
Harlow and Essex capital funding. ensureconsistency of
working with a gpproach
commercid partner
CydeStorageLinked | DfT £ £ £ Cycle hangers for residential areas cost All partners Integration role
toLCWIP Harlow Council £3,000 per hanger with most councils across themes
charging an annua fee for access. 10 hangers
programme is likely to cost £30k per year
E-Bike Scheme Deveoper Funding £ £ Appendix CFor local authorities, the costis All partners Lead on framework
HGGT partners, between £3-£5k per unit for e-assisted hire development to
DT grants bikes. (CoMo UK) ensureconsistency of
gpproach
CydeHire Scheme Harlow and Essex £ £ ££ Cycle hire schemes mostly operate on a All partners Lead on framework
working with a commercia basisbut may require someup- development to
commercia partner front development/ financid support ensureconsistency of
depending on scae gpproach
Appendix D100% pedd bike fleet costs £1.5K]
- £2.5Kk per unit (CoMo UK)
Key:
Table 20: Summary of delivery and funding considerations for share mobility and active travel components £-Low
££ - Medium
£££ - High
Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Page 62



9T¢ abed

Indicative Programme Cost

Arup has produced a high-level indicative range of costsfor the identified programmes, interventions and schemes. These are based on similar schemes developed
for other loca authorities, but for most costs there aresignificant scdability opportunities and challenges depending on the level of ambition and the exact proposal
istaken forward. Thiswould be confirmed through the deve opment stage. Optimism bias has not currently been applied and all schemesare costed at current prices,
with forecasts to 2050 made based on current prices, not accounting for varying leves of inflation. If schemes are delivered later or completed earlier thiswould also
impact costs. The purposeof the costingis providing high level comparison of themes, not development of future budgets. Where deve opment costs are identified,
some could be delivered through internal resource if capacity and capability available.

Low Estimate

High Estimate

Capita Cost £2,660,000 £5,320,000
Revenue Cost £5,625,000 £7,500,000
Development Costs £290,000 £290,000

Table 21: Indicative HGGT area-wide programme costs for Increasing Shared Mobility and Active Travel

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 63



745 Component Summary

Thissummary table setsout, for the shared mobility and active travel theme, the identified prioritisation for each programme or scheme, the likely delivery
timef rames, the potential impact range of modal shift and key actions to be taken for each identified programme.

The prioritisedcomponents, includinga breakdown of key tasks, allocated to a detaled annual programme, with greater short- term (to 2025) granularity is provided

overleaf in Table 23.

Intervention Short term Priority Timeframes Potential Impact Key Action
Range
Shared Mobility Framework High Short-term NA Develop aprocurement/partnership framework
gpproach and review scope of services to be
procured.
Mobility Hubs High Short-term development, | 0-5% Establish key mobility hub locations and modal
medium-term delivery requirements in each location in linewith ECC’s
mobility hub guidance
Car Clubs Medium Short-termdevelopment, | 0-1% Engage with car club providers on the opportunity
medium-term delivery in the HGGT area and required support for car
club scheme.
Cycle Storage Linked to LCWIP Medium Short-term development | 0-1% Develop scheme to enable the instalation of cycle
and ddivery storage in areas with new cycle facilities where
residents require it.
E-Bike Scheme Low Short-termdevelopment | 0-1% Work with neighbouring authorities to understand
and ddlivery impact of E-Bike rental schemes.
Low Short-termdevelopment | 0-2.5% Engage with operators on option for delivering
Cyle Hire Scheme and ddivery cycle hireand consideration of local impacts (e.g.

need for dedicated parking zones).

Table 22: Component summary table for shared mobility and active travel

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

/T¢ abed

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 64



8T¢ abed

746 Theme Prioritisation and Timeframes (short-term focus)

Developmert

- Delivery

Scenario Priority
2023 2024 2025 i 2026 2027 2028 2029/30 | 2031/32 | 2033/34 | 2035-40 T T

BAU | Ambition i Exemplar

1. Shared Mobility Framework
1.1 Develop a procurement/partnership framework approach and review scope of services to be
procured
Output: Agreed framework that retains an appropriate level oflocal authority control with
flexibility and scalability for shared mobility solutions
1.2 Commission a detailed Shared Mobility feasibility study (following the pre-market engagement
study from 2021)
Output: Specific locations areidentified where mobility solutions will be most viable

2. Mobility Hubs
2.1 Reconvene the Mobility Hub Working Group with the focus on how partners can work together to
start to put hubs on the ground ( the groups remitto be broadened to cover all aspects of Shared
Mobility)
Output: Engagement across partners on mobility hub design and develop that willlink to
planning policies and processes.
2.2 Consult with public on mobility hub options
2.3 Prepare a business case based on feasibility study findings for proposed mobility hub options to
be taken forward
2.4 HGGT to commission the development of design and branding for Mobility Hubs
Output: Willhelp establish aunified approach tomobility hub deployment cross the
development

3. Car Clubs
3.1 Engage with Car Club operator to understand requirements for delivering car clubs inthe HGGT
area
Output: Car club programmes developed to factor local context
3.2 Utilise Shared Mobility Working Group with HGGT, operators and developers to identify priority
at car club locations (using feasibility study recommendations).
Output: Cross partner agreement oncar club implementation and priorities
3.3 Use Shared Mobility Framework to procure Car Clubs operator
Output: Comprehensive tender process toappoint operator
3.4 Sign agreement with Car Clubs operator

4. Cycle Storage Linked to LCWIP
4.1 Analyse potential opportunities along LCWIP routes that might benefit from cycle storage
4.2 Establish finding for cycle storage and establish programme for residents to apply for storage
where on available off street

5. E-Bikes
5.1 E-bike feasibility study to be conducted to determine most viable locations for implementing
schemes
5.2 Engagement with E-Bike suppliers on requirements for delivery of E-Bike hire Scheme
5.3 Develop proposals for E-Bike Scheme including regulations on "hire area" and polices on price
and usage
5.4 Launch Pilot of E-Bike Scheme inthe HGGT area

Table 23: Prioritised shared mobility and active travel programmes and timeframes for delivery

Consultation

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Page 65



6T¢ abed

747 Theme Prioritisation and Timeframes (long-term focus)
Whilst Table 23 on the previouspage gives a more detail ed breakdown of the short-term prioritiesup until th
year and sets out the longer-term priorities. This is demonstrated in Table 24 below.

Table 24: Prioritised shared mobility and active travel programmes and timeframes for delivery (long term focus)

e end of 2025, this section expands to the 2040 future

Development

Ddivery

2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

Scenario Priority
BAU i Ambitioni Exemplg

2029/3G¢ 2031/32 2033/34; 2035-4

Shared Mobility Framework

Mobility Hubs
Car Clubs
Cycle Storage linked to LCWIP
E-Bikes
Short term Priority Medium Priority Long Priority
Development Development Development
o Develop framework for shared mobility based e Preparebusiness casefor mobility hubs e Launch pilot cycle hire and mobility hub
on aprocurement and partnership approachand Analysepotentid opportunitiesfor cyce schemesuponcompletion of dl procurement
review scope of services to be procured storage along LCWIP routes and feasibility processes

e Consult onmobility hubswith communities Evaluatefeasihility of E-Bikesincluding
and developers of strategic sites locations

e Engage with Car Club providers

Delivery Delivery
e Create shared mobility user groupand use o Deliver cycle storageand egablish programme
framework and reconvene Mobility Hub for residents to apply for storage

e Workinggroup to begin stepsfor ddivery

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Diff
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

e Sign agreement with chosen Car Club operator

Delivery

o Launch full cyclehire E-Bike, Car Cluband
Mobility Hub scheme for users and monitor
uptake and impact on trips

erently
Page 66



0¢z abed

748 Benefits and Evidence

This section setsout thewider benefits that can beachieved (linked tothe benefitsmap) through the ddivery of thecomponents that make up the shared mobility and
activetravel theme. It also demonstrates case studies of where similar has been developed and examples of how this could happen in the HGGT area and some

outcomes that could be realised.

Wider Benefits

* Increased active travel for accessto education

* Reduced air quality impacts on key local streets including school

* Reducing the environmental impact of transport to support ahealthier
and more sustainable community

* Improved accessto loca facilities

* Increased accessibility to town centres

* Enhanced safety of pedestrian and cycling infrastructure

+ Improved hedlth of loca community

* Increase use of existing services and new usage of new infrastructure

Where hasit been adopted?

Casestudy 1- Exeter Co Cars Mobility Hub: Award winning mobility
hub giving residents of anew development in Exeter accessto shared,
public and active travel options.

Case study 2 — Redbridge Mobility Hubs: The UK’s first accredited
mobility hub, the South Woodford mini-hub hasan electric car club bay,
seating, water fountain, cycle parking and florawithin areclaimed
parking space, as well as adjacent bus stops and a tube station.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Example 1 — Shared Mobility

Using mixed modes of public and active
travel has become easier withgrowing use
of shared mobility services and the new
mobility hubs.

Incressingly people are using both
traditiona or E-Bikes to access the
improving bus network, whilst thestop isa
bit further from our house the stop has safe
storage for bikes, and as an extrabonuswe
can pick up parcels on the way home.

Example 2 — Cycle Parking

For those without acar, Harlow has become
much easier tolive in thanks toimprovements in
shared mobility. Rather than own acar, when
needed, residents can book one through the car
club or hirea variety of different bikes or
whedls.

However, rather than dways useacar, it’s more
affordable to use locd public transport or cycle,
with improved cycle storage outside homes,
work and stations meaning bikes are safe.

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently
Page 67



Tce abed

7.5 Targeted Engagement Programmes

751 Introduction

What is the basdline situation?

There are existing pockets of good practice as delivered by ECC,
working with local businesses and schools to promote sustainable
transport use. A good example isthe Smarter Travel for Essex Network
(STEN) which helps businesses with 50+ employees prepare and
implement effective travel plans to promote and encourage active and
sustainable travel. Currently other programmes are largely focused on
areas such as Colchester and Braintree with no activity of programmes
with large trip generatorstaking place within the HGGT area. In order
to meet the HGGT modal trandition targets, alarger scale travel
behaviour change programme is required to promote more sustainable
travel patternsto places of employment, new housing developments,
schools, colleges and for leisure purposes. These include specific
projects being pursued by the ECC Sustainable Travel Planning Team
(STPT) and other partners supporting sustainable travel initiatives,
providing the framework to achieve more through a coordinated
approach.

Why does it support the Vision for the HGGT area?

Engaging with schools, businesses, the local community and new
residentsin the strategic sites will be vita in encouraging the
prevalence of walking, cycling and the use of public transport. It is
essentia in promoting sustainable development, reducing car

dependency, supporting the sustainable distribution of goods and
encouraging saf er places for communities. Ensuring sustainable access
to businesses and schools helps unlock the growth ambition and
provides an opportunity to level inequality through increasing access
to education and employment by sustainable transport modes.

What will it achieve?

Working with large trip generators such as schools and businesses to
reduce their single car occupancy use will have asignificant impact on
modal transition. Sustainable transport initiatives aimed at education,
employment and residential sitesin particular will provide focused
cohorts within which activity can be progressed and more easily
monitored.

w
. * / MODESHIF&
+r I { k ~
Figure 25: Mode shift STARS = Centre of Excellence for the

delivery of Effective Travel Plans in Education, Business
and Residential Settings

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Page 68

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently



zee abed

752

Component Description

This summary table setsout the component parts of the targeted engagement programmetheme. It establishes whichindividua programmesor schemes are included
within the theme, a description of what it entails, itslikely influenceonmodal choice for users, someof the key chalengesto deliverability or the scopeof influence

on modes and how it may be interpreted differently for the strategic sites.

Table 25: Description of targeted engagement programme components

Component

What is it?

How does it influence modal shift?

Key challenges

Strategic Sites

@

School Travel Scheme

Liaisingwith schoolsto understand current
provisions of travel support and barriersto using
sustainable travel, supportingthemin thetailored
development of a travel schemeto encourage
sustainabletravel and utilisenew or improved
sustainabletravel opportunities, whilemonitoring
student travel behaviour.

Supports key target demographicsin utilising sustainable
travel opportunities through engagingwith schools and
understandingbarri ersto sustai nabletravel . Monitors travel
behaviour to better understand patterns and useto tailor
plan more effectively.

School catchments can cover areas outside walking
and cyclingdistances beyondwalking, provision for
thewider catchment needsto bein placeaso. Lack
of resources and capacity within schools to support
modal transition.

Developed and in place a school s across
wider HGGT area, so when primary and
secondary schoolswithin strategic sitesare
open, they can be implemented fromthe
outset and befurther advanced based on
learningsand recommendati onsfrom other
HGGT area schools.

Pathfinder Businesses and
I nstitutions

Workingwithkey employerstoidentify opportunity
to partner in promotingsustainabletravel to
commuting and creation of anetwork of businesses
to simplify engagement and gain feedback from
businesses and institution on approaches and
initiatives.

Businesses and instructions aredirectly engaged with on
sustainabletravel and can be used to promote better
mobility choices among customers and employees, while
acting as a soundboard to help improveinitiative
effectiveness.

Findingincentives for some businesses to act to
reduce vehicletrips a their own monetary or time
cost. Encouraging engagement during constrai ned
business hours.

Publicsector bodiesmay havefunding
constraints

Workingwith commercial partners on
strategic sitestosupport businesses buyin
fromtheoutset on sustainabletravel
outcomes and encourage engagement.

Community
Champions

Workingwith identified community |eaders and
goups of volunteers to champion and promote
sustainable transport usein order to advocate for
improved health and wellbeingwithin their local
community.

Engages community with designingand reviewing
initiatives and schemes to better tailor themfor the people
they will serve. Encourages thewider community to think
about travel choicesand their impact on the environment
and health and wellbeing,

Identifyingand supporting community
champions to support longer term change.
Engaging communities and

encouraging themeffectively tochangetheir behavioun
without the requirement to.

Encourage new residentsto becomeCommunity|
Champions, will encourage their engagement

with existingcommunities and shapetheir new
communities.

Business Engagement

Devel opment of atail ored programme of travel
support to engagewith largetrip generating
employers and sites, to deliver sustainabletravel
orientated measures, a ongside the regular monitoring
of employeetravel behaviour.

Workingwith thelargest employeetrip generators will
enable alarge proportion of the mode shareto be targeted
with tailored, specific measures. Monitoring employee
travel patternswill enable continuous development and
tailoringof initiatives as patterns evolve.

Encouragingemployers to get on board with the
schemeif they do not perceive problems with
existingtravel patterns. Collectingemployee travel
datacan beresource heavy and taketime to collate
but it is essential to achieve a ‘full picture’ to
development the most effective schemes and
initiatives.

Targeting of new commuter journeys from
strategic sites, understandingwhere people
commuteto and what their commutingtrips
look like. Shaping commuter tripsis essential
fromtheoutset of strategic development
residency, as theprovisions for sustainable
community should aready bein place.

|

M arketing and
Communications

Development of a marketing and communications
plan tosell theHGGT Modal Transitionvisiontothe
target groups with the highest propensity to change.
This can be done through an in-house appoi ntment
or through a specialist consultancy.

By targeting thosewho havethe highest propensity to
change their travel behaviour, initia engagement and
communications can be most effective with less resourcing.
It can then bedialled up based on requirements, such as
strategic sites development.

Effectively targetingthosewith alower propensity
to change. Creatingeffective marketingand
communications strategies that will achievethe
desired level of impact and effectiveness.

Dia up marketingand communication
strategy duringthefinal stages of strategic
sites development, totarget new residents and
encourage sustainabletransport decisions
fromthe outset.

Residential Travel

a Support

Workingwith devel opers to promote sustainable
travel, ensuringresidential travel plansarein place
toreduce thenumber of car journeys new
developments will create and sugai nable modes of
transport usageis maximised.

Encourages residents of new devel opmentsto use
sustainabletravel through awareness and clear presentation
on theavailability and suitability of sustainable modes for
different trip types. Offers apoint of call for understanding
of sustai nable modes available to thosewho may benew to
thearea

Development of astrategy of comprehensive support
for new residents. Creatingservicesand mobility
options that match the ambition of complete

sustai nable mobility optionsfor residents of new
devel opments.

All strategic sites should have aresidential
travel plan or relevant support in placeto
encourage and enableresidentsto utilise
sustainabletravel options for their trips,

reducingtheattractiveness of car trips.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 69



753 Local Impact

Thissummary table sets out thelocad impact andysis of parts of the target engagement programme theme. Across each programme or scheme a number of key
determinantsare described, includingwhat are thelinked HGGT infrastructure elementsthat are already planned or under devel opment, wha key demographics will
they impact, what isthe spatial influence acrossdifferent geographies, what isthe likely share of movement trips and type that are impacts and finally, the likely

scale of impact.

*  LCWIP Routes

*  LCWIP Route

embed and activate
STC's

plan but likely to help
activate awvareness/
encourage use of dl
new infrastructure

School Travel Pathfinder Businesses| Community Business Marketing and Residential Travel
Scheme and Institutions Champions Engagement Communications Support
Linked HGGT Infrastructure +  Cycling and +  Cycling and To be utilised to help + Radid Bus To bedetermined in + Al STCs
Elements walking routes walking routes co-design new +  Radid Cydling the marketing *  Straegic
via schools via schools infrastructure and help and communications developments and

associated M obility
Hubs

Key Demographics

Families and school
age children / young
adults

Employees and Business
owners

Families living inhigh
traffic streets

Employees and Business
owners

Y oung people, Working
age adults and Seniors

Futureresidents of new
strategic developments

Key HGGT Geography

*  Four strategic
developments

*  Pinnacles
+  Templefieds

Areawide with
particular focuson

*  Pinnacles
*  Templefidds

To be determined in
the marketing and

All strategic sites

«  Liveable stredts «  Town centre liveable streets «  Town centre communicaions plan
*  Key institutions
Shareof HGGT areatrips 10-15% 5-10% 2-5% 5-10% 5-10% 5-10%
impacted by intervention
Scale of | mpacts High Medium Medium High High High

Table 26: Summary of local impact of targeted engagement components

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town

gze obed

| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 70




yzz abed

754

Delivery and Funding

Thistable summarisesthe elements of ddivery and funding critical to the different components. It gives high level information regarding the source of
funding, the type of fundingand scderequired, and indicative packagecosts who islikelytolead ondelivery of the scheme or programme and what is the
role of HGGT in the delivery.

Type of Funding

Component Sourc_e of Indicative Package Cost (and how) PrOpO_sed _Delivery Role of HGGT
Funding Resource Capital Revenue Organisation
School Travel Scheme  [DfT £ - £ £150,000-£200,000 per annum (dependent | HGGT Recruit officer
HGGT corebudget on scale/ number of schools worked Essex Liaise with schools to
RIE with) Harlow understand current
provision of support and|
barriers to sustainable
mobility
Pathfinder Businesses DfT ££ - £ £25,000-£50,000 (dependent on scale/ | HGGT Recruit officer
and Ingitutions HGGT corebudget number of businesses worked with) Essex Create network of
RIF Harlow businesses
Community Champions |DfT £ - £ £25,000-£50,000 (dependent on HGGT Recruit volunteers
HGGT corebudget scale/ number of community champions Essex Create network of
RIF worked with) Harlow communities
Business Engagement DfT £ - £ £150,000-£200,000 per annum (dependent | HGGT Develop tailored travel
HGGT corebudget on scale/ number of businesses worked | Essex support
RIF with) Harlow Engage with largetrip
generating employers
Marketing and Comms | DfT £ - £ £50,000 - £75,000forinitid development | HGGT Develop plan for
Plan HGGT corebudget of plan (dependent on if initial planis implementation that will
RIF outsourced to aconsultancy or delivered sell HGGT vision
in house) Determine appropriate
Circaup to £250,000 per annum for channels and social
delivery of plan- (to include e.g. out of mediaplatforms
home costsfor marketing, paid for social
media, and other elements to be
determined within the plan).
Residential Travel S106 — Developer ££E - £ £50,000-£100,000 pe annum (dgpendent | HGGT Engage developers
Support funding on scale/ number of strategic Essex Appoint resource
sitesworked with) Harlow
Developers

Table 27:Summary of delivery and funding considerations for targeted engagement components

Key.

£ - Low-££ - Medium - £££ - High

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 71



Gee obed

Indicative Programme Cost

Arup has produced a high level indicativerange of costsfor the identified programmes, interventions and schemes. These are based on similar schemes developed
for other loca authorities, but for most costs there aresignificant scaability opportunities and challengesdepending on the level of ambition and the exact proposal
istaken forward. Thiswould be confirmed through the devd opment stage. Optimism bias has not currently been applied and all schemesare costed at current prices,
with forecasts to 2050 made based on current prices, not accounting for varying leves of inflation. If schemes are delivered later or completed earlier thiswould also
impact costs. Thepurposeof the costingis providing high level comparison of themes, not development of futurebudgets. Where deve opment costs are identified,
some could be delivered through internal resource if capacity and capability available.

Low Estimate

High Estimate

Capitd Cost
Revenue Cost £10,300,000 £12,850,000
Development Costs £200,000 £250,000

Table 28: Indicative HGGT area-wide programme costs for targeted engagement programmes

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 72



9ze abed

755

Component Summary

Thissummary table setsout, for the targeted engagement programme theme, the identified prioritisation for each programme or scheme, the likely delivery
timef rames, the potential impact range of modal shift and key actions to be taken for each identified programme.

The prioritisedcomponents, includinga breakdown of key tasks, allocatedto a detaledannual programme, with greater short-term (to 2025) granularity is provided

overleaf in Table 30.

Intervention

Short term Priority

Timeframes (estimates)

Potential Impact
Range

Key Action

number of car journeys new developments will create and
sustainable modes of transport usage is maximised.

and development of travel plans — 3 months
Development of travel plansfor strategic sites— 6 months

School Travel Recruitment of adedicated school engagement officer to | Short-term High Liaising with schools to determine
Scheme liaisewith schools on supporting modal transition and Liaisingwith schools— 3 months existingsituation and development of a
workingwith themtoensureall schoolshaveatravel plan 9 ) ) ] tailored travel planning education strategy
in place. Development of atailored travel planningeducation to support school travel plan delivery
programme - 2 months once an officer has been recruited.
Working with schools on delivery of site-specific travel
plans andregular monitoring of student travel behaviour -
ongoing
Pathfinder Businesses Recruitment of adedicated businessesengagement officer | Short-term Medium Recruitment of dedicated officer to
and Institutions tq develop abus@rmsengage’nem strategy and feedback Recruitment of officer — 3 months deyelop cpmmscharpd and unQerstqnd
views from businesses. ) ) ) which businessesareinterested in taking
Engagement with businesses - ongoing forward meaningful action.
Community Recruit network of community volunteers to engagewith Short-term Low Recruiting Community Champions to
Champions their communities and promotesustainable travel for their Recruiting volunteers— 6 months engage with community andfeedback to
health and wellbeing. Utilising Community Champions— 12 months HGGT.
Business Engagement| Develop a programme of tailored travel support for the | Short-term Medium Development of a programme of site-
biggest trip gen_erai ng businesses, alongsideengaging with Programme development — 2 months spe(_:ific travel action plar_ls with
new and potential businesses to support sustainable trips ) ) o businesses, engagement with businesses
from the outset. Programme delivery and tracking of initiatives across to undertake regular monitoring of
busmessesthat can monitor uptake of sustainabletravel - employee travel behaviour and
ongoing framework for engaging with new
businesses.
Marketingand Develop marketingand communication plan tosell HGGT | Medium-term Medium Assess options for social mediaand
Comms vision of sustainable mohility, implement plan targeting Develop marketingand communications plan and potential communicationcampaignsand develop
those with high propensity to change. appointment of external resource support — 3 months plan for targeted campaignstosell HGGT
Implementation of plan and subsequent management — vision.
ongoing
Residentia Travel Working with developers to promote sustainable travel, | Long-term High Engage with developers and develop
Support ensuringresidential travel plans arein placeto reducethe| Engagewith developerson promotionof sustainable travel plans for sustanebletravel from strategic

sites to key destinations.

Table 29: Component summary table for targeted engagement programmes

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 73




/zc abed

756 Theme Prioritisation and Timeframes (short-term focus)

2023 2024 2033/34 2035-40 Scenario Priority

Ambition

1. School Travel Scheme
1.1 Recruit a dedcatedschods engagement officer. Liaise with schools to
understand current provisions of travel support and barriers o using sustainable
travel
Output: Improved safety around the school, reduced congestion and safer
walking and cycling routes
1.2 Develop atailored travel plaming education thatwil deliver initiatives to
increase sustainable travel use
Output: Bespoke programme of measures to be delivered with schools
1.3 Deliver the including devel of site-specific travel action
plans with schools, working with them to help deliver the actionsand undertake
regular monitoring of student travel behaviour
Output: Tracking of initiatives across schools that can monitor uptake of
sustainable transport

2. Pathfinder Businesses and Institutions

21 Recruit a dedicated business engagement officer who will
create a network of businesses in the area, simplifying channels of
engagement from local authority and act as a soundboard for businesses
on travel and transport issues
Output: Engaged cohort of businesses |sf0rmed who areinterested in
taking forward i | action on transport

3. Community Champions

31 Recruit a network of volunteers tochampion and promote
sustainable transportuse to help improve heath and wellbeing inthe local
community Output: People who use their social networks and life
experience to address barriers to engagement and improve
connections between public authorities and their communities

32 Utilise the communitychampion network as akey groupinthe
co- design of sustainable transportinitiatives and scheme delivery and
design Output: Network will ensure community buyln and resistance
to sustainable transport measures are mitigated

4. Business Engagement
4.1 Develop a programme of tailored travel support, developed to

engage withlargetrip generating employers and sites © deliver sustainable
travel orientated measures

Output: Working with the largest trip generatorswill have the biggest impact

on overall mode share targets
4.2 Deliver the programme, including site specifictravel action
plans with businesses, working with them to help deliver the actions and
undertake regular monitoring of employee travel behaviour

Output: Tracking of initiatives acrossbusinesses that can monitor uptake

of sustainable transport

5. Marketing and Comms Plan

51 Develop a marketing and communications plan thatwill sell
the vision of HGGT modal transition and target groupswith the highest
propensity to change (resaurceto be determinedin-house or appoint
specialist consultancy)
Output: Targeted marketing to sell the visionand targeted communication
to activate change
52 Start to implement markeingand communications plan (to
include socialmedacampaigns and other comms channels as determined
inthe plan)
Output: Marketing and Comms that can start to be dialled up in the lead up
to strategic site development

Table 30: Prioritised targeted engagement programmes and timeframes for delivery (short term focus)

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Page 74



8¢ abed

757 Theme Prioritisation and Timeframes (long-term focus)

Whilst Table 26 on the previouspage gives a more detailed breakdown of the short-termprioritiesup until theend of 2025, this section expands to the 2040 future
year and sets out the longer-term priorities. This is demonstrated in Table 31 below.

2023 2024 | 2025 | 2026 i 2027 i 2028

2031/32; 2033/34: 2035-40

{Ambition iExemplar

School Travel Scheme

Pathfinder Businesses and Institutions

Community Champions

Business Engagement

Marketing and Comms

Residential Travel Support

Short term priority

Devel opment
e Develop strategiesto engage with schoolsand

businesses to understand current provision of
sustainabletravel support and barriersto uptake.

e Engage with local communities on proposalsand
HGGT vision.

Delivery
e Recruit dedicated officersto engage with
schools, businesses and institutions. Work with

schools and businessesto develop tailored, site-
specific travel plans.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Table 31: Prioritised targeted engagement programmes and timeframes for delivery (long term focus)

Medium term priority

Devel opment

¢  Creation of community and business networks,
simplifying engagement channelsand recruiting
volunteersto champion sustainable transport.

Delivery

o Deliver sustainable transport schemes
incorporatingviews from targeted engagement
and monitor school and businesstravel
behaviour to evaluate impact.

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Long term priority

Devel opment

¢ Understanding the needs of the new residents of
strategic developments

¢ Liaising with developers on provisionsof
mobility to enable sustainable travel.

Delivery

¢ Provide comprehensivetravel support through
plansfor new residents of strategic sites,
supported through the development of
sustainable mobility optionsin the area

Page 75



6¢¢ obed

758 Benefits and Evidence

This section setsout the wider benef its that can beachieved (linked to the benefits map) through the delivery of the components that make up the targeted engagement
programme theme. It also demonstrates case studies of where similar has been developed and examples of how this could hgppen in the HGGT area and some

outcomes that could be realised.

Wider Benefits

Engagement with the community ensures everyone can havean
opinion

I nvolving communities through acollaborative design approach is
essentia for delivering successful schemes

Overcomes resistance to change and uncertainty

Increased community pride and a sense of ownership

More responsive and tailored transport system

Where hasit been adopted

Case study 1 - Bristol Travel West: Active Travel Champions project
where the purpose is to get more people walking or cycling to work
through peer lead support. Currently has over 250 Championsin arange
of businesses, from the region's largest to smaller businesses.

Casestudy 2— Mode shift STARS: Centre of Excellence for the delivery

of effectivetravel plansin education, business and residential settings.
The scheme recognises organisations that have shown excellence in
supporting active and sustainable forms of travel.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Example 1 - Raising Awareness for Active
Trave

Awareness of therange of active travel
options and infrastructure improvements
to cycle routes and school streets has
increased.

Now avariety of sustainable modes are
used for different trip types, with acar
used as alast resort for some trips that
can’t becompleted through active travel
or public transport.

Example?2 - Travelling to Work and School

Companies are driven to achieve
recognition for the qudity of their travel
plans and theimpact they have had on
employee commuting patterns.

Schools are focusing on reducing pupil
drop-offs by car which ismanaged by the
implementation of school streets and
reduced traffic at these times making
dternative modes safer and more
atractive.

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 76



0gg abed

7.6 Rebalancing the Cost of Travel

76.1 Introduction

What isthe baseline situation?
Currently drivingis not only significantly quicker for many journeys within -
the HGGT area it’s also cheaper than public transport for most journeys

especially where free or cheap parking is of fered at workplaces or ; 7

destinations. Employersarealso not currently incentivised to promote active
and publictrangport f or employment over commutingby car with high levels
of parking at many workplaces.

Why does it support the Vision for the HGGT area? . E raN o T .
Pricing measuresare not thepreferred vision for delivering modal transition - A i,

however pricing remains akey tool in many areasto deliver transition from = :
high car dependency. However, an approach to reviewing the comparable %
cost of travel could provide an incentive for easily switchable trips to be 7
undertaken by sustainablemodesand can provide revenue which supports [
public and active transport measures. Ensuring economic growth and 1
investment in town centres will be avital consideration as part of this :
package of measures. | s ! g\ W

What will it achieve? ; = I ; e
When the requisite alternatives to private transport are in place, the modal 5
transition to public transport should be on a positive path.

Figure 26: Car vs Public Transport Accessibility

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

— L
B L by

Trarei Thme from
Harom Cenire
Tuesslay Bar
[T
-
[
[
Driww T Frome.
Hasiows Contre
iy 2o
-

Page 77



76.2

Component Description

Thissummary table setsout the component partsof therebalancingthe cost of travel theme. It establisheswhich individual programmes or schemes are included
within thetheme, adescription of what it entails, its likely influence on modal choice for users, some of the key challenges to deliverability or the scope of
influence on modes and how it may be interpreted diff erently for the strategic sites.

Component

What is it?

How does itinfluence modal
shift?

Key challenges

Strategic Sites

@ Parking Management
Strategy

Reviewing the price of public and on street
parking.

Alongside reviewing supply (see
roads streets and neighbourhoods)
the cost of parking can influence

modal choice of users.

Public parking represents only a
small share of totd parking and
retail, and employment parking is
outside of the town centre and
direct public control.

N/A

Strategic SitesParking
G Management Strategy

Ensuring the pricing of parking in strategic
sites encourages sustainable travel including
costs of parking permits.

Ensuring that new sites are
developed with coherent parking
pricing strategy that ensures short
trips areundertaken by sustainable
modes.

Developers will need balance the
needs of parking and ensure
development are dtractive to
residents.

Will set out apricing strategy for
strategic site parking including on-
street and public parking.

Table 32: Description of rebalancing the cost of travel components

T¢e abed

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 78



Zse abed

76.3 Local Impact

This summary table sets out thelocd impact analysis of parts of the rebalancing the cost of travel theme. Across each programme or scheme a
number of key determinants are described, including what are the linked HGGT infrastructure elements that are already planned or under
development, what key demographics will they impact, what is the spatial influence across dif f erent geographies, what is the likely share of
movement trips and type that are impacts and finally, the likely scale of impact.

Parking Management Strategy

Strategic Sites Parking Management Strategy

Linked Infrastructure Elements

All

All

Key Demographics

Car owners and visitors

All car

Key HGGT Geography

Car owning households and businesses

Car owning households and businesses

Shareof Trips Impacted

IAround half of al trips end in Harlow

15% of Harlow in new developments

Scale of | mpacts

M edium

M edium

Table 33: Summary of local impact of rebalancing the cost of travel components

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town

| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 79



764 Delivery and Funding

Thistable summarises the elements of delivery and funding critical to thedifferent components. It gives high level information regarding the source of funding, the
type of funding and scalerequired, and indicative package costs, whoislikely to lead onddivery of the schemeor programme and what is the role of HGGT in the

delivery.

Type of Funding Proposed o of

Component Source of Funding . Indicative Package Cost (and how) | Delivery Role of HGGT
Resource Capital Revenue Organisation
Parking Potentiall Policy development of £25k, Ddiver in
Management Revenue Positive ££f £ Y consultation costs of £20k, Harlow Council collaboration with
revenuepositive | . . .
Strategy implementation cost vary Harlow Council
ﬁgr?(tlengéc Sites Potentiall Initia Policy development of £25Kk, Work with
Developer Funding ££ Y consultation cost of £20Kk, HGGT developerson

Management revenuepositive | . | . i
Strategy implementation cost vary proposas

Table 34: Summary of delivery and funding considerations for rebalancing the cost of travel components

Key:
£-Low
££ - Medium
£££- High

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

cge abed

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 80



yez abed

Indicative Programme Cost

Arup has produced a high-level indicative range of costsfor the identified programmes, interventions and schemes. These are based on similar schemes developed
for other loca authorities, but for most costs there aresignificant scaability opportunities and challenges depending on the level of ambition and the exact proposal
istaken forward. Thiswould be confirmed through the devd opment stage. Optimism bias has not currently been applied and all schemesare costed at current prices,

with forecasts to 2050 made based on current prices, not accounting for varying levels of inflation.

If schemesare deliveredlater or completed earlier this would also impact costs. The purpose of the costing is providing high level comparison of themes, not
development of future budgets. Where deve opment costsare identified, some could be ddivered through internal resource if capacity and capability available. For
rebalancing the cost of travel only development coss havebeen identified as many schemes could bedeve oped ona cost neutrd or profit-making basis, depending
on the assumptions and development route of the different options. Revenue could then be used to fund other interventions.

Low Estimate

High Estimate

Capitd Cost n/a n/a
Revenue Cost n/a n/a
Development Costs £200,000 £300,000

Table 35: Indicative HGGT area-wide programme costs for rebalancing the cost of travel

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town

| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 81



765 Component Summary

Thissummary tablesetsout, for therebalancingthe cost of travel theme, the identified prioritisation for each programme or scheme, the likely delivery
timef rames, the potential impact range of modal shift and key actions to be taken for each identified programme.

The prioritised components, includinga breakdown of key tasks, allocated to a detailed annual programme, with greater short-term (to 2025) granularity is

provided overleaf in Table 37.

* Develop strategy
and engage with
developers

Intervention Short term Priority Timeframes Potential Impact Key Action
Range
Parking M anagement Strategy High Short-term 1-5% Develop aproposd for a comprehensive review of
* Develop strategy parking management and pricing in conjunction with
+ Manage paking the Town Centre Strategy. Ensure this is balanced
provision in key against the economic vitality of the town, but with an
aress am to promote more journeys by public and active
travel.
Strategic Sites Parking M anagement Strategy High Medium-term 1-5% Begin engagement with developers and Local

Government on proposed paking provision,
permitting and pricing proposals.

Table 36: Component summary table for rebalancing the cost of travel engagement programmes

«Q
9]
HarIN?nd Gilston Garden Town
| Fin@0 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

ol

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 82




76.6 Prioritisation and Timeframes (short-term focus)

Development

- Delivery

9gg abed

2023 2024 2025 i Scenario Priority

BAU { Ambition i Exemplar

1. Parking Management Strategy
1.1 Devel op a parking management strategy which sets out
how parking will be managed to prioritisethe use of
sustainablemodes for short tripswithin theHGGT area
Output: Strategic plan for parking management
in thearea which supports themodal transition objective
1.2 Consultationon parking management strategy and
finalisation of strategy for proposed implementation
Output: Community feedback can be used to further
developaspectsof thestrategy enabling ittoreachfina
formready for implementation

2. Strategic Sites Parking Management Strategy
2.1 Devel op parking managementand pricing strategyto
implement, coinciding with thefirst resident for each
strategic sitesto limit on-street parkingat the outset and
encourage car -free devel opment
Output: Strategic planfor parkinginstrategic sites tolimit
provision for new resi dents encouraging use of alternative Cc
modes
2.2 Consultationon parkingpolicies with devel opersfor a
coordinated approach
Output: Coordinated approach for all strategicsitesto
ensureprovisionisin-linewithrequirementstoachieve
modal transition

Table 37: Prioritised rebalancing the cost of travel programmes and timeframes for delivery (short term focus)

B consultation

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Page 83



76.7 Prioritisation and Timeframes (long-term focus)
Whilst Table 37 on the previouspagegives a more detailed breakdown of the short-term priorities up until the end of 2025, this section expands to the 2040 future
year and sets out the longer-term priorities. This is demonstrated in Table 38 below.

Table 38: Prioritised rebalancing the cost of travel programmes and timeframes for delivery (long term focus)

2023 2024

2025 2026 2027 2028 i 2029/30: 2031/32: 2033/34

Scenario Priority
BAU i Ambition { Exemplar

2035-4

Parking Pricing Strategy

Strategic Stes Parking Policies

Short term priority
Development

o Develop strategy for town centre parking
and reducing provisonto maximiseimpact
on increasing sustainable mode trips.

o Develop strategy based on examples
presented for new devel opmentsto mitigate
unnecessary private car ownership for
strategic developments.

e Consult with developers on suitability of
strategy.

Delivery

e Oncedevelapers have been conaulted,
incorporate strategy into proposals for
strategic sites.

Onceconsultationsfor pricingand provision
of parking in the town centre, incorporate
into relevant council strategy or policy.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

/€¢ abed

Medium term priority
Development

o Utilise strategies to encourage car free
residents. Develop public transport and
sustainable mode options alongside to

ensure mobhility is not negatively aff ected.

Delivery

e Ensure strategic sites are delivered
alongsiderelevant parkingpoliciesand
parking provision is delivered by
stakeholders in line with policies.

Long term priority

Development

o Develop strategy in line with potential
national policy which may bein placein the

future.
Delivery

o Deliver strategy with partner councilsto
ensure strategy is area wide.

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 84



7.6.8 Benefits and Evidence

g8¢g abed

This section sets out the wider benefits that can be achieved (linked to the benef itsmap) through thedelivery of the components that make up the rebalancing the

cost of travel theme. It also demonstrates case studiesof where similar has been developed and examples of how this could happen in the HGGT area and some

outcomes that could be realised.

Wider Benefit

e Supportsaffordableand inclusive accessto employment opportunities and
services.

e Improvingsocial equity, economic opportunitiesfor residents

e Balancing accessbility for all socio-economic groupsandreductionsin both
emissions and congestion which benefit many communities.

¢ Fundingfrom government can support residentstrangtionto cleaner vehicles
alongside funding sustainable transport interventions.

Wherehasit been adopted

e Case Study 1 — Nottingham Wor kplace Par king L evy: All employers providing
parking spaces arelegally obliged to licence the spaces and may be liable to pay.
Employers may chooseto reclaim thispayment fromtheir employees. This hasled
to a decrease in workplace parking space provision in the city.

® Case Study 2 — Lambeth Kerbside Strategy: Sets out the council’s vision to
reclaim the kerbside asapublic space. Currently, 94% of kerbsidespaceis used as
parking provision and theplanisto transform 25% of kerbside space into places

for people such ascycle storage, parklets and other spaces for community use.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Example- Parking Permits and Reducing
Traffic

The new developments in the HGGT area have controls on parking
permits which means that most households have asingle vehicle. This
has meant that whilst Harlow’s population has grown by 15% the
overal level of traffic remains at 2022 levels.

The lack of high levels of parking provision has meant the new
developments will be supporting increased public transport use on the
STCs and turn-up-and-go service levels which benefit the town.

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 85



7.7 Sustainable Freight and Deliveries

771 Introduction
Whatisthebaselinesituaion?

Currently, there arearange of local convenience stores offering parcel pick- up and drop-off for a range of couriers.
There s little coordination for freight and deliveries and the traffic created can make walking and cycling less
attractive. Thisisin line with the national context, where freight and deliveriesisroad centric.

Why does it support the Vision for the HGGT area?

Whilst freight and delivery tripsare not part of the mode share cd culations reducing thetotal tripsandimproving the
way freight and deliveries areconducted would makethe HGGT areaamoreattractive pleceto trave by active and
public transport. Thisin turnallowsfor morereliable operation of theroad network for the movement of freight to
support logistics, distribution and service sector companies based in the area, which are alarge part of the HGGT
economy.

What will it achieve?

What ta include in your aco-friendly delivery
strategy

Eco-friendly vehicles and fuel
Optimise delivery routes
Green delivery slots

Click and collact

Sustainable packaging

Efficient dalivary packing

Figure 27: British Business Bank eco-friendly

An explorationinto the freight and delivery solutions that can alleviate congestion and provide sustainable last  9¢!very strategy

mile deliveries, through sustainable modes and utilisation of mobility hubsas ‘service points’ for pick-up and drop-
off of deliveries.

There are opportunities for low carbon vehicle use, delivery hubsand lag mile logisticswhich use electric vehicles, cargo bikesto deliver goodsto local centres or
the final destination, especially with the new provision of infrastructure as part of the HGGT area strategic developments.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

6 obed

Page 86



Ot’¢ abed

@

772

This summary table sets out the component partsof the sustainablefreight and ddiveries theme. It establishes whichindividual programmes or schemes are included
within the theme, a description of what it entails, itslikely influenceonmodal choice for users, someof the key chdlengesto ddiverability or the scope of influence

Component Descriptions

on modes and how it may be interpreted differently for the strategic sites.

transition to dectric vehicles or suitable

modes.

deliveries. Incorporating ddiveries into
mobility hubs can remove the need for last
mile deliveries through integration with
parcel lockers and pick- up points.

adapt to new vehicles or finica
support/incentives.

Component What is it? How does it influence modal shift? Key challenges Strategic Sites
Sustainable Encouraging business to undertake Improve ar quality through use of more Dédivery firmswork in acompstitive Opportunity to embed sustainable
Ddiveries sustainable loca ddiveries through suitable low impact vehicles or automated marketplace and will need supportto freight and ddliveries into

commercid strategic sites.
Opportunity to incorporate parcel
lockers a mobility hubswithin new
developments.

CargoBike Scheme

Providing support to loca businesses to
replace delivery vehicles with cargo bikes.

Reduces traffic and improves local air quality
through use of carbo bikes instead vehicles.

Cargo bike have been successful in
cities where journey times by car are
less competitive, and bikes can offer
competitive journey times.

Opportunity to embed cargo bike
schemes into commercial strategic
sites.

Table 39: Description of sustainable freight and deliveries components

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town

| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 87




Ti¢ obed

7.73 Local Impact

Thissummary table sets out theloca impact andysis of parts of the sustainablefreight and deliveriestheme. Across each programme or scheme a number of key
determinantsare described, includingwhat are thelinked HGGT infrastructure elementsthat are already planned or under devel opment, what key demographics will
they impact, what isthe spatial influence acrossdifferent geographies, what isthe likely share of movement trips and type that are impacts and finally, the likely

scale of impact.

Sustainable Deliveries

Cargo Bike Scheme

Linked HGGT Infrastructure Elements NA STCs, LCWIP routes
Key Demographics All Locd businesses
Key HGGT Geography All Harlow Town Centre
Shareof Harlow tripsimpacted by intervention NA NA

Scale of I mpacts Medium Medium

Table 40: Summary of local impact of sustainable freight and deliveries components

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 88



2 abed

7.74

Delivery and Funding

Thistable summarises the elements of ddivery and funding critical to the different components. It gives high leve information regarding the source of funding, the
type of funding and scde required, andindicative package costs, whoislikely to lead on ddivery of the scheme or programme and what is the role of HGGT in the

delivery.
Type of Fundin P d Deli
Source of P 9 Indicative Package Cost rOpO.Se ) clvery
Component Fundi Organisation Role of HGGT
unding . (and how)
Resource Capital Revenue
Sustainable Ddiveries | Loca Authority ££ ££ ££ Developing aloca freight and HGGT partners to Engage with Harlow
Funding and Private delivery sustainability programme lead on strategy — and local businesses
Sector delivery by private on potentid for the
Costs can be reduced by sector providers. scheme, explore
implementing parcel pick-ups at feasibility within
mobility hubs, asit consolidates Harlow context.
deliveries at a key interchange.
Cargo Bike Scheme Loca Authority £ - £ Scheme costs dependent on scae of HGGT partnersto lead | Support Harlow in

funding and Private
Sector

Government grants

Cargo Bike ddlivery
companies

cargo bike and degree of subsidy.

Per bike gpprox. £1.5k-£4k
dependent on powertrain.

on strategy — delivery
by private sector
providers.

developing scheme

Table 41: Summary of delivery and funding considerations for sustainable freight and deliveries components

Key:
£-Low
££ - Medium
£££- High

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town

| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 89




775 Component Summary

Thissummary table setsout, for the sustainable freight and deliveriestheme, the identified prioritisation for each programme or scheme, the likely delivery
timef rames, the potential impact range of modal shift and key actions to be taken for each identified programme.

The prioritisedcomponents, includinga breakdown of key tasks, allocatedto a detalledannual programme, with greater short-term (to 2025) granularity is provided

overleaf in Table 43.

communities and
businesses on appetite
to utilise cargo bikes

Intervention Short term Priority Timeframes Potential Impact Key Action
Range
Sustainable Ddliveries Low Medium-term 0-1% Working with businesses to understand how they could
e Evauate options to shift] be encouraged to deliver sustainable delivering,
deliveries towards aongside identifying opportunities toincorporate parcel
sustainability delivery with mobility hubs.
Cargo Bike Scheme Low Medium-term 0-1% Engaging with Cargo Bikeproviders to understand
e Engage with costs of Cargo Bike scheme for locad businesses.

Assess potentia opportunitiesto bid for central
government funding to support scheme.

Table 42: Component summary table for sustainable freight and deliveries programmes

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

et abed

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 90




vz abed

7.76 Theme Prioritisation and Timeframes (short-term focus)
Development
i Delivery
2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029/3 2031/32 2033/34 2035-204(4
2. Sustainable Freight Déliveries '
2.1 Longtermstrategy that
requires engagement and
consultation

Output: Engage with businesses as part
of targeted engagement programmes to
ensure sustainable movement of goods
and under stand concernsaround logistics

3. Cargo Bike Scheme
3.1Engage with businesses and
communities to under stand where
opportunities for cargo bike schemes
might exist
Output: A strategy can be developed
following this to provide opportunities to
businesses and communities to utilise
cargo bikes
3.2Ddiver strategy ensuring businesses
and individuals are aware of the
opportunity Output: Cargo hikes are
utilised for existing tripscurrently done
by non-sustainable modes

Table 43: Prioritised sustainable freight and deliveries programmes and timeframes for delivery (short term focus)

Consultation

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Page 91



Gir¢ abed

7.7.7

Theme Prioritisation and Timeframes (long-term focus)

Whilst Table 43 on the previouspagegives a more detailed breakdown of the short-term priorities up until the end of 2025, this section expands to the 2040 future
year and sets out the longer-term priorities. This is demonstrated in Table 44 below.

2023

2024

2025

2026 2027 2028

2029/30: 2031/32: 2033/34:

2035-4

Scenario Priority

BAU Ambition i Exemplar

Sustainable Freight and Deliveries

Development

Cargo Bike Scheme

Deivery

Table 44: Prioritised rebalancing the cost of travel programmes and timeframes for delivery (long term focus)

Short term priority
Development

o Developstrategy for futureof freightin
HGGT area.

e Presentstrategy and engageon feedback for

further development.

e Consult with local busnessesandlogistics

providers on suitability of strategy.

o Develop framework for cargo bike schemes.

Delivery

e Once businesses and logistics providers
have been consulted incorporate strategy
into proposasfor strategic 9tesand wider
HGGT proposals.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Medium term priority

Development

Assessviability of new freight and ddivery
technologies, examplecase studies utilised
in scenariosthat dign with concerns around
deliveries and logistics experienced in
Harlow.

Engage with opportunities to sourcefunding
such as government grants or private sector
subsidies.

Assessfeasibility and appetitefor local
businesses using cargo bikes.

Delivery

Deliver applicaionsfor funding where
relevant.

Framework for deliveringsustainablefreight
infrastructure.

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Long term priority

Development

Understand the needs of sustainable freight
in the current (future) scenario and develop
intervention proposalsin line with this.
Develop strategy in line with potential
national policy which may bein placein the
future.

Delivery

Deliver required infrastructure for
improving the sustainability of freight,
logisticsand deliverieswithintheHGGT
area, alongside required policies and
alignment with government policy.

Page 92



9t/¢ abed

778 Benefits and Evidence

This section sets out thewider benefits that can be achieved (linked to the benefits map) through the delivery of the components that make up the sustainable freight
and deliveriestheme. It also demonstrates case studies of where similar has been developed and examples of how this could happen in the HGGT area and some
outcomesthat could berealised. Although the case studies areat arelatively infant stage, they reflect the current situation and are expected to be developed into fully
worked up schemes by the time we propose HGGT develops similar schemes.

Example 1 - Convenient and Sustainable

Wider Benefits Home Ddliveries

« Reduced congestion from delivery vehicles Residents can choose agreen délivery slot,
o . . . . which groups orderstogether by location. This

¢ Optimised public transport routes, first and last mile solutions is attractive as they can be priced chesper and

i . i i benefit the environment.
* Improved sustainability of wider supply chain
Residents can chooseto collect deliveries from

*  Improved efficiency for delivery companies alocal hub parcels can be collected from
. . . . . different couriers from one place saving time
- Integration with other trip types, reducing unnecessary trips and money for both residents and delivery

companies.

Example 2 — Futureof Dédliveries

Sustainable firstand last-mile deliveries area
Where hasit been adopted lot more commonplace in the area now.
Autonomousdelivery robotsare also seen
bringing people’s groceries to their door.

* Case study 1-Farr Out, Edinburgh: Cargo Cycle company providing

first/last mile same-day ddliveries, stock holding and delivery fulfilment There has been ahuge reduction in the
across Edinburgh. number of trips by private car because of the

impacts of these new approaches to delivery,
- Casestudy 2 — Autonomous Delivery Robots, Milton K eynes: Food dleviating congestion and giving people
and grocery delivery from arange of merchants in the city are delivered more freefime
by autonomous, electric robots.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Page 93



8. Scenarios

8.1 Introduction
Three scenarioshave been devel oped to providean indication of potential pathways to achieving the HGGT modal transition objectives.

The following sub-sections include further details on each scenario, applied to both the HGGT areaitself and strategic sites.

Trailing the target
Falling behind timeframes but On track to
achieving the progressing achieve the

objectives for towards the objectivesfor
HGGT objectives for HGGT
(BAU) HGGT (Exemplar)
(Ambition)

Scenario

Difficult decisions regarding

No significant changesbeyond the delivery of more

Delivery of sometargeted

> committed infrastructureand | . . controversial and higher cost
8 developer funding for new |ntervent|ons has been schemeshave been madewhich
E infrastructureand only a small achieved, however more reinforces growth in active and
behavioural chan controversial and higher cost ublic transport through
‘3 . e schemes not delivered. b o g
programmein place. improved services and land use
change.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

/¢ abed

Page 94



8¢ abed

8.2 Exemplar: Harlow
In this Scenano’ the mode share ObJ ective for the Tri.p type- Walk Cycle Rail | Bus Car Car passenger By 2040;
HGGT areaisachieved by 2035 and overall vehicle commute ama oaemase A A v v
tripsacrossHGGT arebelow today'slevel, ensuring il = 3,3;;‘:?;:‘"“““" -
traffic and congestion levels do not increase. Education or education A A A v v
¢ 52472 additional daily

. . Shopping and leisure A A v v ':E- . frips by active and
Using available resources, HGGT successfully " sustainable modes
deliversinterventions that contribute to the modal Minorchange [ Jll  Major change

transition in the short term and in response to this
approach, the HGGT area continues to receive
significant funding from Local and Central
Government to deliver further improvements.

The timely delivery of interventions such as STCs
and improved public transport increases public
support for further interventions are combined with
locally implemented mechanismswhich support the
ongoing cost of public transport. The HGGT area’s
roads becomeless congested, which in turn enables
the re- prioritisation of road space in the high streets
and town centre to develop and supporting active
transport. Lower traffic and greater bus priority
supportsthebus networks perf ormance and makes
the HGGT area a more attractive place to walk and
cycle.

Working fromhome has a sugained impact on how

Table 45: Indicative modal transition impact by trip type (Exemplar: Harlow)

Aclive Bnd susiainablemodes

[
a Cya us rain
B ‘wvalk [l Cyzle Buz W T

2023 Bl
Walk 2".‘\.5“
% Y& Train
i

M Car M Car passenger

2025

2030

184 01
Irips

- 42,083 fewer daily trips
by car modes

27 % incragsa n active and

sustainable mode shame

2035

183,864

trips

B

Impiemeniaion of Healty Schon
Shreets Progqramme

STCs iImplemenizd Optimised parking and chames

often people choose to commute and local travel
increases substantially, typically by walking or
cycling. E-bikesare particularly popular for travel to
mobility hubs over middledistances combined with
animprovedbusnetwork supportedby DRT in lower
density areas.

Tow CEniee partng reasiocason Conlnued DiEs SERdce IMONovement
Ernel Travel Programms

STC ik Bis SENATE ITERWERaENT
Targeied engagement promoiing

sistanahie frave Hanie BART Tkl

hickTy T
Innareasmd opbe slways
Cride hie scheme
Lok SN

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Page 95



61¢ abed

8.3 Exemplar: Strategic Sites
In this scenario, the mode share objective for the

strategic sitesis achieved by 2035. Tri'p wpe. Walk Cycle Rail / Bus Car Car passenger | By 2040

The strategjc sites are designed in such away that Comm!.lting and bus.iness A A v 1—.-? g:ﬁ!ﬂ{_ﬁg&jdﬂiﬂnal fotal
supports high activeand public transport travel for Egsgft'"“" or education A A A v _

all trip types, growing the active and sustainable : : yy Y 3 ﬁ;ﬂii‘iﬁ"ﬁgﬂf“"
mode share quickly from 15%to 47% to 2030. The Shopping and leisure * sustainable modes
modal trangtionisfurther advancedupto 2035 due 57338 2d 'd
mostly toimplementationof parkingpolicieswhich uinor change [ [l wajor change = el
discourage short vehicle trips and high-quality Table 46: Indicative modal transition impact by trip type (Exemplar: Strategic Sites) S et e nLanahie
walking and cycling routes. mode share

Initially lower rates of public transport take up are
seen as serviceleveds builds as demand increases.
Developments are attractive to new and existing

residents partially because of the sustainable W ialk M Cycle W Buz M Towin [ Car (W Car paszenger
lifestyle they deliver for residents.

#Azihve and sustainablamodes

. : . 2025
Shorttripsare concentratedonwalkingand cycling, e 2035

thisincludes access to schools, retail and local
leisure facilities. Cycling occurs along dedicated
cycle routes and local streets and saf e storage is

provided at key locations. -15.:35 E.:1:1
For journeysinto Harlow and onwards, many e,
residentsuse the high-quality turn up and go local 535 —_—
bus provision utilising the STCs or an expanded s per sl ieterveriiore ki +  ASper Hariow Interventions, phis:
DRT to get to _the town centre and f_or regional A p— I
connections via the train or bus station. . iloail developments
? . Serategic Sites Parking Poicy
Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Page 96



0G¢ abed

8.4 Ambition: Harlow

In this scenario, the mode share objectivefor the
HGGT areaison track to beachieved by the late
2040s.

Using available resources HGGT successfully
delivers some targeted interventions that
translate to a modest transition to active and
sustainable modesin the short term. This places
some pressure on HGGT to invest in
interventions that will result in a step change
between required after 2035.

In the short-term, the f ocused implementation of
Healthy School Streets and School Travel
Programmesresultin behaviour changefrom car
to walk, cycle and bus for education and
education escort trips.

Investment in active travel interventionsin the
medium-term such as cycle hire schemes, E-
bike schemes and cycle storage infrastructure
increases the share of active travel for the
broader HGGT areapopulationincludinglonger
commuting trips.

The joined-up thinking demondrated by HGGT
partners in terms of their plan to increase bus
patronage is recognised by Centra Government
and some funding is received for bus service
improvements. This increases the public
transport mode share in the HGGT area, but
carsare still dominant tripsof amedium length.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Trip type Walk Cycle Rail / Bus Car Car passenger By 2040:
Commuting and business A A A 4 v 9 40,389 addtional tatal
Education or education A A A v v E daily trips
escort i

) } . & 52273 addtional daily
Shopping and leisure A A v \ 4 I trips by active and

Major change

Minor change ] |

Table 47: Indicative modal transition impact by trip type (Ambition: Harlow)

Active anc sustainabie medes

i
M ‘Walk Il Cycle [l Bus [l Train

Car [l Car passenger

B 2025

174,364
irips

1777
trigs

TS

—_—
MEkmenon of —eathy Scrad STCs merenisd
Shoaka | SR

2030

ST ke bus erdce improvemrers

Frhod Traswl Progwaniime:
Riclahb; Hubs

Innzmomiat cprde sl Arc
Cryche Bz schems
E-dee e

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

sustalmable modas

¢ 5 41,884 fewer daily tnps
by car modes

2T% increasa in active and

sustainable mode sharme

2033

ELEY

—_—

Conlinued bus serios mormeEment

Page 97



TG¢ abed

8.5 Ambition: Strategic Sites

In thisscenario,themode share objective for the
strategic sitesis achieved by 2040.

The strategic sitesare desgned in such away that
supports high active and public transport travel
for all trip types, growing the active and
sustainable mode sharequickly from 15%to 45%
to 2030. A steadier transition is observed in the
years from 2030 as residents have their
established travel patterns, so investment in
further infrastructure provision or behaviour
change programmes is required to be very
effective and targeted.

Short trips are concentrated on walking and
cycling, thisincludesaccessto schools, retail and
local leisure. Cycling occurs along dedicated
cycleroutesand saf e storage is provided at key
locations.

For journeysinto Harlow and onwards, many
residents usethe locd busprovision utilising the
STC to get to the town centre and for connections
to the train station.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Trip type Walk Cycle Rail | Bus Car Car passenger ﬁjr 20400

Commuting and business A ' -

Educat et v 2 68,320 additional tatal
ucation or education — dally trios

escon A A A y trigy

Shopping and leisure i 40,002 additional daily

. tips by active and
Minor change [ Wajorchange sustsinable modes
& 27,328 additional daily

Table 48: Indicative modal transition impact by trip type (Ambition: Strategic Sites) wips by car modes

60% active and sustalinable

mode share

Aciive anc sustanabie modes

r
M ‘walk [l Cyole [l Bus [ Train [l Car W Car passenger

2025 2030 2035
15%
A5% S6%
: 16,836 42 670
g inps tnps
4%
5% 55% —_—
—f
+ Az per Harlow inksrvanBions, plus *  Asper Harlow interventions. plus:
Residental Travel Plans 5 Designed in mitigation io new
dewEapments
Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently
Page 98



2S¢ abed

8.6 Business as Usual: Harlow

In this scenario, the mode share objective for the Trip type Walk Cycle Rail [Bus Car Carpassenger | gy 2040s;

HGGT areais possbly achieved by the 2040s but Commuting and business =3 10,389 additional total

progressin the initial years is slow which delays Education or education " ey wns

government funding. escor i 52,273 sdditional daily
Shopping and leisure 'R _. trips by active and

In the short-term, HGGT deliver the committed inorchange [ B Malor change BHeinsHlE s

infrastructure projects and implement a small 41,884 fewer daily trips

behavioural Change programme. Investment Table 49: Indicative modal transition impact by trip type (BAU: Harlow) by car modes

beyond thisis difficult tosecure and as aresult the 27% Increasa In active and

sustainable mode share

modal transition is only marginal to 2035.

V ehicle ownership grows and there are few
disincentives put in place to reduction vehicle
travel to the town centre. Bus usehasincreased but
most services are not viable at turn up and go
frequencies and are impacted by unreliable journey
times when not operating on the STCs. Workplaces
are still dominated by car commuting due to high
levels of free workplace parking. W Walk B Cycle B Buz B Train B Car W Car passenger

#Azihve and sustainablamodes

Levelsof physical activity and impacts from local
air quality continue to impact the health of local
residents through the 2030s. With car dependency
high, low-incomeresidents are forced to spend a
high share of income on transport costs.

2023 Bike 7025 2030 2035

183, 864
trips

TR
[P

—m TER
St TrarH PrOgrammg + Incrmased ook Seage = 5TC linked bus SENECe IMprovements

STCs implemented

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Page 99



8.7 Business as Usual: Strategic Sites

Inthisscenario, there islow confidence that the
mode share objective for the strategic sitesis

hieved (if a0 by th d Tri'ptype- Walk Cycle Rail | Bus Ccar Car passenger By 2040s:
achieved (if at all) by the 2040s and progress Commuting and business __9 68,320 addiional total
towards the target is slow. : _ = dally irlps

Education or education

escort i

. . . . 40,992 additicnal d

Without thei mprovementscoming from _the wider Shopping and leisure i . trips by active and o
HGGT area, achieving the mode transition " sustainable modes
objective, it remainsa challenge to those working Minorchange ~ [I [l  Major change ., 27,328 additional daity

locally who are rdiant onlow frequency buses and
congestion, making walking and cycling less
attractive. mode share

Table 50: Indicative modal transition impact by trip type (BAU: Strategic Sites) trips: by car modes

6%, activa and sustainable

Local tripsin thevillagesremain car dominated
and streets hostile to walking and cycling due to
high levels of traffic.

Active anc sustanable modes
: M waik [l Cycle [l Bus B Train I Car B Ca passenger
People moving to the Strategic Sites are seeking

the suburban lifestyle and as a result resist
transitioning from car travel for the mgority of trip

es.
typ 2025 2030 2035
56%
42 670
trips
44%
5% —
SE—

Ak et Hiariows infeverndisns, pus ¥ As per Harlow infermenbons

Residantial Treval Flsns

Desgned in mitigatian o nes

developmants
Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Page 100

£Ge abed



yGe abed

9. Summary

9.1 Delivery Themes Pathway

The recommended delivery pathway (combined for all themes) for HGGT to 2040is shown in Table 51 and Table 52. Asdescribed in Section7, there are a number
of short-term ‘mobilisation’ activities that should be targeted for commencement and completion in 2024 -2025 to enable the delivery of this pathway.

A series of engagement programmes, targeting schools, businessesand locd residents, will be critical to supportingthe behaviour change necessary for the desired
modal transition. Thiswill set thef oundation to achieving stakeholder buy in which will be critical to achieve the modal transition vision. It is vital that decision
makers understand that the modal transition objectives will not be achieved through infrastructure measures alone.

Post-implementationmonitoringof all projectsthrough the collection and analysis of data will be essential to determine if a project has resulted in the desired
behaviour changes. Implementation lessons learnt through an evaluation process will also be useful to inform future action and serve as a justification for future
funding applications.

Overall progresstowards achieving the modal transition objectives can be informed through a periodic (annual from 2024 is recommended) travel survey.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited Page 101



GGe obed

9.2 lllustrative Sequencing for Gold Scenario
2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029030 ; 2031132 | 203334 20352040
Hoahthy School Stnoeats : i
Roads, Steetsand  LvoabioHeaity Syeets IIIIIZIZILIZIZIIZIZIIIEIZII D S T
Neighkourheods Antiva Maighbouhonds I - .

Fowwee CCeedfes Dlarknwy Siraien

SIC Eewice Drowsion Spewiesions
Bus Sonvicn Injprovemont

Increasing Bus Use

Harlow Ticketinng fMaas / Poce Dan

Shaced Mohnify SR

Faubilily Huz

Increasing Shared -
Dar Clubs

Mability and Active sriuas

Travel Lol Btorage linked o LUME
I Niwe Schams

Drda D ire Seheme

DTN e SORe e
Pathfincler Businzssses
Corunuaity Chanmipions

Targeted Engagement
Programmes

Fesiderlia! frevel Suppol

ararrg Manegenent Siraleygy

Pricing and Parking o .
Sratogic Sies Porking IManagomont Statogy

Sustalnabls Fralght

Lo ! astmile delnrernes
and Deliveries ) '

S Faoniton
Monitoring! Evaluation ---- m n:- -]--_---ﬂ-g ----------------------------------
Paanric Travel Sureay

Table 51: Delivery themes pathway

& Consultation

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 102



9G¢ abed

9.3 Combined Delivery Pathway

The delivery themes pathway hasbeen overlaid with the existing HGGT work
plan (key site delivery and infrastructure delivery and enablement
timeframes). Thistiestogether the schemes that arealready planned with the
recommended supporting interventions required to meet the modal transition
objectives.

The mode share and trip demand information located inthe top section of the
delivery pathway provides anindication of the estimated implications of the
delivery of theschemesin linewith the expected housing delivery trajectory.

The scenario shownin the ddivery pahway is most aligned to the Exemplar
scenario (refer to Section 8), with continuous ddivery and implementation of
arange of interventions and programmesto support the gradua and sustained
modal transition to active and public transport.

HGGT will need to assessthe deliverability of the supporting interventions
under the delivery themes pathway with respect to their resource constraints.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town
| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

[FRENY ST [P [ L] (] L] Fil L]
" 1 I
Lt My <o e ‘
e H Bl o -+ & P o Garvs .
D vitages 14 a
Dty s T 0 L]
A0 ncton(TA

DCrriegrerd | inked ‘ebsgiewrtwes (M|
g e Db T

i CaTorkage Bz Lnston Lipgats

Embet S Cimabgy

[ S——

WETE Horik I Casira |Toar Carors ramrures | T ET0 womt|
T ——— .Irumua.nqm:h-r
Farte v Cmnbrss B Baation | A
BT e s san i
Toen Cardos Doy Shaion io
@ STC Lot im Wesat
ILMHEA o =ride Town
\'.l.r:l B Boaliorn §

LEWE

| WS Rzt B
@ LD Aoummd

™ Wainvrg Fera i
| ® Waising Tore 1

® Cychs Bouts &

@ Cpw Rovim 1 @ Cpoe Rsurs 1
| 0 i Rmans T

DT T T T ——
T ST SRR

Ea, Bvasin sfal  Lawabintanily Sone
el R AT A0 At Womghoourhoois

Frme 0 i g
_!mm%
Icrassing Dux e 203 -PEMOE IO rement

[re——t

el W"h’M'lmE

Tl

teeinas o S :m..l'_:“
Mdabd ity e Aztes ~
T e BT W 1 LOAR
£-fiten Sachame:
Ayowe bp Schares
[ r—
n AT ey
—_— oty s
Frogrnm

Pating dlanagamant Smuagy
Fricing i
I i\ E g'L:RnI:HIﬂﬁ &1=|:

Hentmrablr Fres v JF—— ™

i
Maroring ETrrrerr—
Evnlention Pt T Sy

Table 52: Delivery pathway

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently

Page 103



/G¢ abed

9.4 Conclusions, Recommendations and Next Steps

This Framework has set out a prioritised pathway of transport focused
interventionsto achievethe moda transtion necessary to meet the ambitious
objectivesof the HGGT Transport Strategy. Both short term (next 2 years)
and long-term (up to 2040) actions have been included. It should be used by
all HGGT stakeholders and decision makers to enable them to make an
informed choice, and have aview on, thepathway to the achievement of the
modal transition.

Important trade-offs will have to be weighed up by decision makersto ensure
that sustainable development and mechanisms to facilitate sustainable travel
are prioritised above other policy areas.

A strong legacy of collaborative working across partnership councils,
developers, third parties and all involved stakeholders will be critical in
determining the successof this Framework. In particular, HGGT partners will
haveto work in close collaboration with developersto deliver well-designed
placeswithin the Strategic Sitesthat prioritise activeand public transport use
for new residents.

The short-termaction plan isalist of themost effective interventions, where
delivery should be commenced as earlier as possible to have the greatest
chance of success.

Thelong-term ddivery pathway should be adaptableand flexible to overcome

potential future uncertainty. However, it is crucial that the most significant
interventions, and the plans and strategies required to deliver these, are
discussed and developed now in order to best address the challenge of modal
transition.

Harlow and Gilston Garden Town

| Final | 20 June 2024 | Ove Arup & Partners Limited

The key recommendations from this Framework in order to meet the
ambitious modal objectives are:

« Thedelivery of an exemplar programme of transport and
movement related programmesis criticd for the success of the
Framework and achievement of the objectives There needsto be
a single dedicated r esour ce/appointed officer to ensure this
Framework is delivered.

+ HGGT partner councils and members need to work towards a step-
change, to impact movement in termsof both demand and supply.

A key condition of this Framework should be to ensure that it is
regularly monitor ed and evaluated, to ensure progressis being
made against achieving the targets.

The key next stepsfor thisFramework are:

Appoint lead of ficer and dedicated resourceto deliver onthe
Framework.

Socialise this Framework with key stakeholders.

Coor dinate the inclusion of recommended interventions within the
HGGT work plan.

I ncor por ate prioritisedactivity and costingswithinthe busnessplan
for next financial year.

Commence delivery of short-term action plan.

Develop and enact arobugt monitoringand evaluation plan, to

ensure Framework is kept live and regularly updated.

Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently
Page 104



Agenda Item 12

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Agenda Item 12
Report to: HARLOW AND GILSTON GARDEN TOWN JOINT COMMITTEE
Title: HGGT Programme Management Report

Report Reference: JC-007-2024/25

Date: 22 July 2024
Report Author: Naisha Polaine - Director Harlow & Gilston Garden Town
Enclosures: Appendix A — 2024/25 HGGT Programme of Work

Recommendations/Decisions Required:
The HGGT Joint Committee is asked to:

A. Consider and comment on the Programme Management Report, as set out in Appendix A,

providing progress updates against the agreed HGGT 2024/25 annual work programme.
Executive Summary:

The purpose of the Joint Committee is to provide unified leadership to deliver the ambitious
spatial growth proposals set out in the Local Plans of HDC, EHDC and EFDC supported by ECC

and HCC to align and maximise opportunities for new and existing residents and communities.

The HGGT Joint Committee holds the responsibility to deliver the agreed HGGT Vision to
promote healthy, sustainable communities and co-ordinate and facilitate the delivery of 16,000
new homes in the HGGT by 2033, and 7,000 new homes in the years after that, along with

associated transport, community, and environmental infrastructure.

@ Epping Forest —
(5% (Ebmcoms MM Horow RN
P ag e 2 5 8 www.eppingforestde.gov.uk et A Wowiiee sopether for Hlarfew



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

This report provides the Joint Committee with oversight of progress against its agreed

programme of work for 2024/25 which aims to progress delivery of its HGGT Vision.

Reasons for proposed Decision:

To adhere to governance procedures set out in the Terms of Reference of the Joint Committee
for the HGGT Joint Committee to have oversight of the HGGT programme.

Other Options for Action:

Not to receive programme reporting information. This option as a course of action is not
recommended. Oversight is required to mitigate risks and maintain quality of decision-making
and delivery amongst the five Council partners and the HGGT Team.

|I. Introduction

1.1 This report provides the HGGT Joint Committee with key reporting benchmarks setting out
progress of the 24/25 work programme against the baseline programme agreed at the Joint
Committee meeting held on 11 June 2024.

1.2 This approach to programme management will enable the Joint Committee to meet its
formalised governance and audit responsibilities and to respond to key issues and emerging
risks.

2. Background

2.1 The overarching strategic objective of the HGGT Work Programme is to co-ordinate and
enable the delivery of 16,000 homes by 2033, along with associated infrastructure, delivering
the Garden Town Vision, principles and guidance that has been agreed by the five Council
partners.

2.2 The HGGT Work Programme is developed from across the five Council HGGT partnership
in line with the strategic objective, delivery aims, and programme priorities agreed by
the Joint Committee as set out below:

2.2.1 2024/25 Key delivery themes:

Delivering the Garden Town Vision of quality, beautiful and sustainable places
Enabling the Infrastructure Foundations for Growth

Maximising and Accelerating Delivery with a focus on outcomes by 2025
Ensuring our Governance is Fit for the Future

(Easty Epping Forest o n
& District Council ~ [E=SN ~ OrOW ,
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk seiisiniiiceris Wisrkirne towcther for THariow P ag e 2 5 9



2.2

3.1

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

Page 260

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

.2 2024/25 programme priorities for the HGGT partnership:

o Enabling the HGGT Strategic Sites to come forward

e Enabling Achievement of HGGT Modal Transition Target

e Demonstrating and engaging with the community on the benefits of growth
e Delivery of the long-term stewardship arrangements

Delivery Highlight Updates

The following updates are provided for the HGGT strategic sites; the Housing
Investment Grant (HIG) and the 2024/25 HGGT Programme of Work:

Strategic Site Updates

Latton Priory — There is an allocation in the EFDC Local Plan for a minimum of 1,050
homes, as well as a primary and secondary school, local centre and Suitable Alternative
Natural Greenspace (SANG). The Strategic Masterplan Framework and Latton Priory
Design Code have been endorsed by EFDC Cabinet.

Water Lane — There is an allocation in the EFDC Local Plan for a minimum of 2,100
homes, a new primary school, local centre and strategic neutral greenspace. A Planning
Performance Agreement for masterplan work is complete and has been signed by
developers, EFDC, HDC and ECC.

East of Harlow — There is an allocation in the HDC Local Plan for 2,600 homes and an
allocation in the EFDC Local Plan for 750 Homes. HGGT partners have drafted an East
of Harlow Masterplanning Guidance SPD which was adopted by EFDC on 28 May and
is intending to go to HDC Cabinet in the near future.

Gilston Villages — Subsequent to the resolutions of the East Herts Development
Management Committee to resolve to grant outline planning permissions (in early 2023)
the details of the associated Section 106 Agreement remain under negotiation with
developers. At the time of writing, it is anticipated that the draft final Agreement will be
published, as required by the regulations, prior to completion at end June/early July.
Thereafter the Section 106 agreement will be finalised, signed and the decision notices
giving outline planning permission for the Gilston area, released. Masterplanning activity
has been paused whilst the priority was to complete the Section 106 Agreement. Once
the Section 106 Agreement has been finalised, Masterplanning work will recommence.

Harlow Town Centre — The Ex-Occasio House site demolition has been completed and
the site is being cleared and prepared. Full planning permission for the Arts and Cultural

(Easty Epping Forest — ']
@ @ District Council ~ ESI 1910w e
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk = T Workime soeerher for y HBI‘thrdshire



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Quarter was granted in April 2024. Stage 3 of the Broadwalk design has been
completed, the contractor has been appointed and site works are expected to
commence in June/July 2024. Public consultation is now complete on Market Square
allowing it to enter its detail design stage.

4.6 Harlow TC Interchange & Hub STC Work — Demolition works have begun, with
demolition completed of toilet, information kiosk and Terminus House Footbridge.

4.7 Walking and Cycling — Construction has commenced on a new pedestrian and cycle
route from the Town Centre to Pinnacles, with another route from the Town Centre to
Churchgate Street/East of Harlow currently in the design phase.

5. Housing Investment Grant (HIG)

5.1 Gilston HIG programme - As part of the Garden Town delivery programme,
Hertfordshire County Council is overseeing the delivery of £171 million of Homes
England Housing Investment Grant funding to deliver transport infrastructure that
mitigates the impact of the Gilston Garden town villages development on Harlow and
the surrounding areas and enables wider Garden Town development to come forward.
This provides early enabling and delivery of key transport and other supporting
infrastructure to start mitigating the impact of the development.

Stort Valley Crossings — As part of the HIG delivery programme, there are two key
projects to mitigate any increase in traffic across the Stort Valley between Gilston and
Harlow because of housing coming forward across the Garden Town. The first one,
called the Central Stort Crossing will enhance the existing A414 river Stort crossing with
a significant increase in capacity for sustainable modes such as walking, cycling and
buses. The second one, called the Eastern Stort Crossing, will increase general traffic
capacity and provide an additional link into the Templefields area.

5.2 North to Centre STC — Work has commenced on the North to Centre (Sustainable
Transport Corridor) STC. The programme is estimated to last approximately 18 months
and is the first stage of a wider network of enhanced routes to provide for more
sustainable modes across the Town. It will link up with the new Central Stort Crossing
and provide the opportunity for quick sustainable services between Gilston and the Town
Centre as the most direct route into Gilston will be a sustainable only mode access.

5.3 Cambridge Road Link — The Cambridge Road junction is the first project to be delivered
as part of the HIG programme and is both an early enabler for the Eastern Stort
Crossing, but also provides the benefit of providing an alternative route for HGV and

@ Epping Forest Ty "
& District Council ~ ESI  1ArIOW ,
www.eppingforestde.gov.uk seiisiniiiceris Wisrkirne towcther for THariow P ag e 2 6 1



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

other traffic using the Templefields industrial area and diverting traffic away from
Edinburgh way. It is anticipated that work will be complete, and the junction opened at
the end of June 2024.

6. 2024/25 HGGT Work Programme Updates

6.1 The 2024/25 HGGT work programme is set out at Appendix A annotated with key
updates. Highlights include:

6.1.1 Stewardship Charter — The five council partners will note that a report
recommending adoption of the Stewardship Charter is included on the agenda for
this Joint Committee meeting.

6.1.2 Modal Transition Plan - The HGGT Transport Strategy establishes a clear mode
share objective and set of principles which aligns with growth strategies. The Joint
Committee will note that a full report on the Modal Transition Plan is included on the
agenda for this Joint Committee meeting.

6.1.3 Bike Share Scheme — A feasibility study has been undertaken for a HGGT Bike
Share Scheme and is currently under review.

6.1.4 Infrastructure Delivery Plan (IDP) — The HGGT IDP has been published and is
operational across the HGGT partnership.

6.1.5 Strategic Economic Framework (SEF) — the SEF has been published and an
action plan is currently being scoped between the five Council partners.

Implications:
Resource Implications:

Central Government Funding has been made available to date to support the work of the HGGT
partnership. This is the result of annual bidding rounds and while the funding is both welcome
and essential, this approach creates uncertainty in planning for enabling and delivery work.
Officers of HGGT will continue dialogue with Government for future arrangements in an attempt
to establish multi-year revenue funding agreements. Each council partner also considers
contribution to the HGGT partnership as part of the annual budget setting.

Equalities and Diversity:

Equality Impact Assessment:

(Easty Epping Forest o n
(5% (Ebmcoms MM Horow RN
P ag e 2 6 2 www.eppingforestde.gov.uk et A Wowiiee sopether for Hlarfew



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Is this a new policy (or decision) or a change to an| No
existing policy, practice or project?

Describe the main aims, objectives and purpose off To provide budget and programme
the policy or decision information to deliver the aims of the
HGGT Joint Committee

What outcome(s) are you hoping to achieve (ie| Provide oversight of HGGT Programme

decommissioning or commissioning a service)? and progress.

Does or will the policy or decision affect: Yes - contributes to the delivery of the
e service users HGGT project to deliver 23,000 new
e employees homes and associated infrastructure in

o the wider community or groups of people, | and around Harlow which will affect
particularly where there are areas of | existing and future residents.
known inequalities?

Will the policy or decision influence how| No
organisations operate?

Will the policy or decision involve substantiall No
changes in resources?

Is this policy or decision associated with any of the | No
Council’'s other policies and how, if applicable,
does the proposed policy support corporate
outcomes?

What does the information tell you about those | N/A
groups identified?

Have you consulted or involved those groups that | N/A
are likely to be affected by the policy or decision
you want to implement? If so, what were their
views and how have their views influenced your
decision?

If you have not consulted or engaged with | The work of HGGT has been subject to
communities that are likely to be affected by the | public consultation and will continue to be
policy or decision, give details about when you | so in the future.

intend to carry out consultation or provide reasons
for why you feel this is not necessary:

@ Epping Forest — HC]HOW

P
e

£
He’!\j? District Council OwW m
& el <> [ —— N (fordshire Page 263



HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

Use this section to assess any potential impact on equality groups based on what you

now know.

Age, Disability, Gender, Gender N/A
reassignment, Pregnancy/maternity,
Marriage/civil partnership, Race,

Religion/belief, Sexual orientation

Does the EqIA indicate that the policy
or decision would have a medium or [No See comment above
high

HGGT Vision Assurance

1. What principles of the HGGT Vision does this seek to achieve?
The objective of the HGGT Programme is to deliver the HGGT Vision.

2. What steps have been taken to ensure the HGGT Vision is embedded into the project?

The HGGT Programme ensures that the individual projects remain aligned to the HGGT
Vision.

@ Epping Forest —
%8 (Enmnccoms M Horow RN
P ag e 2 64 www.eppingforestde.gov.uk i “;,;,.,“.,",.,;,., for yrt




Gog abed

HGGT

HARLOW & GILSTON
GARDEN TOWN

APPENDIX A
2024/25 HGGT Programme of Work

Programme Item Jun Jul
LCWIP Refresh Development Publish Comms
Bus & Optfratlonal Services - Enhanced Bus Develop Operational Plan
Partnership
Shared Mobility - Bike Hire Report consult
Modal Due
Sustainable Trar;-s‘rt‘mn Future Transport Review Group Setup Establish TRG
o Delivery
MBI Active Travel Behavioural Change (Sustrans) - Onboard Embed
Modal Transition Delivery Framework Take forward prioritised initiatives as per delivery framework
Parking Guid for Garden Ci ities and Large Present to
Scale Devel _EP
Harlow Town Rail and Access Improvements LENPREEIN _and fesource
required
IDP Update 2024 Endorsed
IDP Refresh 2026 Scoping N
. brief
Policy and HGGT Vision Refresh Refresh
Strategy
Design Guide Refresh Refresh
Infrastructure Funding Statement Research Endorse  Publish
Infrastructure Land Assembly and CPO Continued Delivery of the Land Assembly Programme
and Delivery RIF Development Procure Develop Endorse
Gilston Stewardship Model Delivery B OF SOy
Forum
. Joint
HGGT Stewardship Charter Consult . Embed
Committee
. . . Umbrella Body Update & Options Options Paper to Joint N i
HGGT Strategic Stewardship Options o Review and Scope Resultant Projects
; ping 8 il Report Refine | consu | Committee (22 0ct) 2 L
& Community Communications Monthly | Monthly | Monthly E":l:'“ publish | Monthly | Monthly | Monthly | Monthly | Monthly | Monthly | Monthly
n
S HGGT Data Dashboard and Insights (Local Digital Fund) Testing [.)Sflltﬂng:s i Implementation Training Evaluate Renewal
Citizenlab Engagament Platform Continued Monitoring and Evaluation of the Citizenlab Platform and Adjusting Where Needed
QRP Ongoing drumbeat of QRPs
East of Harlow SPD EFDC & HDC
Adopt
Economic Development Scope
Latton Priory
HGGT Joint Commitee Establish Joint Committee Operationalise Joint Committee
PMO & Master Programme Scope Milestones Maintain
East Epping Forest Harlow
Herts District Council Council

Couneil

—
ki poneerher for Harow Hertfords

www.eppingforestde.gov.uk



	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	Minutes

	8 HGGT Annual Review
	Agenda Item 8
	Report to:	HARLOW AND GILSTON GARDEN TOWN JOINT COMMITTEE
	Reasons for proposed Decision:
	1.	Introduction
	2.	Background
	3.	Proposals

	9 HGGT Quality Review Report
	10 HGGT Stewardship Charter
	Agenda Item 10
	Report to:	HARLOW AND GILSTON GARDEN TOWN JOINT COMMITTEE
	Reasons for proposed Decision:
	1.	Introduction
	2.	Background
	3.	Consultation
	10 HGGT Stewardship Charter App I v1
	10 HGGT Stewardship Charter App II v1
	10 HGGT Stewardship Charter App III v1
	10 HGGT Stewardship Charter App IV v1
	10 HGGT Stewardship Charter App V v1
	10 HGGT Stewardship Charter App VI v1
	10 HGGT Stewardship Charter App VII v1

	11 "Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently" - A HGGT Framework (HGGT Modal Transition Delivery Framework)
	Agenda Item 11
	Report to:	HARLOW AND GILSTON GARDEN TOWN JOINT COMMITTEE
	Executive Summary
	Reasons for proposed Decision:
	2.	Introduction
	3.	HGGT Sustainable Travel Infrastructure – Achievements to Date
	4.	Sustainable Transport Corridor (STC) Network
	5.	Purpose Of The ‘Re-Imagining How We Can Travel Differently’ Framework
	6.	Approach To Developing The Framework
	7.	Next Steps
	11 HGGT MTDF App I v1

	12 HGGT Programme Management Report
	Agenda Item 12
	Report to:	HARLOW AND GILSTON GARDEN TOWN JOINT COMMITTEE
	Reasons for proposed Decision:
	1.	Introduction
	2.	Background
	5.	Housing Investment Grant (HIG)
	5.1	Gilston HIG programme - As part of the Garden Town delivery programme, Hertfordshire County Council is overseeing the delivery of £171 million of Homes England Housing Investment Grant funding to deliver transport infrastructure that mitigates the impact of the Gilston Garden town villages development on Harlow and the surrounding areas and enables wider Garden Town development to come forward. This provides early enabling and delivery of key transport and other supporting infrastructure to start mitigating the impact of the development.
	Stort Valley Crossings – As part of the HIG delivery programme, there are two key projects to mitigate any increase in traffic across the Stort Valley between Gilston and Harlow because of housing coming forward across the Garden Town. The first one, called the Central Stort Crossing will enhance the existing A414 river Stort crossing with a significant increase in capacity for sustainable modes such as walking, cycling and buses. The second one, called the Eastern Stort Crossing, will increase general traffic capacity and provide an additional link into the Templefields area.
	5.2	North to Centre STC – Work has commenced on the North to Centre (Sustainable Transport Corridor) STC. The programme is estimated to last approximately 18 months and is the first stage of a wider network of enhanced routes to provide for more sustainable modes across the Town. It will link up with the new Central Stort Crossing and provide the opportunity for quick sustainable services between Gilston and the Town Centre as the most direct route into Gilston will be a sustainable only mode access.
	5.3	Cambridge Road Link – The Cambridge Road junction is the first project to be delivered as part of the HIG programme and is both an early enabler for the Eastern Stort Crossing, but also provides the benefit of providing an alternative route for HGV and other traffic using the Templefields industrial area and diverting traffic away from Edinburgh way. It is anticipated that work will be complete, and the junction opened at the end of June 2024.


